
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                    

     

  

 

                                                     
 

                                                                                                       
 

Notice:  Meeting provided in-person, by live-broadcast and telephonically via WebEx as follows: 

 
Live-Broadcast @ link below: 

https://www.co.benton.wa.us/agenda/commissioners 
 

   

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, December 21, 2021 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
   

  9:00 AM Call to Order 

 

    Pledge of Allegiance 

 

    Approval of Minutes  

❖ December 14, 2021 

    

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda 

    

   Auditor 

a. Appointments to the Benton County Accessible Community Advisory Committee  

Commissioners 

b. First Amended Historic Preservation Grant Agreement w/Benton City Revitalization Organization  

District Court   

c. Agreement w/WA Administrative Office of the Courts for Reimbursement of Interpreter Costs  

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

Will McKay 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
 

Jerrod MacPherson 
County Administrator 

 
Matt Rasmussen 

Deputy County Administrator             

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 1 of 411



          Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

          December 21, 2021 

          Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Human Resources 

d. Establishing Insurance Benefits Contribution for Non-Bargaining Employees & Elected Officials 

e. Establishing Insurance Benefits Contribution for Bi-County Non-Bargaining Employees    

Information Technologies 

f. Three-Year Subscription Renewal for LegalServer From PS Technologies  

g. Annual Subscription for NextRequest Public Records Management From SHI International Corp.    

Office of Public Defense 

h. Superior & District Court Public Defense Interpreting Services Agreement w/Sylvia Garza  

i. Superior & District Court Public Defense Interpreting Services Agreement w/Bertha Ramon-Arteaga      

   Public Works 

j. Maintenance & Upgrade Fees to Cascade Software Systems for Cost Accounting Software  

k. Approving A Public Hearing for the Amendment of the 2022-2027 Six-Year Road Program  

Purchasing 

l. Contract w/FastSigns 280501 for Installing Window Film @ The Administration Building   

m. 2nd Amended Contract w/Wave Design Group for Redesign of the Justice Center Front Entrance   

n. Contract w/On Scene Medical Services for Pre-Hire Physicals & Drug/Alcohol Testing   

o. Consultant Agreement for On-Call Surveying Services w/HLA Engineering & Land Surveying  

p. Purchase of Thermoplastic Markings From Traffic Safety Supply for Public Works  

q. First Amended Contract w/Public Safety Psychological Services for Evaluations in the Sheriff’s Office  

r. Interlocal Agreement w/City of West Richland for General Equipment and/or Services  

s. First Amendment to Contract w/Continental Door Company for Repairs on Garage Doors  

t. Moorage Agreement w/Port of Kennewick & Sheriff’s Office to a Maintain Boat Slip @ Clover Island  

u. Grant Award & Contract w/WA State Health Care Authority for Opioid Treatment Network @ the Jail 

Superior Court 

v. Agreement w/WA State Administrative Office of the Courts for Reimbursement of Interpreter Services    

 

Public Comment ~ for public engagement during Commissioners’ meetings, please use the public 

comments phone line @:   Dial:  509 460-4941 

 

Public Hearing 

 

Short Plat Vacation; SPV 2021-005 ~ M Cooke  

 

Ordinance Amendment OA 2021-004 ~ G Wendt & M Cooke 

 

Scheduled Business 

 

   Request to Extend Temporary Housing Program Navigators in Human Services ~ Tammy McKeirnan   

 

   Request to Change Assistant Planning Manager to Planning Manager ~ G Wendt   

 

Other Business   

 

Executive Session 

 

Review Qualifications of Applicant for Public Employment ~ K Ainsworth & J Shelton 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 2 of 411





 - 2 - 

h. Purchase of One PC, One Docking Station & Two Monitors for the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office 
From Dell, Inc. 

i. Purchase of One PC, One Docking Station & Two Monitors for the Sheriff’s Office From Dell, Inc. 
Juvenile 
j. Franklin County Flat Monthly Payments for 2022 Juvenile Operations and Facilities 
k. Contract w/Kathleen Moreno for Becca Docket Attorney Representation 
Public Safety 
l. Coding Correction of Funds From Current Expense, 0000-101, Dept. 121 to Public Safety Fund, 

0148-101, Dept. 121 
m. Coding Correction of Funds From Current Expense, 0000-101, Dept. 121 to Public Safety Fund, 

0148-101, Dept. 122 
Public Works 
n. Ratifying Change Order Nos. 1, 2 & 3 to Granite Construction Company’s Contract for Dallas Road 

Bike Path Project   
o. Ratifying Change Order Nos. 1 & 2 to C & E Trenching’s Contract for the Dallas Rd/Arena Rd 

Traffic Improvements Project  
p. Employment Offer for Operations Manager Position 
Purchasing 
q. Contract w/Iron Horse Vac for CatchBasin & Drywell Cleaning Services  
r. Contract w/Mel’s Inter-City Collision for As Needed Automobile Body Repair Services   
s. Agreement w/DOT for Inspection of County Owned Bridges  
t. Non-Renewal Notice to ICSolutions for Inmate Telephone Services  
Risk Management 
u. Contract w/Bock Consulting for Occupational Health Consultations 
Sheriff 
v. Contract w/Bluepearl Washington Practice Entity for Canine Surgical Veterinarian Services  
Superior Court 
w. Adoption of 2022 Percentage Rates for Salaries, Benefits, and Information Technology Assessments  
x. Adoption of 2022 Participant Position Allocation for Adult & Juvenile Drug Court Programs   

 
Unscheduled Visitors 
 
None. 
 
Line Item Transfer in Roads Department for Administrative Assistant 
 
Shela Berry, Public Works Chief Financial Officer, and County Engineer Doug D’Hondt 
indicated that the Board approved the Administrative Assistant position in Public Works on 
November 30, 2021.  Before the Board was a line item transfer that was not done previously 
approving the funds.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner McKay moved to approve the Benton County Public Works 
Department line item transfer authorizing the funds be moved from the Assistant Operations 
Manager, non-bargaining grade 19, to the Administrative Assistant, non-bargaining grade 15.  
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.  
 
2022  1-Year Road Program 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 4 of 411



 - 3 - 

County Engineer Doug D’Hondt prepared and presented the 1-Year Road Program which 
included expenditures of maintenance, administration, capital projects and equipment purchases.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner McKay moved to approve the Resolution approving the Benton 
County 2022 Annual Road Program.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion 
carried. 
 
Sponsorship Agreement With Visit Tri-Cities for the Travel Bloggers Exchange North 
America Conference 
 
Adam Fyall came before the Board to speak about an event coming to the Tri-Cities in April 
2022.  Mr. Fyall briefed the Board regarding a sponsorship proposal from Visit Tri-Cities (VTC) 
who was the lead organization hosting the Travel Bloggers Exchange North America (TBEX) 
conference.  The conference will be a network of travel and lifestyle writers/bloggers.  Mr. Fyall 
introduced Mr. Michael Novakovich and Lara Watkins with VTC who spoke in more detail 
about the Travel Bloggers Exchange.  Mr. Novakovich & Ms. Watkins spoke on the highlights 
that the Tri Cities has to offer to include Red Mountain, stem opportunities, culinary, outdoor 
recreation and reception at three different cities with TBEX expected to bring over 300 travel 
and media professionals from around the world to the Tri-Cities.  The direct economic impact 
will be substantial in regard to hotels and food with the timing being right coming out of the 
pandemic for this type of event.  Visit Tri-Cities has reached out to Benton County for a $50,000 
sponsorship for the upcoming event.   
 
Discussion:  Commissioner Small commended all involved on the level of professionalism 
moving this event forward.  Commissioner McKay indicated that he already saw the presentation 
and was excited. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner McKay moved to pass the resolution authorizing Benton County’s 
sponsorship of the TBEX North America event at the $50,000 level and directing the County 
Administrator to sign the Sponsorship Agreement with Visit Tri-Cities to put the sponsorship 
into effect.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
Other Business 
 
Commissioner McKay met with the Veterans’ Advisory Board and with Kyle Sullivan, Human 
Services Manager, last week.  He indicated that they were looking into a  joint bi-county meeting 
in January 2022 for a presentation.    
 
Commissioner Small recognized the Sheriff’s Office and their push to get more staff and looked 
forward to the team building relationship being created.   
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 12/03/2021 
Payroll Checks 
Total All Funds $2,906,444.00 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 5 of 411



 - 4 - 

Warrant #243415-243446 
Direct Deposit #167022 - 167612  
Payroll Deduction Transfers 
Total All Funds:  $2,409,771.06 
Taxes 101211201 - 101211211 
ACH #2058-2064 
 
Payroll Deduction Warrants 
Total All Funds $128,083.22 
Warrant #224683 - 224691 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2021 870 Agreement w/Benton-Franklin Community Action Committee for WA State 

Community Development Block Grant Services   
2021 871 First Amended to Agreement w/Goodwill Industries for the Treasury Rent 

Assistance Program    
2021 872 Contract w/Benton-Franklin Health District for Quarantine & Isolation Services  
2021 873  Agreement w/MRJN Associates for Employment Services  
2021 874  Equipment/Product Change Amendment w/Ricoh for Corrections Department 
2021 875   Approval of Work Order Quote From Municipal One to Add Judicial Services 

Section on Website 
2021 876   Purchase of Two PCs, Four Monitors & 2 Laptops For Human Services From 

Dell Inc. 
2021 877  Purchase of One PC, One Docking Station & Two Monitors for the Prosecuting 

Attorney’s Office From Dell, Inc. 
2021 878   Purchase of One PC, One Docking Station & Two Monitors for the Sheriff’s 

Office From Dell, Inc. 
2021 879   Franklin County Flat Monthly Payments for 2022 Juvenile Operations and 

Facilities 
2021 880   Contract w/Kathleen Moreno for Becca Docket Attorney Representation 
2021 881   Coding Correction of Funds From Current Expense, 0000-101, Dept. 121 to 

Public Safety Fund, 0148-101, Dept. 121 
2021 882   Ratifying Change Order Nos. 1, 2 & 3 to Granite Construction Company’s 

Contract for Dallas Road Bike Path Project   
2021 883   Ratifying Change Order Nos. 1 & 2 to C & E Trenching’s Contract for the Dallas 

Rd/Arena Rd Traffic Improvements Project  
2021 884   Employment Offer for Operations Manager Position 
2021 885   Contract w/Iron Horse Vac for CatchBasin & Drywell Cleaning Services  
2021 886   Contract w/Mel’s Inter-City Collision for As Needed Automobile Body Repair 

Services   
2021 887  Agreement w/DOT for Inspection of County Owned Bridges  
2021 888   Contract w/Bock Consulting for Occupational Health Consultations 
2021 889   Contract w/Bluepearl Washington Practice Entity for Canine Surgical 

Veterinarian Services  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 6 of 411



 - 5 - 

2021 890   Adoption of 2022 Percentage Rates for Salaries, Benefits, and Information 
Technology Assessments  

2021 891   Adoption of 2022 Participant Position Allocation for Adult & Juvenile Drug 
Court Programs   

2021 892  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101101, Dept. 500  
2021 893   Approving the Benton County 2022 Annual Road Program 
2021 894  Sponsorship Agreement w/Visit Tri-Cities for the Travel Bloggers Exchange 

North America Conference 
2021 895 Coding Correction of Funds From Current Expense, 0000-101, Dept. 121 to 

Public Safety Fund, 0148-101, Dept. 122 
 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:17 
a.m. 
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 7 of 411





M. Nash,  A. Hatfield, L. Roe D. Beck

RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTMENTS TO THE BENTON COUNTY ACCESSIBLE COMMUNITY 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE (ACAC), IN ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 2017-109

WHEREAS, the Benton County Accessible Community Advisory Committee (ACAC) was established by the 

Board of Commissioners on February 7, 2017, by Resolution No. 2017-109; and  

WHEREAS, due to five term expirations and one resignation there are six vacancies on the committee; and 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Auditor, as current chair of the committee, that the individuals 

listed below be appointed to the ACAC vacancies for the terms as set forth; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners hereby appoints the individuals listed, for the 

identified terms to the Benton County Accessible Community Advisory Committee (ACAC). 

Committee Member Term 

Amanda Hatfield, Elections Manager  01/01/2022-12/31/2023 

Corporal Dallas Murry, BC Corrections 01/01/2022-12/31/2023 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners hereby removes the individual listed 
from the Benton County Accessible Community Advisory Committee (ACAC) due to lack of participation. 

Committee Member Term 

Kyle Bosley, Citizen 01/01/2021-12/31/2022 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners hereby approves the reduction in 
membership size of the Benton County Accessible Advisory Committee from ten members to seven 
members to perform duties pursuant to RCW 36.01.310. 

For a point of affirmation, the following committee members are currently serving: 

Judith Davis, Citizen  01/01/2021-12/31/2022 
Gretchen Hormel, Citizen 01/01/2021-12/31/2022 
Shyanne Palmus, Commissioners’ Office 01/01/2021-12/31/2022 
Teresa Payne, Citizen 01/01/2021-12/31/2022 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 9 of 411



M. Nash,  A. Hatfield, L. Roe D. Beck

Dated this _________day of _____________________, 2021. 

_______________________________________ 

Chairman of the Board 

_______________________________________ 

Member 

_______________________________________ 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of Benton 

County, Washington  

Attest: ___________________________ 

Clerk of the Board 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 10 of 411





1

Shyanne Palmus

From: Sarah Funk <sarahfunkcpa@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 17, 2021 8:54 PM
To: Historic Preservation
Subject: [EXTERNAL]   2021 Grant extension request – Benton City Revitalization Organization

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING!!!: This email originated from outside of Benton County. DO NOT click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 
Shyanne, 

Benton City Revitalization Organization (BCRO) 2021 Kiosk plan included install kiosks along the City Walking Trail. While 
progress is advancing, based on various delays combined with the ongoing impact of COVID-19 we are seeking a one 
year extension to use the 2021 grant funds.  

These kiosk locations are on properties owned by Fish & Wildlife and leased to the City of Benton City. Part of the 
process to install the kiosks included having a cultural survey completed prior to installation. BCRO actively began 
working with Fish & Wildlife in January 2021. The cultural surveys were completed in August 2021. At the same time we 
determined the ground was too rocky to secure the kiosk posts. We  pivoted to pouring concrete and building the kiosks 
from the concrete bases.  

If I can provide additional information, please let me know. Thank you for your assistance and support.  

Best regards, 

  

Sarah Funk 
Benton City Revitalization Organization  
Secretary-Treasurer  
425-985-5760  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 12 of 411



 

Cc: Auditor; Treasurer; PA – Contract Compliance; Benton City Revitalization Organization S Palmus 

RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF FIRST AMENDMENT TO HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND BENTON CITY REVITALIZATION 

ORGANIZATION 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and GRANTEE entered into a Historic Preservation Grant Agreement per 

Resolution 2021-061 dated January 26, 2021 (the “Agreement”) regarding funds awarded pursuant 

to RCW 36.22.170(1)(a) for the promotion of historical preservation and/or historical programs in 

Benton County; and 

WHEREAS, this First Amendment to the Agreement is necessary to revise the Agreement 

termination date to allow additional time for the GRANTEE to complete the awarded project, due to 

unforeseen project delays combined with ongoing COVID-19 impacts; and 

WHEREAS, both parties have agreed to amend the Agreement termination date and that all other 

terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain the same; NOW, THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby authorizes the Chairman 

of the Board to sign the attached first grant agreement amendment; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement shall begin January 1, 2021 and expire December 

31, 2022. 

Dated this 21st day of December, 2021.  

 

_____      

Chairman of the Board 

 

      

Member 

 

      

Member 

 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 

Attest .................................................... 

       Clerk of the Board  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 13 of 411



1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

BENTON COUNTY AND BENTON CITY REVITALIZATION ORGANIZATION 

 

This Grant Agreement Amendment, made and entered into this 14th day of 

December, 2021 by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision 

of the State of Washington, with its principal offices at 620 Market 

Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter “COUNTY”), and BENTON CITY 

REVITALIZATION ORGANIZATION a Washington nonprofit corporation, with 

its principal offices at 901 Angeline Blvd, Benton City, WA 99320-5587 

(hereinafter “GRANTEE”). 

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and GRANTEE entered into a Historic Preservation Grant 

Agreement per Resolution 2021-061 dated January 26, 2021 (the 

“Agreement”) regarding funds awarded pursuant to RCW 36.22.170(1)(a) 

for the promotion of historical preservation and/or historical programs 

in Benton County; and 

WHEREAS, this First Amendment to the Agreement is necessary to revise 

the Agreement termination date to allow additional time for the GRANTEE 

to complete the awarded project, due to unforeseen project delays 

combined with ongoing COVID-19 impacts; and 

WHEREAS, both parties have agreed to amend the Agreement termination 

date; and 

WHEREAS, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain 

the same; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the provisions and agreements set 

forth herein, the parties agree that all provisions of their original 

Contract shall remain in effect except the below section, which is 

amended as follows: 

a) Section 8. TERMINATION – Unless otherwise terminated, this 

Agreement shall begin January 1, 2021 and shall expire December 

31, 2022. If either party hereto fails to comply with the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement, which includes compliance with 

the proposal set forth by GRANTEE in the application materials 

attached hereto, the other party may pursue such remedies as are 

legally available including, but not limited to the termination 

of the Agreement in the manner specified herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to this Agreement Amendment have 

executed this Amendment to take effect upon the last date signed. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 14 of 411







RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST FOR SIGNATURE FROM THE BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ON  THE  INTERAGENCY  AGREEMENT  #IAA22449  BETWEEN  BENTON  COUNTY,  BENTON  COUNTY 
DISTRICT COURT AND THE WASHINGTON ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC) will provide 
reimbursement of interpreter costs up to $48,180 from the dates commencing July 1, 2021 and 
terminating on June 30, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, Rafaela Selga, District Court Administrator, believes it is the best interest of the 
District Court that the Agreement between the State of Washington Administrative Office of the Courts 
and Benton County be approved as presented for the term commencing July 1, 2021 and terminating on 
June 30,2022;  NOW THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby accepts the proposed 
interpreter reimbursement agreement in the amount of $48,180 for the term commencing July 1, 2021 
and terminating June 30, 2022; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners is 
authorized to sign lnteragency Agreement #IAA22449 between Benton County and the State of 
Washington Administrative Offices of the Courts. 
 
DATED this ________ day of ___________________________, 2021. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Chairman of the Board 

 
______________________________________ 

Chairman Pro‐Tem 
 

______________________________________ 
Member 

 
Attest: __________________________________ 

  Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 
Of Benton County, WA 

 
 
Cc: Auditor   
      Treasurer                      RSelga 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 17 of 411



 
 
 IAA22449 Page 1 of 7 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT IAA22449 
BETWEEN 

WASHINGTON STATE ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS 
AND 

BENTON COUNTY DISTRICT COURT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is entered into by and between the Administrative Office of 
the Courts (AOC) and Benton County District Court, for the purpose of distributing funds for 
court interpreter and language access service expenses to the Benton County District Court 
(Court). 

1. DEFINITIONS 
For purposes of this contract, the following definitions shall apply:  
a) “Credentialed Interpreter” means an interpreter who is certified or registered by the 

Administrative Office of the Courts, as defined in RCW 2.43.020 (4) and RCW 
2.43.020 (6), or an interpreter certified by the Office of the Deaf and Hard of Hearing 
(ODHH) pursuant to WAC 388-818-500, et seq. 
The names and contact information of AOC-certified interpreters are found, and 
incorporated herein by reference, at 
http://www.courts.wa.gov/programs orgs/pos interpret/ 
The names and contact information of ODHH-certified interpreters are found, and 
incorporated herein by reference, at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/dshs/odhhapps/Interpreters/CourtInterpreter.aspx 

b) “Qualified Interpreter” means a spoken language interpreter as defined in RCW 
2.43.020 (2), or sign language interpreter as defined in RCW 2.42.110 (2). 

c) “Qualifying Event” means a proceeding or event for which an interpreter is appointed 
by an appointing officer pursuant to RCW 2.42 and/or RCW 2.43. 

2. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this Agreement is to partner with individual local courts in improving 
access to the Court for Limited English Proficient (LEP), deaf, and hard of hearing persons 
in accordance with RCW Chapters 2.42 and 2.43. 
These funds are intended to address each court’s following needs:  

• Financial Need 
For example, the gap between the court’s available financial resources and the costs 
to meet its need for credentialed interpreters and the implementation of the Court’s 
language access plan.  

• Need for Court Interpreters 
For example, the public’s right to access the court, and the court’s responsibility to 
provide credentialed interpreters as required by RCW Chapters 2.42 and 2.43.   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 18 of 411





 
 
 IAA22449 Page 3 of 7 

d) Staff from the Washington State Supreme Court Interpreter Commission will work 
with courts to develop and implement their LAPs, and will provide technical 
assistance and training when needed. 

5. TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS 
a) The Court shall use the Language Access Reimbursement Web Application created 

by the AOC to electronically submit quarterly data and A-19 voucher invoices for 
reimbursements. 

b) Courts submitting quarterly data and A-19 vouchers shall use one of the following 
supported web browsers: 

• MS Edge 
• Chrome 
• Firefox 

c) Network access to the Inter-Governmental Network (IGN) or VPN access to the IGN 
will be required to use the Language Access Reimbursement Web Application. 

d) JIS Court Credentials (RACF) will be required to authenticate and gain access to the 
Language Access Reimbursement Program Web Application.   

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 
The beginning date of performance under this Agreement is July 1, 2021, regardless of the 
date of execution and which shall end on June 30, 2022, Fiscal Year 2022 (FY22). 

7. COMPENSATION AND COMPENSATION PROCEDURES 
a) The Court shall be reimbursed a maximum of $48,180 for interpreter and language 

access services costs incurred during the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022, 
FY22.  

b) No reimbursement shall be made under this Agreement for language access 
services provided after June 30, 2022. 

c) The Court shall receive payment for its costs for language access services as set 
forth in Exhibit A, and incorporated herein. 

d) The Court shall only receive payment after properly submitting A-19 voucher 
invoices and corresponding data (See subsection 3b). 

e) The Court shall submit requests for reimbursements to the AOC quarterly according 
to the schedule below (see chart below). The AOC will not accept monthly requests 
for reimbursements. 

f) Requests for reimbursement must be received for review and approval by the AOC, 
pursuant to the schedule below. The AOC can refuse payment if requests for 
reimbursement are submitted after the deadlines listed below.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 20 of 411





 
 
 IAA22449 Page 5 of 7 

grant such a license.  The Court shall advise the AOC, at the time of delivery of data 
furnished under this Agreement, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained 
therein and of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance 
of this Agreement.  The AOC shall receive prompt written notice of each notice or claim of 
copyright infringement received by the Court with respect to any data delivered under this 
Agreement.  The AOC shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive markings 
placed upon the data by the Court. 

10. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY 
The employees or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this 
Agreement shall continue to be employees or agents of that party and shall not be 
considered for any purpose to be employees or agents of the other party. 

11. AGREEMENT ALTERATIONS AND AMENDMENTS  
This Agreement may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties.  Such amendments 
shall not be binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind 
each of the parties. 

12. RECORDS, DOCUMENTS, AND REPORTS 
The Court shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence of accounting 
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 
of any nature expended in the performance of this Agreement.  These records shall be 
subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by personnel duly authorized 
by the AOC, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal officials so authorized by law, rule, 
regulation, or Agreement.  The Court will retain all books, records, documents, and other 
material relevant to this Agreement for six years after settlement, and make them available 
for inspection by persons authorized under this provision. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION 
The Court shall provide right of access to its facilities to the AOC, or any of its officers, or 
to any other authorized agent or official of the state of Washington of the federal 
government at all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, 
compliance, and/or quality assurance under this Agreement.   

14. DISPUTES  
Disputes arising under this Agreement shall be resolved by a panel consisting of one 
representative from the AOC, one representative from the Court, and a mutually agreed 
upon third party.  The dispute panel shall thereafter decide the dispute with the majority 
prevailing.  Neither party shall have recourse to the courts unless there is a showing of 
noncompliance or waiver of this section.   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 22 of 411



 
 
 IAA22449 Page 6 of 7 

15. TERMINATION  
Either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other 
party.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance 
rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the 
effective date of termination.  

16. GOVERNANCE  
This Agreement is entered into pursuant to and under the authority granted by the laws of 
the state of Washington and any applicable federal laws.  The provisions of this 
Agreement shall be construed to conform to those laws. 
In the event of an inconsistency in the terms of this Agreement, or between its terms and 
any applicable statute or rule, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in 
the following order:  

• Applicable state and federal statutes and rules; 
• This Agreement; and  
• Any other provisions of the agreement, including materials incorporated by 

reference.   

17. ASSIGNMENT 
The work to be provided under this Agreement, and any claim arising hereunder, is not 
assignable or delegable by either party in whole or in part, without the express prior written 
consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

18. WAIVER  
A failure by either party to exercise its rights under this Agreement shall not preclude that 
party from subsequent exercise of such rights and shall not constitute a waiver of any 
other rights under this Agreement unless stated to be such in a writing signed by an 
authorized representative of the party and attached to the original Agreement.  

19. SEVERABILITY  
If any provision of this Agreement, or any provision of any document incorporated by 
reference shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this 
Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provision and to this end the 
provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable.  

  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 23 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 24 of 411



Page 1 of 3 

EXHIBIT A 

WASHINGTON STATE LANGUAGE ACCESS INTERPRETER REIMBURSEMENT 
PROGRM FUNDING 

FUNDING CONDITIONS AND PAYMENT STRUCTURE 
The Language Access Reimbursement Program funding conditions and payment structure 
shall be as follows:   

1. GENERAL FUNDING CONDITIONS
The Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC), will reimburse courts under this 
Agreement for the cost of spoken language interpretation and sign language 
interpretation and other goods and services that improve language access in the courts 
for Limited English Proficient (LEP), deaf, and hard of hearing persons. This includes 
interpreters credentialed by AOC (certified or registered), or otherwise court-qualified 
interpreters appointed pursuant to RCW 2.42 and RCW 2.43 under the following 
conditions listed under Section 2 “Qualifying Interpreter Events.”
It also includes goods and services that improve language access, listed under Section 
3 “Language Access Items,” and services listed under Section 4 “Language Access 
Services”.
Courts shall work with AOC staff in determining whether an expense that is not explicitly 
mentioned below, qualifies as a reimbursable expense under the Agreement.

2. QUALIFYING INTERPRETING EVENTS
A. Spoken Language Interpreters Qualifying Events

AOC will reimburse courts under this Agreement for the cost of appointing AOC-
credentialed or otherwise court-qualified interpreters pursuant to RCW 2.43 that 
meet one of the following conditions:

a) If there is at least one AOC credentialed interpreter in the language being 
used then reimbursement will only be provided for using an AOC credentialed 
interpreter who is credentialed in that language.

b) Compensation for interpreters for languages for which neither a certified 
interpreter nor registered interpreter is offered will be reimbursed where the 
interpreter has been qualified on the record pursuant to RCW 2.43.

c) Courts will not be reimbursed for events using non-AOC credentialed 
interpreters if there is one or more AOC credentialed interpreter listed for the 
language being used.

B. Sign Language Interpreters Qualifying Events
AOC will reimburse courts for 50% of the actual expenses for services of American 
Sign Language (ASL) interpreters and Certified Deaf Interpreters (CDI) pursuant to 
RCW 2.42 when the interpreter is listed with the Department of Social and Health 
Services, Office of Deaf and Hard of Hearing (DSHS, ODHH) as a court-certified 
interpreter.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 25 of 411



Page 2 of 3 

The Office of Deaf and Hard of Hearing (ODHH) at the Department of Social and 
Health Services (DSHS) maintains a list of Certified Court Sign Language 
Interpreters. This list includes American Sign Language (ASL) interpreters and 
Certified Deaf Interpreters (CDI). To qualify for reimbursement, and event using an 
ASL and/or CDI interpreter from this list must be used.  
Certified interpreters are listed under three categories: 

• Specialist Certificate: Legal – SC: L 
• RID Certification with SC: L written test 
• Intermediary Interpreters (Deaf Interpreter) 

The most up to date list can be found here: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/dshs/odhhapps/Interpreters/CourtInterpreter.aspx 

C. Staff Interpreters (Salaried Staff) 
Reimbursement will be provided for salaried staff meeting the Qualifying Event 
conditions for the payment of credentialed spoken and sign language interpreters, as 
referenced in subsections 2.A and 2.B above. 

D. Telephonic and Video Remote Interpreting and Services Outside of the 
Courtroom  
AOC will reimburse local jurisdictions for using certified, registered, or otherwise 
qualified interpreters operating by telephone or video for court proceedings and 
other services provided to the public by the Court. The services must meet the 
Qualifying Event conditions for the payment of credentialed spoken and sign 
language interpreters, as referenced in subsections 2.A and 2.B above.  

3. LANGUAGE ACCESS GOODS AND SERVICES 
Courts can request reimbursement for the cost of goods and services that will help 
increase language access in the Court.  
The items listed below are common goods and services that courts have used to 
increase language access and will be improved for reimbursement.  

• Interpreter scheduling software or services 
• Document translation  
• Portable video device(s) for video remote interpreting  
• Equipment used for simultaneous interpretation 
• Printed signage for language assistance purposes 
• Staff training on language access, interpreting, or bilingual skills improvement, for 

example: 
o Interpreters skills training for bilingual staff who want to become certified 
o Training for staff who are partly bilingual to improve their skills 
o General training on addressing language access issues.  

Other examples can be found here: 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 26 of 411



Page 3 of 3 

https://www.nmcenterforlanguageaccess.org/cms/en/courts- agencies/about-language-
access-basic-training 
Items or services not listed above must be pre-approved (via email) by Language 
Access Interpreter Reimbursement Program staff prior to purchase or they may not 
qualify for reimbursement under the Program.  

4. SCOPE OF REIMBURSEMENT FUNDING 
Reimbursement payment under this Agreement will only be made to the Court when the 
cost is paid out of the budget or budgets, in the case of multi-court collaborative 
applicants of the Court responsible for full payment.  

5. PAYMENT STRUCTURE 
A. Reimbursement Rate  

a) Spoken Language Interpreters   
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of the cost of AOC certified, registered, 
or otherwise court-qualified interpreters providing services under this 
Agreement.  

b) Sign Language Interpreters  
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of the cost of certified and court-qualified 
interpreters providing services under this Agreement. 

c) Staff Interpreters (Salaried Staff) 
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of the cost of staff interpreters. 

d) Contracted Interpreters  
The cost of contract interpreters who are paid other than on an hourly basis, for 
example, on a half-day of flat rate basis, will be reimbursed at 50%.  

e) Remote Interpreting 
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of the cost of using certified, registered, 
or otherwise qualified interpreters providing interpretation by telephone or 
video.   

f) Cancellation Fees 
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of cancellation fees paid to interpreter.  

B. Travel Time and Mileage 
AOC will reimburse the Court at 50% of the cost of interpreter travel time and 
mileage. 
Interpreter travel time is reimbursable if a required party fails to appear. “Failure to 
appear” means a non-appearance by the LEP or deaf or hard of hearing client, 
attorneys, witnesses, or any necessary party to a hearing, thereby necessitating a 
cancellation or continuance of the hearing. The Court can be reimbursed for 50% of 
the cancellation fees paid to the interpreter.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 27 of 411





cc:  Payroll & HR                         Prepared by: L. Wingfield 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 

IN THE MATTER OF ESTABLISHING A BENTON COUNTY NON-BARGAINING EMPLOYEES AND 
ELECTED OFFICIAL CONTRIBUTION TO INSURANCE BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR 2022. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners has determined that the Benton County Non-

Bargaining employees and Elected Officials monthly contribution for 2022 will be $1,119.60; THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners has determined that the monthly 

contribution for Benton County Non-Bargaining employees and Elected Officials insurance benefits will be 

$1,119.60 per month effective January 1, 2022; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it is mandatory that Benton County non-bargaining employees and Elected 
Officials be enrolled in the offered medical, dental, vision, and $24,000 life insurance plan, to receive the monthly 
County contribution; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any unused portion of the County contribution available above for the 
mandated County’s medical, dental, vision, and life insurance premiums may be applied to the purchase of 
supplemental group insurance, dependent coverage, and with any remainder deposited into the employee’s or 
Elected Official’s VEBA account; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that provisions in any prior resolution on this subject are superseded by similar 
provisions in this Resolution and this Resolution may be rescinded or modified, at the sole discretion of the Board 
of Benton County Commissioners without notification; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution is not intended nor shall be interpreted as limiting or 
compromising the County’s “at will” employer status; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, in the event of a conflict with prevailing law, law shall prevail. 

 

Dated this________________ day of ________________, 2021. 

________________________                

Chairman of the Board 

 

________________________ 

Member 

 

________________________ 

   Member  

                  

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 

Attest....................................................... 

                    Clerk of the Board 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 29 of 411





cc:  BC Payroll, BC HR, FC Human Resources                         Prepared by: L. Wingfield 

JOINT RESOLUTION 
 

BENTON COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 

FRANKLIN COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 

 

BEFORE THE BOARDS OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON AND FRANKLIN COUNTIES, WASHINGTON 

 

IN THE MATTER OF ESTABLISHING A BI-COUNTY NON-BARGAINING CONTRIBUTION TO INSURANCE 
BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR 2022. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners and the Board of Franklin County Commissioners has 

determined that the Bi-County Non-Bargaining, comprised of non-bargaining employees in Superior Court and 

Juvenile Justice, monthly contribution for 2022 will be $1,047.79; THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners and Board of Franklin County 

Commissioners have determined that the monthly contribution for Bi-County Non-Bargaining insurance 

benefits will be $1,047.79 per month effective January 1, 2022; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it is mandatory that Bi-County non-bargaining employees be enrolled in the 
offered medical, dental, vision, and $24,000 life insurance plan, to receive the monthly County contribution; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any unused portion of the County contribution available above for the 
mandated medical, dental, vision, and life insurance premiums may be applied to the purchase of supplemental 
group insurance, dependent coverage, and with any remainder deposited into the employee’s VEBA account; 
and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that provisions in any prior resolution on this subject are superseded by similar 
provisions in this Resolution and this Resolution may be rescinded or modified, at the sole discretion of the Board 
of Benton County Commissioners and Board of Franklin County Commissioners without notification; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution is not intended nor shall be interpreted as limiting or 
compromising the County’s “at will” employer status; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, in the event of a conflict with prevailing law, law shall prevail. 

Dated this_______ day of December, 2021. 

Board of Benton County Commissioners 
 
________________________                
Chairman of the Board 
 

________________________ 
Member 
 

________________________ 
Member  
                  

Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 
 

 

Dated this_______ day of December, 2021. 

Board of Benton County Commissioners 
 
________________________                
Chairman of the Board 
 

________________________ 
Member 
 

________________________ 
Member  
                  

Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 
 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 31 of 411





Orig: Information Technology  

cc: Auditor, Office of Public Defense 

Prepared by: R. Heard 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING A THREE-YEAR SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL TO USE 

LEGALSERVER A WEB-BASED CASE MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING SYSTEM FROM PS 

TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 

 

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2019, per Resolution 2019-943, the Board approved the initial subscription 

to use LegalServer for three-years; and  

 

WHEREAS, LegalServer is still providing high quality services to the Office of Public Defense (OPD); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Information Technology recommends renewing a three-year subscription with LegalServer 

extending OPD’s use of LegalServer public defender case management and reporting system; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department has reviewed this purchase and found it complies with the 

Procurement, Leasing, and Contracting Policy; NOW, THEREFORE  

 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, hereby 

concurs with Information Technology’s recommendation and approves a three-year subscription for 

LegalServer a web-based case management and reporting system from PS Technologies, Inc.; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board approves the Chairman of the Board to sign the attached PS 

Technologies, Inc. Quote; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, upon Chairman of the Board signature, LegalServer costs will not exceed 

$1,000 per year excluding Washington State Sales Tax (WSST) during the approved three-year term.  
 

 

Dated this 21 day of December , 2021  

  

  

 Chairman of the Board 

  

  

 Member 

  

  

 Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 

Attest:   of Benton County, Washington 

 Clerk of the Board 
 

 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 33 of 411



Jerome Delvin

Chairman, Board of Benton County Commissioners

December 21, 2021

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 34 of 411





Orig: Information Technology  

cc: Auditor, Risk Management  

Prepared by: R. Heard 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING AN ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION FOR NEXTREQUEST 

PUBLIC RECORDS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM FROM SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP. 

 

WHEREAS, on July 28, 2020, Resolution 2020-504 authorized the Chairman of the Board to execute an 

agreement with Sourcewell a cooperative purchasing contract that helps local agencies reduce costs when 

purchasing goods and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, SHI International Corp. is a Sourcewell authorized vendor under contract number 081419-

SHI; and 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 42.56, Public Records Act requires that all public records maintained by Benton County 

be made available to all members of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 24, 2020, the Board approved the initial subscription to use NextRequest for 

twelve months; and  
 
WHEREAS, this past year, Benton County has fully implemented NextRequest and is now being used by 

every Benton County Public Records Officer; and 
 
WHEREAS, to continue to better assist the County’s public records officers, public citizens and reduce 

risk, Information Technology recommends renewing the annual subscription for NextRequest public 

records management system, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department has reviewed this purchase and found it complies with 

Procurement, Leasing, and Contracting Policy; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, hereby 

concurs with Information Technology’s recommendation and approves the annual subscription for 

NextRequest public records management system from SHI International Corp. until October 30, 2023, in 

an amount not to exceed $35,000 per year excluding Washington State Sales Tax (WSST). 
 

 
Dated this 21 day of December , 2021  

  

  

 Chairman of the Board 

  

  

 Member 

  

  

 Member 

 

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 

Attest:   of Benton County, Washington 

 Clerk of the Board 

 

 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 36 of 411



  

  

   

  

   

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

      

  

    

   

     

 

    

 

  

   

     

 

    

 

   

   

     

 

    

 

     

   

     

 

    

 

   

   

     

  

   

 

           

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 37 of 411



 

                 

                     

                    

                

                  

         

                    

   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 38 of 411





cc: Originals – OPD, Sylvia Garza  E. Hsu 
      Copy – Auditor, S Godinez 

 RESOLUTION 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON  
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING A PUBLIC DEFENSE INTERPRETING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH INTERPRETER SYLVIA GARZA, dba COLUMBIA BASIN INTERPRETING/TRANSLATION 
SERVICES, LLC FOR BENTON COUNTY SUPERIOR AND DISTRICT COURT PUBLIC DEFENSE 
CASES 
      
WHEREAS, Benton County (“County”) is obligated by law to provide indigent defense services in 
Benton County  Superior  and District Courts (“Services”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in the course of providing Services, County’s public defense attorneys sometimes have 
a need to interact with mono-lingual, Spanish-speaking clients and witnesses and therefore require 
the assistance of court-certified interpreters in the Spanish language (“PD Interpreting”); and 
 
WHEREAS, interpreter Sylvia Garza (“Interpreter”) is qualified to provide PD Interpreting services and 
interested in entering into a contract with County for same; and  
 
WHEREAS, a proposed PD Interpreting agreement with interpreter Sylvia Garza for Services is 
presented for execution by the Board of Commissioners; NOW,  THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the proposed agreement with interpreter Sylvia Garza, dba Columbia Basin 
Interpreting/Translation Services, LLC to provide PD Interpreting services to support public defenders 
with cases in Benton County Superior and District Courts, designated BCINT2223SG001, 
commencing 01/01/22 to 12/31/23, for a flat fee of $1400 per month for up to 20 hours of services and 
$70 per hour for hours beyond that maximum, plus other allowable expenses, premiums, and fees as 
detailed, is hereby approved and executed on behalf of Benton County. 

 
Dated this ________ day of  ________________ 20 ______  

 
 
        ________________________________

             Chairman of the Board 
 
        ________________________________

                                    Member 
 
        ________________________________

                                    Member 
                                                                                                            Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
                                                                                                                             of Benton County, Washington 
Attest: ___________________________      

        Clerk of the Board 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 40 of 411





 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 2 of 11 
 

OPD for public defense services, and at various locations in the field as necessary for 
individual cases and witnesses.  Nothing stated by County, within, or outside of this 
Agreement, shall be interpreted as the County expressing any preference as to 
Interpreter’s office location or directing that work be done in any particular place.   

3. INTERPRETER’S QUALIFICATIONS.  Interpreter acknowledges and 
agrees that the County has an obligation to provide competent and effective legal defense 
services to indigent persons subject to criminal proceedings in the Courts.  Interpreter 
shall perform all services hereunder in strict accordance with the usual skills and 
professional ethical standards exercised by Interpreters engaged in providing interpreting 
services for use in official court proceedings and legal proceedings,   acknowledges and 
agrees that Interpreter has a fundamental duty and responsibility to effectively promote 
and protect the best interests and rights of all persons whom Interpreter is assigned to 
assist under this Agreement. 

a. As of the date of this Agreement, Interpreter represents and warrants 
that Interpreter is court certified for interpreting in the Spanish language by 
Washington State Administrative Office of the Courts, has had at least one (1) year 
of direct experience in providing interpreting services for use in legal proceedings; 
has not been a party to an agreement to provide criminal defense-related 
Interpreter services that was terminated due to Interpreter’s conduct, errors, or 
omissions; has not been censured, admonished, or otherwise formally disciplined 
for past conduct or behavior as a Interpreter that would negatively reflect on 
Interpreter’s duty and ability to effectively and competently render services 
hereunder; and does not have any complaints or lawsuits filed and/or pending 
against him/her relating to, or arising from, Interpreter’s past conduct or behavior 
as a Interpreter.  

b. To comply with the provisions of RCW 72.05.440, WAC 388-700-
0010, and RCW 13.40.570, Interpreter acknowledges and agrees that the County 
may conduct criminal history background check(s) on Interpreter.  Interpreter 
acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement shall be deemed immediately and 
automatically terminated upon the County receiving a non-complying or otherwise 
unsatisfactory criminal history background check report. 

c. Interpreter represents and warrants that, throughout the entire term 
of this Agreement, Interpreter’s client caseload on matters outside of this 
Agreement; Interpreter’s schedule; and Interpreter’s office resources, equipment, 
and support staff (if applicable); will allow Interpreter to competently undertake and 
effectively perform all services required under this Agreement.   

4. RESERVED.  This section is not applicable but has been retained for 
numbering consistency.  

5. CASE ASSIGNMENTS.  During the term of this Agreement, Interpreter 
agrees to and shall accept assignments to provide Interpreting Services for indigent 
persons (regardless of their race, color, national origin, age, sex, marital status, sexual 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 42 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 3 of 11 
 

orientation, handicap/disability, personal background, creed, or political or religious 
affiliation) on any matter in the Courts in which publicly-provided legal defense services 
are furnished or required by law.  For each case assigned hereunder, Interpreter shall 
provide interpreting services as directed by the attorney of record or designee.  
Specifically, Interpreter shall provide criminal defense interpreting services of the same 
quality as Interpreter provides to private clients. Interpreting Services shall be defined as: 
a) assisting public defense attorneys with communicating with/interviewing their clients or 
witnesses in criminal defense cases; or b) providing interpreting services to facilitate a 
mental health evaluation under RCW 10.77, any other mental health evaluation to assist 
in the defense of a public defense case, or any other type of evaluations (for instance sex 
offender evaluations) to assist in the defense of a public defense case; c) assisting public 
defense investigators with investigative interviews in support of a public defense case.  

Interpreter shall accept assignments for Interpreting Services, pursuant to this 
Agreement, in the following manner:  

a) Contract and staff public defenders (“Requesting Attorney”) or assigned public 
defense investigators (“Investigators”) shall contact Interpreter directly, via 
phone, text message, or email, requesting interpreting services. The 
Requesting Attorney or Investigator shall coordinate with Interpreter regarding 
scheduling of needed interpreting services. 

b) Requesting Attorneys and Investigators shall provide Interpreter with the 
following information about each interpreting engagement: 

a. Case name 

b. Case number 

c. Nature of engagement  

c) Interpreter shall keep a record of all interpreting engagements including, at 
least the following: 

a. Case name 

b. Case number 

c. Date of service 

d. Length of service (rounded up to the nearest 30 minute increment) 

e. Nature of service  

f. General location (eg. In the jail, in the courthouse, at attorney’s office, 
etc) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 43 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 4 of 11 
 

d) No later than 15 days after the end of each month, Interpreter shall provide a 
report to the County’s Office of Public Defense, in a form prescribed by said 
Office, of all cases, including all the details required in Section 5c), for all 
interpreting engagements for the prior month that falls under the Flat Fee 
Compensation limit (i.e. up to 20 hours of interpreting services for the month) 

e) Interpreter shall be expected to be generally available pursuant to the following 
schedule though occasional conflicting obligations are to be expected: 

 Mondays from 4-7 pm 

 Tuesdays from 3-7 pm 

 Wednesdays from 11 am to 1 PM 

 Thursdays from 3-7 pm 

 Fridays from 10am to 12 pm and from 3-7 pm 

 Saturdays from 8 am to noon 

 Interpreter generally will not be available on any federal holidays 

County shall communicate this availability schedule to its public defense 
attorneys and public defense investigators. Interpreter may modify this schedule with 
advance written notice to County but shall not significantly reduce her amount of weekly 
availability without conferring with the PDM.  

6. RESERVED. - This section is not applicable but has been retained for 
numbering consistency.  

7. CLIENT ELIGIBILITY.  The Courts (or designee), consistent with applicable 
laws, rules and standards, shall determine the eligibility of any particular person for 
assistance by Interpreter under this Agreement.  Interpreter shall have no obligation to 
inquire into, or question, the status or eligibility of a client in any public defense case to 
which she has been assigned.   

8. RESERVED This section is not applicable but has been retained for 
numbering consistency.  

9. COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT. 

Interpreter’s compensation shall consist of the following: 

a) Monthly Flat Fee. A monthly flat fee of $1,400 for up to 20 hours of interpreting 
services rendered.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 44 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 5 of 11 
 

b) Excess Hours. If Interpreter provides in excess of 20 hours of interpreting services 
in any given month, then Interpreter may claim excess compensation in the amount 
of $70 per hour.  

The following additional terms shall apply to Interpreter’s compensation: 

i) The calculation of hours for purposes of Interpreter’s flat fee maximum monthly 
hours, shall be in increments of 30 minutes, rounded up to the next increment. 

ii) Interpreter shall be paid the monthly flat fee each month this agreement is in 
effect, regardless of whether or not Interpreter’s total hours of interpreting 
services rendered in any given month actually reaches the maximum of 20 
hours. 

iii) Billing for interpreting services hours beyond 20 in any given month shall be 
subject to a one-hour minimum and then billed in 30-minute increments 
thereafter. 

iv) Payment of the monthly flat fee shall be made to Interpreter on the last business 
day of each month without a need for Interpreter to invoice said amount. 
Provided, however, that payment is conditioned upon Interpreter being current 
in providing caseload reporting as required by Section 5c) and, if such reporting 
is not made as required, compensation may be withheld until it is so provided. 

v) Compensation for Excess Hours shall not be due and payable until Interpreter 
submits a Claim for Compensation and detailed invoice, listing the date, case 
name, case number, public defender, hours, and nature of interpreting services 
provided, for each interpreting engagement. County will compensate 
Interpreter for Excess Hours within 30 days of invoice.  

vi) If Interpreter is required to travel outside of the tri-cities metropolitan area, then 
Interpreter shall be entitled to mileage at the then-current GSA rate, starting at 
the Benton County courthouse and the travel time may be considered either as 
time toward Interpreter’s 20 hours per month (for the Flat Fee portion of 
Interpreter’s compensation) or as Excess Hours that may be billed separately. 
Travel within the tri-cities metropolitan area shall not be compensable for 
mileage but may be billable as interpreting time as appropriate.   

10. INDEMNIFICATIONS AND HOLD HARMLESS.  Interpreter agrees to and 
shall fully indemnify the County and its elected/appointed representatives, officers, 
employees, and agents; and to hold the County and its elected/appointed 
representatives, officers, employees, and agents fully harmless; from and for any and all 
losses, damages, costs, charges, claims, demands, suits, or actions of whatsoever nature 
directly or indirectly arising out of or by reason of Interpreter’s (or any person, employee, 
agent, contractor, or entity acting for or on behalf of Interpreter or at Interpreter’s request 
or direction) acts, defaults, errors and/or omissions of whatsoever nature in the 
performance of interpreting services for any person under this Agreement.  In the event 
any suit or legal proceeding is brought against the County or any of its elected/appointed 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 45 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 6 of 11 
 

representatives, officers, employees or agents at any time on account of or by reason of 
any such acts, defaults, errors and/or omissions, Interpreter hereby covenants and 
agrees to assume the defense thereof (through counsel acceptable to the County) and to 
defend the same at Interpreter’s sole cost and expense and to pay any and all costs, 
charges, attorneys’ fees, and other expenses as well as any and all judgments or awards 
that may be incurred by or entered against the County or any of its elected/appointed 
representatives, officers, employees or agents in such suits or other legal proceedings.  
Without limiting the intended broad scope and application of the indemnification and hold 
harmless provisions of this paragraph, for purposes of this paragraph, Interpreter waives, 
with respect to the County only, any immunity that would otherwise be available to 
Interpreter under the Industrial Insurance Act provisions of Title 51 RCW or any other 
similar workers/employee disability or benefit law.  The indemnification and hold harmless 
provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

11. INSURANCE.   

a. Interpreter shall obtain and maintain, at Interpreter’s sole cost and 
expense, a policy of professional liability or errors and omissions insurance 
suitable for Interpreter’s profession, in the amount of no less than  $250,000 per 
claim nor less than $250,000 in the aggregate during the policy term and with a 
maximum deductible of not more than $10,000.00. 

(i) Said policy shall include coverage as an additional insured for 
any other person(s) acting for or on behalf of Interpreter in the performance 
of this Agreement; shall provide professional liability insurance coverage 
for any acts, errors and/or omissions by Interpreter (and/or such additional 
insureds) during the course of performing services under this Agreement; 
shall require that the insurance company provide the County with no less 
than thirty (30) days prior written notice in the event the policy is cancelled 
or materially altered; shall comply with all applicable state of Washington 
insurance requirements; and shall be issued by an insurance company 
rated A- or better by A.M. Best authorized to conduct business and issue 
insurance in the state of Washington. 

(iii) Interpreter shall continuously maintain the professional 
liability insurance coverage required by this paragraph throughout the entire 
term of this Agreement, throughout any other longer time period during 
which Interpreter is obligated to continue performing services and duties 
hereunder, and for a period of no less than thirty-six (36) consecutive 
months after Interpreter has fully completed all services and duties required 
hereunder. 

c. Contemporaneously with Interpreter’s execution of this Agreement, 
Interpreter shall provide the County and its designated Risk Manager(s) with 
copies or certificates of the insurance policies and coverage (including any 
endorsements) required under this paragraph 11, and Interpreter shall annually 
provide the Risk Manager(s) with the same type of documented proof and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 46 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 7 of 11 
 

confirmation that such insurance policies and coverage continue to exist no later 
than thirty (30) days after the policies’ annual renewal date(s). 

12. TERMINATION. 

a. In addition to any automatic termination provisions set forth in this 
Agreement, the County may elect to terminate this Agreement in the event 
Interpreter fails for whatever reason to comply with any provision of this Agreement 
after giving Interpreter ten (10) business days advance written notice to cure, 
which notice shall specify the reason(s) for the notice, the act(s) necessary to cure 
Interpreter’s failure(s), and the consequence (i.e., termination without further 
notice) if the failure(s) is/are not cured within the ten (10) day period.  The County’s 
right to terminate this Agreement in such regard shall be in addition to any other 
rights and remedies available to the County. 

b. In addition to the foregoing provisions regarding termination, either 
Interpreter or the County may elect to terminate this Agreement with or without 
cause or reason by providing the other party with ninety (90) days advance written 
notice of such election.  Without limiting/waiving other provisions of this Agreement 
relating to Interpreter’s obligation and duty to accept and complete cases assigned 
to Interpreter, Interpreter shall not be assigned to any new cases during the last 
thirty (30) calendar days of said ninety (90) day notice period.   

13. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Interpreter fully understands, 
acknowledges, and agrees that Interpreter shall not be an agent, representative, or 
employee of the County or the Courts for any type of purpose or situation whatsoever 
(including, without limitation, for purposes of any type of wage, hours/overtime, 
workers/industrial insurance compensation, unemployment, fair labor, and/or employee 
benefit/leave laws, disability act coverage or rules, and/or regulations) and that 
Interpreter, as of the date of this Agreement and throughout its entire term, is and will 
always be acting and operating as a fully independent contractor.  In that regard, strictly 
subject to Interpreter’s duties, responsibilities and obligations imposed under this 
Agreement, Interpreter shall have sole and absolute discretion using Interpreter’s best 
professional judgment to determine the manner and means of providing the interpreting 
services required under this Agreement; and neither the County, the PDM, nor the Courts 
shall have any authority or duty to directly control the actual performance of Interpreter’s 
services hereunder. 

14. NON-ASSIGNMENT; MILITARY LEAVE.  Interpreter may sub-contract with 
another interpreter who is court-certified by Washington administrative office of the courts 
in the Spanish language on an occasional and infrequent basis to provide coverage in 
case of illness, unavailability, conflicting schedules, or vacation. If Interpreter sub-
contracts with another interpreter, Interpreter remains fully responsible for the services 
being provided.  In the event Interpreter is called up for active military duty or for direct 
civilian support of active military operations, Interpreter shall provide the County and the 
PDM with written notice of such event within five (5) business days of Interpreter being 
called up so that the PDM and Interpreter can coordinate and arrange for an appropriate 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 47 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 8 of 11 
 

substitute to handle Interpreter’s duties under this Agreement while Interpreter is on 
military leave and any reasonable back-to-civilian-life transition time requested by 
Interpreter upon return.  Interpreter shall receive no compensation under this Agreement 
while on leave or during any such transition time. 

15. VACANCY AND REPLACEMENT.  In the event this Agreement is 
terminated by either party prior to the termination date specified in paragraph 1 above, 
the County may initiate, implement and pursue any actions or process deemed 
appropriate/necessary to seek, select, and contract with another qualified Interpreter to 
replace and succeed Interpreter in providing interpreting services to indigent persons in 
the Courts. 

16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire integrated 
agreement and understanding of the undersigned parties.  No amendment, modification 
or other type of change to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless reduced to 
writing and signed by the parties.  
 

17. CAPTIONS; TIME COMPUTATION. 

a. The captions and headings herein are for convenience only and shall 
not be relied upon or used to interpret or construe this Agreement or any portion 
thereof. 

b. Unless otherwise expressly specified herein, any period of time 
specified in this Agreement shall expire at 5:00 p.m. (PST) of the last calendar day 
of the specified period of time, unless the last day is Saturday, Sunday, or a legal 
holiday, as prescribed in RCW 1.16.050, in which event the specified period of time 
shall expire at 5:00 p.m. (PST) of the next business day.  Unless otherwise expressly 
specified herein as being business days only, any period of time specified in this 
Agreement shall mean and be calculated to include calendar days. 

18. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be exclusively construed under 
and interpreted consistent with the laws of the state of Washington. 

19. BINDING EFFECT.  Strictly subject to the above restrictions against 
assignment, subcontracting, or delegation, this Agreement shall be binding upon 
Interpreter’s heirs, legal/personal representatives, successors, and assigns. 

20. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any one or more provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall, for whatever reason, be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision(s) shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall 
nevertheless be construed and enforced as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision(s) were not contained herein. 

21. NON-WAIVER.  A party’s express or implied consent to or waiver of any 
breach or default by the other party in the performance of such other party’s obligations 
hereunder shall not be deemed or construed to be a consent to or waiver of any other 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 48 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 9 of 11 
 

breach or default in the performance by such other party of the same obligations or any 
other obligation(s) of such other party hereunder.   

22. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. 

a. In the event any type of dispute arises between the parties involving 
the performance or interpretation of this Agreement, and assuming that the parties 
are unable to resolve such dispute within a reasonable time after it arises, the 
parties agree that the dispute shall be submitted to mediation through the 
assistance of an experienced mediator chosen by mutual agreement between the 
parties.  The County shall pay one-half of the mediator's fees and expenses, and 
Interpreter shall pay the other one-half of such fees and expenses. 

b. In the event that mediation proves unsuccessful in resolving the 
dispute, the parties shall submit the dispute for resolution via binding arbitration 
pursuant to RCW Chapter 7.04A.  A single arbitrator shall be selected by 
agreement of the parties or, in the absence of agreement, each party shall select 
one (1) arbitrator and those two (2) so selected arbitrators shall mutually select a 
third arbitrator.  The County shall pay one-half of the fees and expenses of the 
arbitrator(s), and Interpreter shall pay the other one-half of such fees and 
expenses.  The provisions of RCW Chapter 7.04A and applicable Mandatory 
Arbitration Rules as adopted and implemented in Superior Court shall be binding 
as to procedure, except as to the right of appeal, which shall not be applicable.  
Within ten (10) business days of notice of arbitration, the arbitrator(s) shall be 
selected and designated and the hearing shall be held within thirty (30) business 
days thereafter.  The arbitrator(s) shall render a written decision and award within 
ten (10) business days of such hearing.  Without limitation, the arbitrator(s) may 
award damages, specific performance, and/or injunctive relief, and may register a 
judgment in Benton County Superior Court, including judgment by default.  The 
most prevailing party shall be entitled to recover such party’s reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses from the other party as a part of the arbitration 
decision and award.  In the event of suit or action to enforce an arbitration award, 
venue shall lie exclusively in Benton County Superior Court, and the most 
prevailing party in such suit or action shall be entitled to recover such party’s 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses from the other party. 

23. NOTICES. 

a. Any notices required or permitted to be given by Interpreter to Benton 
County under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered 
to the Benton County Board of Commissioners or mailed to the Benton County 
Board of Commissioners via certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, at the Board’s 
following address: 

Benton County Board of Commissioners 
620 Market St. 

Prosser, WA 99350 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 49 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 10 of 11 
 

With a mandatory complete copy of any such notices to also be provided to: 

Eric Hsu 
Public Defense Manager 

Benton Office of Public Defense 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

b. Any notices required or permitted to be given by the County to 
Interpreter under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally 
delivered to Interpreter or mailed to Interpreter via certified U.S. mail, postage 
prepaid, at Interpreter’s office address specified and set forth in paragraph 2.a 
above. 

c. Any notices under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been 
duly given, made and received when personally delivered against receipt or when 
duly deposited in the U.S. mail in compliance with the provisions of this paragraph.  
A party may change the address(es) to which notices or copies thereof are to be 
sent by giving notice of such change of address in conformity with the provisions 
of this paragraph for the giving of notice. 

d. For purposes of clarity, whenever the terms of this Agreement 
require Interpreter to provide “the County” with certain information or notice, such 
information or notice shall be provided to the County’s Board of Commissioners or 
the Board’s designee unless this Agreement expressly mandates that such 
information or notice also be provided to some other person/entity. 

24. LEGAL COMPLIANCE.  Interpreter agrees to and shall strictly follow and 
comply with any and all federal, state, local, and administrative laws, rules, and 
regulations applicable to Interpreter’s pursuit and performance of activities and services 
under this Agreement.  Without limitation in that regard, Interpreter shall timely and fully 
pay all applicable taxes, fees, licenses, and other payments required by law; and 
Interpreter shall fully comply with any and all anti-discrimination laws and policies 
including, without limitation, the County’s policies that no person will be subjected to 
discrimination by the County or its contractors based on race, color, national origin, age, 
sex, marital status, sexual orientation, handicap/disability, personal background, creed, 
or political or religious affiliation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into and executed this 
Agreement on the date set forth below. 
 
 
 
 
 

[**SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE**] 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 50 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 11 of 11 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into and executed this 
Agreement on the date set forth below. 

 
 

Interpreter 
Benton County Office of Public Defense – Approved as to 

Form and Content 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Sylvia Garza                                                      Date Eric Hsu                                           Date 

  
 BENTON COUNTY APPROVAL 

 

 
 
By:       
Title:   Chairman, Board of Commissioner 
 
 
By:       
Title:   Member, Board of Commissioner 
 
 
By:       
Title:   Member, Board of Commissioner 
 
 
 
Date:       
 
Attest: 
 
Clerk of the Board:     
 

  
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9C55CCB1-F74A-41D4-A196-AB85C13F2267

11/24/202111/24/2021

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 51 of 411





cc: Originals – OPD, Bertha Ramon-Arteaga  E. Hsu 
      Copy – Auditor, S Godinez 

 RESOLUTION 
 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON  
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING A PUBLIC DEFENSE INTERPRETING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH INTERPRETER BERTHA RAMON-ARTEAGA FOR VICTIM INTERVIEWS IN BENTON 
COUNTY SUPERIOR AND DISTRICT COURT PUBLIC DEFENSE CASES 
      
WHEREAS, Benton County (“County”) is obligated by law to provide indigent defense services in 
Benton County  Superior  and District Courts (“Services”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in the course of providing Services, County’s public defense attorneys sometimes have 
a need to interview mono-lingual, Spanish-speaking victims (“Victim Interviews”) and therefore require 
the assistance of court-certified interpreters in the Spanish language (“PD Interpreting”); and 
 
WHEREAS, interpreter Bertha Ramon-Arteaga (“Interpreter”) is qualified to provide PD Interpreting 
services and interested in entering into an agreement with County for same; and  
 
WHEREAS, a proposed PD Interpreting agreement with interpreter Bertha Ramon-Arteaga is 
presented for execution by the Board of Commissioners; NOW,  THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the proposed agreement with interpreter Bertha Ramon-Arteaga, to provide 
PD Interpreting services during Victim Interviews to support public defenders with cases in Benton 
County Superior and District Courts, designated BCINT2223BR001, commencing 12/01/21 to 
12/31/23, with a flat fee of $1,050 per month for up to 15 hours of services and $70 per hour for hours 
beyond that maximum, plus other allowable expenses, premiums, and fees as detailed, is hereby 
approved and executed on behalf of Benton County. 

 
Dated this ________ day of  ________________ 20 ______  

 
 
        ________________________________

             Chairman of the Board 
 
        ________________________________

                                    Member 
 
        ________________________________

                                    Member 
                                                                                                            Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
                                                                                                                             of Benton County, Washington 
Attest: ___________________________      

        Clerk of the Board 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 53 of 411





 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 2 of 11 
 

Voces2001@gmail.com.  The work contemplated by this Agreement shall be performed 
either in person at the Benton County Prosecutor’s Office or virtually by phone or video 
conference as required by requesting public defenders.  Nothing stated by County, within, 
or outside of this Agreement, shall be interpreted as the County expressing any 
preference as to Interpreter’s office location or directing that work be done in any particular 
place.   

3. INTERPRETER’S QUALIFICATIONS.  Interpreter acknowledges and 
agrees that the County has an obligation to provide competent and effective legal defense 
services to indigent persons subject to criminal proceedings in the Courts.  Interpreter 
shall perform all services hereunder in strict accordance with the usual skills and 
professional ethical standards exercised by Interpreters engaged in providing interpreting 
services for use in official court proceedings and legal proceedings,   acknowledges and 
agrees that Interpreter has a fundamental duty and responsibility to effectively promote 
and protect the best interests and rights of all persons whom Interpreter is assigned to 
assist under this Agreement. 

a. As of the date of this Agreement, Interpreter represents and warrants 
that Interpreter is court certified for interpreting in the Spanish language by 
Washington State Administrative Office of the Courts, has had at least one (1) year 
of direct experience in providing interpreting services for use in legal proceedings; 
has not been a party to an agreement to provide criminal defense-related 
Interpreter services that was terminated due to Interpreter’s conduct, errors, or 
omissions; has not been censured, admonished, or otherwise formally disciplined 
for past conduct or behavior as a Interpreter that would negatively reflect on 
Interpreter’s duty and ability to effectively and competently render services 
hereunder; and does not have any complaints or lawsuits filed and/or pending 
against him/her relating to, or arising from, Interpreter’s past conduct or behavior 
as a Interpreter.  

b. To comply with the provisions of RCW 72.05.440, WAC 388-700-
0010, and RCW 13.40.570, Interpreter acknowledges and agrees that the County 
may conduct criminal history background check(s) on Interpreter.  Interpreter 
acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement shall be deemed immediately and 
automatically terminated upon the County receiving a non-complying or otherwise 
unsatisfactory criminal history background check report. 

c. Interpreter represents and warrants that, throughout the entire term 
of this Agreement, Interpreter’s client caseload on matters outside of this 
Agreement; Interpreter’s schedule; and Interpreter’s office resources, equipment, 
and support staff (if applicable); will allow Interpreter to competently undertake and 
effectively perform all services required under this Agreement.   

4. RESERVED.  This section is not applicable but has been retained for 
numbering consistency.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 55 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 3 of 11 
 

5. CASE ASSIGNMENTS.  During the term of this Agreement, Interpreter 
agrees to and shall accept assignments to provide Interpreting Services for indigent 
persons (regardless of their race, color, national origin, age, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation, handicap/disability, personal background, creed, or political or religious 
affiliation) on any matter in the Courts in which publicly-provided legal defense services 
are furnished or required by law.  For each case assigned hereunder, Interpreter shall 
provide interpreting services as directed by the attorney of record or designee.  
Specifically, Interpreter shall provide criminal defense interpreting services of the same 
quality as Interpreter provides to private clients. Interpreting Services shall be defined as: 
a) assisting public defense attorneys or other members of defense teams (such as 
investigators) with communicating with/interviewing alleged victims in cases being 
prosecuted by the Benton County Prosecutor’s Office; and b) accepting, within 
Interpreter’s availability schedule, other interpreting matters that would otherwise been 
assigned to other interpreters under contract with the County but where such other 
interpreters have a conflict of interest.  

Interpreter shall accept assignments for Interpreting Services, pursuant to this 
Agreement, in the following manner:  

a) Contract and staff public defenders (“Requesting Attorney”) or assigned public 
defense investigators (“Investigators”) shall contact Interpreter directly, via 
phone, text message, or email, requesting interpreting services. The 
Requesting Attorney or Investigator shall coordinate with Interpreter regarding 
scheduling of needed interpreting services. 

b) Requesting Attorneys and Investigators shall provide Interpreter with the 
following information about each interpreting engagement: 

a. Case name 

b. Case number 

c. Nature of engagement  

c) Interpreter shall keep a record of all interpreting engagements including, at 
least the following: 

a. Case name 

b. Case number 

c. Date of service 

d. Length of service (rounded up to the nearest 30 minute increment) 

e. Nature of service  

f. General location (eg at the Prosecutor’s Office or virtually) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 56 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 4 of 11 
 

d) No later than 15 days after the end of each month, Interpreter shall provide a 
report to the County’s Office of Public Defense, in a form prescribed by said 
Office, of all cases, including all the details required in Section 5c), for all 
interpreting engagements for the prior month that falls under the Flat Fee 
Compensation limit (i.e. up to 20 hours of interpreting services for the month) 

e) Interpreter shall be expected to be generally available pursuant to the following 
schedule though occasional conflicting obligations are to be expected: 

 Mondays from 11 am to 12:30 pm; anytime after 2 pm 

 Tuesdays through Fridays from 11 am to 12:30 pm and anytime after 4 pm 

County shall communicate this availability schedule to its public defense 
attorneys and public defense investigators. Interpreter may modify this schedule with 
advance written notice to County but shall not significantly reduce her amount of weekly 
availability without conferring with the PDM.  

6. RESERVED. - This section is not applicable but has been retained for 
numbering consistency.  

7. CLIENT ELIGIBILITY.  The Courts (or designee), consistent with applicable 
laws, rules and standards, shall determine the eligibility of any particular person for 
assistance by Interpreter under this Agreement.  Interpreter shall have no obligation to 
inquire into, or question, the status or eligibility of a client in any public defense case to 
which she has been assigned.   

8. RESERVED This section is not applicable but has been retained for 
numbering consistency.  

9. COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT. 

Interpreter’s compensation shall consist of the following: 

a) Monthly Flat Fee. A monthly flat fee of $1,050 for up to 15 hours of interpreting 
services rendered.  

b) Excess Hours. If Interpreter provides in excess of 15 hours of interpreting services 
in any given month, then Interpreter may claim excess compensation in the amount 
of $70 per hour.  

The following additional terms shall apply to Interpreter’s compensation: 

i) The calculation of hours for purposes of Interpreter’s flat fee maximum monthly 
hours, shall be in increments of 30 minutes, rounded up to the next increment. 

ii) Interpreter shall be paid the monthly flat fee each month this agreement is in 
effect, regardless of whether or not Interpreter’s total hours of interpreting 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 57 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 5 of 11 
 

services rendered in any given month actually reaches the maximum of 15 
hours. 

iii) Billing for interpreting services hours beyond 15 in any given month shall be 
subject to a one-hour minimum and then billed in 30-minute increments 
thereafter. 

iv) Payment of the monthly flat fee shall be made to Interpreter on the last business 
day of each month without a need for Interpreter to invoice said amount. 
Provided, however, that payment is conditioned upon Interpreter being current 
in providing caseload reporting as required by Section 5c) and, if such reporting 
is not made as required, compensation may be withheld until it is so provided. 

v) Compensation for Excess Hours shall not be due and payable until Interpreter 
submits a Claim for Compensation and detailed invoice, listing the date, case 
name, case number, public defender, hours, and nature of interpreting services 
provided, for each interpreting engagement. County will compensate 
Interpreter for Excess Hours within 30 days of invoice.  

vi) If Interpreter is required to travel outside of the tri-cities metropolitan area, then 
Interpreter shall be entitled to mileage at the then-current GSA rate, starting at 
the Benton County courthouse and the travel time may be considered either as 
time toward Interpreter’s 20 hours per month (for the Flat Fee portion of 
Interpreter’s compensation) or as Excess Hours that may be billed separately. 
Travel within the tri-cities metropolitan area shall not be compensable for 
mileage but may be billable as interpreting time as appropriate.   

vii) The parties agree that they will review Interpreter’s monthly actual hours every 
six months during this Agreement. If the actual hours are more than 20% above 
or below the 15 hours upon which the flat fee is calculated, then the parties 
agree to adjust the flat fee accordingly to more accurately reflect actual usage 
and will cooperate in executing an amendment accordingly.  

10. INDEMNIFICATIONS AND HOLD HARMLESS.  Interpreter agrees to and 
shall fully indemnify the County and its elected/appointed representatives, officers, 
employees, and agents; and to hold the County and its elected/appointed 
representatives, officers, employees, and agents fully harmless; from and for any and all 
losses, damages, costs, charges, claims, demands, suits, or actions of whatsoever nature 
directly or indirectly arising out of or by reason of Interpreter’s (or any person, employee, 
agent, contractor, or entity acting for or on behalf of Interpreter or at Interpreter’s request 
or direction) acts, defaults, errors and/or omissions of whatsoever nature in the 
performance of interpreting services for any person under this Agreement.  In the event 
any suit or legal proceeding is brought against the County or any of its elected/appointed 
representatives, officers, employees or agents at any time on account of or by reason of 
any such acts, defaults, errors and/or omissions, Interpreter hereby covenants and 
agrees to assume the defense thereof (through counsel acceptable to the County) and to 
defend the same at Interpreter’s sole cost and expense and to pay any and all costs, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 58 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 6 of 11 
 

charges, attorneys’ fees, and other expenses as well as any and all judgments or awards 
that may be incurred by or entered against the County or any of its elected/appointed 
representatives, officers, employees or agents in such suits or other legal proceedings.  
Without limiting the intended broad scope and application of the indemnification and hold 
harmless provisions of this paragraph, for purposes of this paragraph, Interpreter waives, 
with respect to the County only, any immunity that would otherwise be available to 
Interpreter under the Industrial Insurance Act provisions of Title 51 RCW or any other 
similar workers/employee disability or benefit law.  The indemnification and hold harmless 
provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

11. INSURANCE.   

a. Interpreter shall obtain and maintain, at Interpreter’s sole cost and 
expense, a policy of professional liability or errors and omissions insurance 
suitable for Interpreter’s profession, in the amount of no less than  $250,000 per 
claim nor less than $250,000 in the aggregate during the policy term and with a 
maximum deductible of not more than $10,000.00. 

(i) Said policy shall include coverage as an additional insured for 
any other person(s) acting for or on behalf of Interpreter in the performance 
of this Agreement; shall provide professional liability insurance coverage 
for any acts, errors and/or omissions by Interpreter (and/or such additional 
insureds) during the course of performing services under this Agreement; 
shall require that the insurance company provide the County with no less 
than thirty (30) days prior written notice in the event the policy is cancelled 
or materially altered; shall comply with all applicable state of Washington 
insurance requirements; and shall be issued by an insurance company 
rated A- or better by A.M. Best authorized to conduct business and issue 
insurance in the state of Washington. 

(iii) Interpreter shall continuously maintain the professional 
liability insurance coverage required by this paragraph throughout the entire 
term of this Agreement, throughout any other longer time period during 
which Interpreter is obligated to continue performing services and duties 
hereunder, and for a period of no less than thirty-six (36) consecutive 
months after Interpreter has fully completed all services and duties required 
hereunder. 

c. Contemporaneously with Interpreter’s execution of this Agreement, 
Interpreter shall provide the County and its designated Risk Manager(s) with 
copies or certificates of the insurance policies and coverage (including any 
endorsements) required under this paragraph 11, and Interpreter shall annually 
provide the Risk Manager(s) with the same type of documented proof and 
confirmation that such insurance policies and coverage continue to exist no later 
than thirty (30) days after the policies’ annual renewal date(s). 

12. TERMINATION. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 59 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 7 of 11 
 

a. In addition to any automatic termination provisions set forth in this 
Agreement, the County may elect to terminate this Agreement in the event 
Interpreter fails for whatever reason to comply with any provision of this Agreement 
after giving Interpreter ten (10) business days advance written notice to cure, 
which notice shall specify the reason(s) for the notice, the act(s) necessary to cure 
Interpreter’s failure(s), and the consequence (i.e., termination without further 
notice) if the failure(s) is/are not cured within the ten (10) day period.  The County’s 
right to terminate this Agreement in such regard shall be in addition to any other 
rights and remedies available to the County. 

b. In addition to the foregoing provisions regarding termination, either 
Interpreter or the County may elect to terminate this Agreement with or without 
cause or reason by providing the other party with ninety (90) days advance written 
notice of such election.  Without limiting/waiving other provisions of this Agreement 
relating to Interpreter’s obligation and duty to accept and complete cases assigned 
to Interpreter, Interpreter shall not be assigned to any new cases during the last 
thirty (30) calendar days of said ninety (90) day notice period.   

13. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Interpreter fully understands, 
acknowledges, and agrees that Interpreter shall not be an agent, representative, or 
employee of the County or the Courts for any type of purpose or situation whatsoever 
(including, without limitation, for purposes of any type of wage, hours/overtime, 
workers/industrial insurance compensation, unemployment, fair labor, and/or employee 
benefit/leave laws, disability act coverage or rules, and/or regulations) and that 
Interpreter, as of the date of this Agreement and throughout its entire term, is and will 
always be acting and operating as a fully independent contractor.  In that regard, strictly 
subject to Interpreter’s duties, responsibilities and obligations imposed under this 
Agreement, Interpreter shall have sole and absolute discretion using Interpreter’s best 
professional judgment to determine the manner and means of providing the interpreting 
services required under this Agreement; and neither the County, the PDM, nor the Courts 
shall have any authority or duty to directly control the actual performance of Interpreter’s 
services hereunder. 

14. NON-ASSIGNMENT; MILITARY LEAVE.  Interpreter may sub-contract with 
another interpreter who is court-certified by Washington administrative office of the courts 
in the Spanish language on an occasional and infrequent basis to provide coverage in 
case of illness, unavailability, conflicting schedules, or vacation. If Interpreter sub-
contracts with another interpreter, Interpreter remains fully responsible for the services 
being provided.  In the event Interpreter is called up for active military duty or for direct 
civilian support of active military operations, Interpreter shall provide the County and the 
PDM with written notice of such event within five (5) business days of Interpreter being 
called up so that the PDM and Interpreter can coordinate and arrange for an appropriate 
substitute to handle Interpreter’s duties under this Agreement while Interpreter is on 
military leave and any reasonable back-to-civilian-life transition time requested by 
Interpreter upon return.  Interpreter shall receive no compensation under this Agreement 
while on leave or during any such transition time. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 60 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 8 of 11 
 

15. VACANCY AND REPLACEMENT.  In the event this Agreement is 
terminated by either party prior to the termination date specified in paragraph 1 above, 
the County may initiate, implement and pursue any actions or process deemed 
appropriate/necessary to seek, select, and contract with another qualified Interpreter to 
replace and succeed Interpreter in providing interpreting services to indigent persons in 
the Courts. 

16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire integrated 
agreement and understanding of the undersigned parties.  No amendment, modification 
or other type of change to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless reduced to 
writing and signed by the parties.  
 

17. CAPTIONS; TIME COMPUTATION. 

a. The captions and headings herein are for convenience only and shall 
not be relied upon or used to interpret or construe this Agreement or any portion 
thereof. 

b. Unless otherwise expressly specified herein, any period of time 
specified in this Agreement shall expire at 5:00 p.m. (PST) of the last calendar day 
of the specified period of time, unless the last day is Saturday, Sunday, or a legal 
holiday, as prescribed in RCW 1.16.050, in which event the specified period of time 
shall expire at 5:00 p.m. (PST) of the next business day.  Unless otherwise expressly 
specified herein as being business days only, any period of time specified in this 
Agreement shall mean and be calculated to include calendar days. 

18. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be exclusively construed under 
and interpreted consistent with the laws of the state of Washington. 

19. BINDING EFFECT.  Strictly subject to the above restrictions against 
assignment, subcontracting, or delegation, this Agreement shall be binding upon 
Interpreter’s heirs, legal/personal representatives, successors, and assigns. 

20. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any one or more provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall, for whatever reason, be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision(s) shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall 
nevertheless be construed and enforced as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision(s) were not contained herein. 

21. NON-WAIVER.  A party’s express or implied consent to or waiver of any 
breach or default by the other party in the performance of such other party’s obligations 
hereunder shall not be deemed or construed to be a consent to or waiver of any other 
breach or default in the performance by such other party of the same obligations or any 
other obligation(s) of such other party hereunder.   

22. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 61 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 9 of 11 
 

a. In the event any type of dispute arises between the parties involving 
the performance or interpretation of this Agreement, and assuming that the parties 
are unable to resolve such dispute within a reasonable time after it arises, the 
parties agree that the dispute shall be submitted to mediation through the 
assistance of an experienced mediator chosen by mutual agreement between the 
parties.  The County shall pay one-half of the mediator's fees and expenses, and 
Interpreter shall pay the other one-half of such fees and expenses. 

b. In the event that mediation proves unsuccessful in resolving the 
dispute, the parties shall submit the dispute for resolution via binding arbitration 
pursuant to RCW Chapter 7.04A.  A single arbitrator shall be selected by 
agreement of the parties or, in the absence of agreement, each party shall select 
one (1) arbitrator and those two (2) so selected arbitrators shall mutually select a 
third arbitrator.  The County shall pay one-half of the fees and expenses of the 
arbitrator(s), and Interpreter shall pay the other one-half of such fees and 
expenses.  The provisions of RCW Chapter 7.04A and applicable Mandatory 
Arbitration Rules as adopted and implemented in Superior Court shall be binding 
as to procedure, except as to the right of appeal, which shall not be applicable.  
Within ten (10) business days of notice of arbitration, the arbitrator(s) shall be 
selected and designated and the hearing shall be held within thirty (30) business 
days thereafter.  The arbitrator(s) shall render a written decision and award within 
ten (10) business days of such hearing.  Without limitation, the arbitrator(s) may 
award damages, specific performance, and/or injunctive relief, and may register a 
judgment in Benton County Superior Court, including judgment by default.  The 
most prevailing party shall be entitled to recover such party’s reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses from the other party as a part of the arbitration 
decision and award.  In the event of suit or action to enforce an arbitration award, 
venue shall lie exclusively in Benton County Superior Court, and the most 
prevailing party in such suit or action shall be entitled to recover such party’s 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses from the other party. 

23. NOTICES. 

a. Any notices required or permitted to be given by Interpreter to Benton 
County under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered 
to the Benton County Board of Commissioners or mailed to the Benton County 
Board of Commissioners via certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, at the Board’s 
following address: 

Benton County Board of Commissioners 
620 Market St. 

Prosser, WA 99350 

With a mandatory complete copy of any such notices to also be provided to: 

Eric Hsu 
Public Defense Manager 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 62 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 10 of 11 
 

Benton Office of Public Defense 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

b. Any notices required or permitted to be given by the County to 
Interpreter under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally 
delivered to Interpreter or mailed to Interpreter via certified U.S. mail, postage 
prepaid, at Interpreter’s office address specified and set forth in paragraph 2.a 
above. 

c. Any notices under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been 
duly given, made and received when personally delivered against receipt or when 
duly deposited in the U.S. mail in compliance with the provisions of this paragraph.  
A party may change the address(es) to which notices or copies thereof are to be 
sent by giving notice of such change of address in conformity with the provisions 
of this paragraph for the giving of notice. 

d. For purposes of clarity, whenever the terms of this Agreement 
require Interpreter to provide “the County” with certain information or notice, such 
information or notice shall be provided to the County’s Board of Commissioners or 
the Board’s designee unless this Agreement expressly mandates that such 
information or notice also be provided to some other person/entity. 

24. LEGAL COMPLIANCE.  Interpreter agrees to and shall strictly follow and 
comply with any and all federal, state, local, and administrative laws, rules, and 
regulations applicable to Interpreter’s pursuit and performance of activities and services 
under this Agreement.  Without limitation in that regard, Interpreter shall timely and fully 
pay all applicable taxes, fees, licenses, and other payments required by law; and 
Interpreter shall fully comply with any and all anti-discrimination laws and policies 
including, without limitation, the County’s policies that no person will be subjected to 
discrimination by the County or its contractors based on race, color, national origin, age, 
sex, marital status, sexual orientation, handicap/disability, personal background, creed, 
or political or religious affiliation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into and executed this 
Agreement on the date set forth below. 
 
 
 
 
 

[**SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE**] 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 63 of 411



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – BCINT2223SG001-- Page 11 of 11 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into and executed this 
Agreement on the date set forth below. 

 
 

Interpreter 
Benton County Office of Public Defense – Approved as to 

Form and Content 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Bertha D. Ramon-Arteaga                      Date                                          Eric Hsu                                           Date 

  
 BENTON COUNTY APPROVAL 

 

 
 
By:       
Title:   Chairman, Board of Commissioner 
 
 
By:       
Title:   Member, Board of Commissioner 
 
 
By:       
Title:   Member, Board of Commissioner 
 
 
 
Date:       
 
Attest: 
 
Clerk of the Board:     
 

  
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E19A17FC-235F-482F-AAB1-9B1B5E77DAA2

11/30/2021 11/30/2021

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 64 of 411





 

Orig.:  ER&R                                A. Oropeza 
c:  Auditor 

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY ROADS, RE:  AUTHORIZATION TO PAY MAINTENANCE 
AND UPGRADE FEES AND HOURLY RATES FOR PROGRAMMING AND SQL/DBE AND 
ON-SITE SERVICES TO CASCADE SOFTWARE SYSTEMS, INC., EUGENE, OREGON 
 
WHEREAS, on September 29, 2003, Resolution 03-546 authorized the purchase of cost 
accounting software from Cascade Software Systems Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Appendix B of said contract stated an Annual Maintenance Agreement would be 
submitted at a later date; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 9, 2004, the County Engineer entered into an Agreement for 
Maintenance and System Services which stated it shall be automatically renewed annually on 
the anniversary date unless terminated by either party within thirty days of said date; and 
 
WHEREAS, in addition to the maintenance fee, Benton County will pay hourly rates for 
programming and SQL/DBE services above and beyond the scope of normal maintenance; and  
 
WHEREAS, a written renewal notice with updated maintenance and upgrade fees and hourly 
programming rates is to be submitted to Benton County no later than 60 days prior to the 
anniversary date; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cascade Software Systems, Inc. in accordance with the agreement, submitted the 
maintenance and upgrade fee for 2022 in the amount of $15,332.08 and hourly billable rates of 
$160.00 per hour for programming, $175.00 per hour for SQL/DBE and Project Management 
services, and $180.00 for on-site time services; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners authorizes payment to Cascade 
Software Systems, Inc., Eugene, Oregon for the maintenance and upgrade fee for 2022 in an 
amount not to exceed $15,332.08; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board authorizes payment for billable programming 
hours and on-site services for 2022 in an amount not to exceed $7,500.00. 
 
Dated this 21st day of December 2021. 
 

_____________________________ 
       Chairman 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                   Chairman Pro-Tem 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                  Member 
 
Attest:_____________________________           Constituting the Board of County 
                    Clerk of the Board              Commissioners of Benton County, 
                                              Washington 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 66 of 411





 

Orig.:  Public Works                       J. Liner 

 
 

RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY ROADS RE:  APPROVING A PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE 
AMENDMENT OF THE 2022 - 2027 SIX-YEAR ROAD PROGRAM TO INCLUDE 
COUNTYWIDE SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 36.81.121 requires development of perpetual advanced six-year plans for 
coordinated transportation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the updated six-year plan, describing the road maintenance and improvement 
program for the period of 2022 through 2027 was adopted on August 10, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) put out a call for projects after the 
2022 – 2027 Six-Year Road Program was approved; and 
 
WHEREAS, Public Works has now secured HSIP funding for the aforementioned project; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County Engineer recommends an amendment to the 2022 – 2027 Six-Year Road 
Program to include Countywide Safety Improvements project; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that a Public Hearing on the Amendment of the 2022 – 2027 Six-Year Road 
Program be held on Tuesday, January 4, 2022 at 9:00 a.m., Local Time, in the Board of County 
Commissioners' Meeting Room, Benton County Courthouse, 620 Market Street, Prosser, 
Washington. 
 
 
Dated this    21st      day of         December    , 2021. 

  
 

       
       Chairman of the Board. 

 
 
   
      Chairman Pro-Tem. 
 
 
   
                Member. 

 
 Attest       Constituting the Board of County 

    Clerk of the Board    Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Washington. 

 
 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 68 of 411





 

Orig.:  Purchasing Dept.                        S. Christen 
c:  Auditor, Procurement 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING A CONTRACT TO HIS DIME LLC dba FASTSIGNS 280501, 
KENNEWICK, WASHINGTON FOR SUPPLYING AND INSTALLING WINDOW FILM AT THE 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING AND AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN SAID 
CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2021-233, the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved a County-Wide 
Procurement, Leasing and Contracting Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Section 4.3.2, for contracts less than $350,000, County departments can solicit bids from contractors 
from the small works roster and award to the lowest responsible bidder.  Such award is to be approved by the Board of 
Benton County Commissioners by Resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, quotes for Supplying and Installing Window Film at the Administration Building on 38 windows were 
solicited from 39 contractors on the Small Public Works Roster; and 
 
WHEREAS, the following quote was received: 
 

 His Dime LLC dba FastSigns 280501, Kennewick, WA    $ 94.32 per window 
  
WHEREAS, the Director of Operations and Capital Programs reviewed the quote for completeness and recommends 
awarding said project to His Dime LLC dba FastSigns 280501, Kennewick, WA (FASTS2*802NG) as the lowest bidder; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a contract has been prepared, and reviewed and approved as to form by our departmental assigned Deputy 
Prosecuting Attorney from the Civil Division, and has been executed by FastSigns 280501; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Operations and Capital Programs recommends the Chairman sign said contract; NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners concurs with the Director of Operations and 
Capital Program’s recommendation and awards the bid for Supplying and Installing Window Film at the Administration 
Building to His Dime LLC dba FastSigns 280501, Kennewick, Washington in the amount of $94.32 per window 
excluding Washington State Sales Tax; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners 
to sign on behalf of Benton County said contract to FastSigns 280501 in an amount not to exceed $4,000.00 excluding 
Washington State Sales Tax; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Director of Operations and Capital Programs is hereby authorized to proceed 
with the window film project according to the terms of the contract; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the window film project shall be completed in its entirety within thirty (30) calendar 
days as described in the contract documents. 
 
Dated this 21st day of December 2021. 

_____________________________________ 
       Chairman 
 
 
 

 _____________________________________ 
                                   Chairman Pro-Tem 
 
 
 

 _____________________________________ 
                                  Member 
 Attest:_____________________________                             Constituting the Board of County 
                    Clerk of the Board                   Commissioners of Benton County, 
                                                   Washington 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 70 of 411



  

  

  

                 

                

                

            

              

  

           

   

            

           

   

                 

              

             

  

                

               

            

  

              

             

                 

              

               

                 

             

                

                 

             

             

               

     Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 71 of 411



               

                 

   

                 

              

           

  

               

              

  

  

 

               

             

            

                

          

                

             

             

                

              

              

               

     

  

    

   

        

      

   

     Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 72 of 411



                 

   

 

                

               

                 

              

                 

          

               

             

                

               

                

                 

               

               

         

               

               

                 

               

               

                

                

      

     

                  

             

             

             

              

                 

             

          

    

              

             

     Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 73 of 411



            

               

              

                 

                

             

                  

              

              

              

             

                  

             

                

                   

             

              

              

                

            

               

              

           

         

             

                

             

          

               

          

 

         

            

              

             

            

                

              

               

               

         

             

              

     Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 74 of 411



             

             

                

             

             

   

               

           

              

               

             

          

   

    

      

  

             

              

          

             

             

                

          

              

                 

                

            

            

  

   

     

    

             

            

                

                 

               

              

      

     Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 75 of 411



  

             

            

          

           

              

      

             

          

               

          

             

               

              

           

          

              

             

            

              

 

              

          

            

          

             

               

             

            

             

             

            

            

         

            

           

        

     
Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 76 of 411



       

               

                    

               

                 

              

             

              

           

             

               

             

             

   

             

      

                

           

  

                

              

            

  

    

              

                

                  

               

                   

                     

            

              

                 

                

                

 

   

                 

                

                    

     
Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 77 of 411



                    

     

  

              

                

              

        

               

                

               

               

 

               

          

                 

     

                

                   

    

               

                

      

     

                 

               

                 

 

     

                  

                    

         

   

                

                

               

     
Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 78 of 411



                  

                 

                  

               

                  

                 

      

                

               

                 

                

            

                

                

                

              

             

             

               

                

 

             

                 

             

          

 

              

                 

              

              

             

     

    

                

                

                

     
Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 79 of 411



    

               

                

             

               

               

          

  

                 

          

 

                  

                  

                    

                   

                 

  

 

                   

                  

                

       

                   

              

                  

    

   

                

               

                

                

                

                  

             

   

                

             

                  

     
Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 80 of 411



                

              

               

             

                    

                 

                  

              

         

 

               

                 

             

       

 

            

                

                   

              

      

                 

         

 

 

     

 

  

   

   
 

     Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 81 of 411



   

   

 

     

   

       

  

                 

             

 

              
              

      

 

                  

               

                   

                 

       

 

                   

           

            

      

     

          

 

                    

                

  

                  

                 

         

  

             

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 82 of 411



   

   

                    

                  

               

              

  

                     

               

             

 

                  

   

               

                 

            

      

              

                   

                   

                  

  

     

               

             

      

               

         
      

    

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 83 of 411



 

   

     

   

      

             

              

               

              

  

            

 

           

        

        

                

             

               

                 

          

     

 Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 84 of 411



 

     

       
    

   

      

       
         

        
 

     

  

   

   

   

     

     

      

     

    

   

       

    

         

       

 
        

     

  
   

  
 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 85 of 411



     

       
    

   

 

    

   

      

 

    

    

 

     
   

   

     
    

  

 

 

     

   

  

   

    

 

 

  

      

          

         

        

      

        

       

       

    

     

    

        

        

       

      

      

      

         
        

       
         

         

        

      

     

       

        
       

         

       

         
     

        

    

      
       

        
       

     

        

       

        

        

 

      

  
     

     

      
      

       

     

     

    
     

     

    
      

       

    

  
   

  
 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 86 of 411



     

       
    

   

 

  

   

 

 

  

   

 

 

   

  

   

                 

 

               

 
                      

                     

                     

                

 

                      

       

 
                    

                 

               

 
                    

                       

    

  

         

  
   

  
  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 87 of 411





 
 
Orig.: File – Purchasing Department  P. Schut  
cc: Auditors; S. Araiza; Procurement  
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES CONTRACT WITH WAVE DESIGN GROUP, LLC FOR THE 
REDESIGN OF THE JUSTICE CENTER FRONT ENTRANCE 
 

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2021-297, the Board of Benton County Commissioners 
entered into a contract with Wave Design Group, LLC to provide architectural and 
engineering services for the redesign of the front entrance of the Benton County Justice 
Center; and  

 
WHEREAS, Per Resolution No. 2021-470, the Board of Benton County Commissioners 
agreed to the First Contract Amendment with Wave Design Group to expand the design 
scope to include raised semi-secured security booth on the wall opposite of the main 
entrance; and  
 
WHEREAS, the attached amendment extends the contract termination date from 
December 31, 2021 to September 30, 2022; NOW, THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby concurs with 
the attached second amendment to the professional services contract with Wave Design 
Group, LLC, to extend the contract termination date to September 30, 2022; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby 
authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign the second amendment to the professional 
services contract attached hereto. 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 2021.   

 
       

Chairman of the Board  
 

       
Chairman Pro-Tem 

 
             

Member 
 

       Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   Commissioners of Benton County, 

Washington 
 Clerk of the Board        
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 89 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 90 of 411





Orig: Risk Management 
cc:  Auditor, S. Godinez, Procurement  
                                                                                                                                                                              Prepared by: L. Small  

 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 

IN THE MATTER OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON 

COUNTY AND ON SCENE MEDICAL SERVICES FOR ALL COUNTY DEPARTMENTS 

 

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2021-233, Section 5.3.2 General Services “the County need not advertise 

or follow a formal competitive bidding procedure for service contracts, but rather the county may 

instead evaluate and utilize the procedures it deems best under the individual circumstances in order 

to obtain services of the highest quality at the lowest cost; and 

 
WHEREAS, there are departments within Benton County that require pre-employment physicals, drug 
and alcohol testing, CDL/DOT physicals, etc.; and  
 
WHEREAS, On Scene Medical Services is a local medical clinic who can provide “as needed” 
medical services that are required for different departments throughout Benton County; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Risk Manager recommends entering into a Professional Service 
Contract with On Scene Medical Services for “as needed” medical services for the services performed 
under the attached Contract and paid in accordance with the rates set forth in Exhibit A – “Services 
and Fee Schedule”; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
concurs with the recommendation and hereby awards the Professional Services Contract to On Scene 
Medical Services for “as needed” medical services as further outlined in the attached Professional 
Services Contract; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached contract shall commence upon signature of 
both parties and shall expire on December 31, 2022; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes payment to On Scene Medical Services 
for any services provided prior to execution of the attached Contract; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
Professional Service Contract between Benton County and On Scene Medical Services.  
 

 

Dated this _________day of_____________, 2021 

 

         

 Chairman of the Board 

             

             

                                       Chairman Pro-Tem           

Attest: __________________________ 

                 Clerk of the Board 

             

                              Member  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 92 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 93 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 94 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 95 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 96 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 97 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 98 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 99 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 100 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 101 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 102 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 103 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 104 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 105 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 106 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 107 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 108 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 109 of 411





 

Orig.:  Purchasing Dept.                 S. Christen 

c:  Auditor, Procurement 

 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY 

WASHINGTON: 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF EXECUTING A CONSULTANT AGREEMENT FOR ON-CALL 

SURVEYING SERVICES WITH HLA ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING, INC. OF 

YAKIMA, WASHINGTON  

 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department anticipates a need for additional surveying work and wishes to 

obtain the on-call services of a surveying firm; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department advertised the need for services, received statements of qualifications from 

four firms, and after reviewing the qualifications submitted, has selected HLA Engineering and Land 

Surveying, Inc. as being able to best provide the services needed; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department has negotiated with HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. of Yakima, 

Washington to provide on-call surveying services; and 

 

WHEREAS, a Local Agency A & E Professional Services Cost Plus Fixed Fee Consultant Agreement has 

been prepared and reviewed as to form by the Benton County Deputy Prosecuting Attorney; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County Engineer recommends that this Consultant Agreement be approved; NOW 

THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Local Agency A & E Professional Services Cost Plus Fixed Fee Consultant 

Agreement with HLA Engineering and Land Surveying, Inc. of Yakima, Washington to provide on-call 

surveying services is hereby approved in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00, including applicable taxes; 

and the Chairman of the Board is hereby authorized to sign said Agreement on behalf of Benton County; 

and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Agreement will expire November 30, 2022 with the County reserving 

the right to renew the Agreement for an additional year without advertising. 

 

Dated this 21st day of December 2021. 

 

______________________________________ 

 Chairman 

 

 

______________________________________ 

                               Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

 

______________________________________ 

                              Member 

 

 Attest:_____________________________           Constituting the Board of County 

                    Clerk of the Board              Commissioners of Benton County, 

                      Washington 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 111 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 112 of 411





Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 114 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 115 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 116 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 117 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 118 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 119 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 120 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 121 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 122 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 123 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 124 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 125 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 126 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 127 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 128 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 129 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 130 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 131 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 132 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 133 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 134 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 135 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 136 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 137 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 138 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 139 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 140 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 141 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 142 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 143 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 144 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 145 of 411





 

Orig.:  Purchasing Dept.          S. Christen 
c:  Auditor 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE THERMOPLASTIC MARKINGS FOR USE 
BY THE BENTON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT FROM TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY, 
PASCO, WA 
 
WHEREAS, per the Benton County Procurement, Leasing and Contracting Policy county departments 
are required to obtain quotes for purchases under $50,000.00 from at least three (3) vendors on the 
vendor list unless the product is such that it is not reasonable to obtain 3 quotes and such purchase 
is to be approved by the Board of Benton County Commissioners by Resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department uses thermoplastic markings on County roads and need to 
replace the markings after the upcoming Bituminous Surface Treatment project is complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are only two vendors in the United States that supply thermoplastic markings.  Both 
of these vendors were solicited, and the quotes are as follows: 
 

 Traffic Safety Supply - Portland, OR     $35,857.50 plus WSST  
 Ennis-Flint - Greensboro, NC      $40,638.50 plus WSST 
  
WHEREAS, the County Engineer reviewed the quotes for completeness and recommends the 
purchase of thermoplastic markings from Traffic Safety Supply, Portland, OR; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby approves the purchase of 
thermoplastic markings for use by the Benton County Public Works Department from Traffic Safety 
Supply, Portland, OR in the amount of $35,857.50 plus WSST. 
 
Dated this 21st day of December 2021. 

____________________________________ 
       Chairman 
 
 

 ____________________________________ 
                                   Chairman Pro-Tem 
 
 

 ____________________________________ 
                                  Member 
 Attest:_____________________________                        Constituting the Board of County 
                    Clerk of the Board              Commissioners of Benton County, 
                                              Washington 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 147 of 411



Traffic Safety Supply

2324 SE Umatilla Street

Portland, OR 97202

Phone: (503) 235-8531

Fax: (503) 235-5112

CSR: Susan Gerkin

SALES QUOTE

Quote Number Date Customer Number

Quote valid for 30 days.

SQN00036366 C00023212-09-21

Bill To:

Project: Premark Materials Freight Terms: Prepaid

Ship To:

Benton County - Engineer

PO Box 1001

Prosser, WA 99350

Contact Name: Clayton Rawlings

Phone Number: (509) 786-5611

Benton County - Engineer

102808 Wiser Pkwy

Kennewick, WA 99338

Product QuantityDescription Price Extended Price

DP02363 PREMARK, R X R KIT,

WHITE, 20' X 8', 125 MIL
 40.00 PK $402.30 $16,092.00

DP00040 PREMARK, WHITE, VIZIGRIP,

24" X 3', 15'/PK, 125 MIL
 120.00 PK $140.25 $16,830.00

DP02533 PREMARK, ARROW, LEFT,

WHITE, 8' X 6' 4", 125 MIL

2/Box

 8.00 PKG $293.55 $2,348.40

DP02534 PREMARK, ARROW, RIGHT,

WHITE, 8' X 6' 4", 125 MIL

2/Box

 2.00 PKG $293.55 $587.10

Page 1 of 4Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 148 of 411



Traffic Safety Supply

2324 SE Umatilla Street

Portland, OR 97202

Phone: (503) 235-8531

Fax: (503) 235-5112

CSR: Susan Gerkin

SALES QUOTE

Quote Number Date Customer Number

Quote valid for 30 days.

SQN00036366 C00023212-09-21

Total Before Tax $35,857.50

Tax $2,868.60

$38,726.10Order Total 

Page 2 of 4Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 149 of 411



DISC UNIT PRICE EXT QUOTE PRICEQUOTE PRICEQUANTITY UOMITEM ID

Net 30 Days QUOTE

SHIP VIACUSTOMER PO NOTERMS DESCRIPTION

12/9/20211/8/2022

SHIP NOORDER NODISC DUE DATESLS2SLS1 ORDER DATE SHIP DATEDUE DATE

12/9/20210025805509

S
H
I
P

T
O

50036-1
BENTON COUNTY
CLAYTON RAWLING
102808 WISER PKWY
General Delivery
KENNEWICK, WA 99338

TOTAL DUE 43,889.57

S
O
L
D

T
O

50036
COUNTY OF BENTON / WA
P O BOX 1001
PROSSER, WA 99350-0954

<< QUOTE >>

1

USDCURRENCY ID

12/9/2021

QUOTE NO

PAGE

QUOTE DATE

00258055

LOCATION

CSSR

KRR

INCOTERMS

CONTRACT NUMBER

DAP

To: Fax or Email:

Ennis-Flint, Inc.
Flint Trading Division
4161 Piedmont Parkway, Suite 370
Greensboro, NC 27410
United States of America
(800) 331-8118

158.95PACK 19,074.00158.950000120.0000008430566

PM125WH Q15' BD 24" WHITE LINE

FLINT01

455.94EACH 18,237.60455.94000040.000000

0

PMK8130103A

PM125WH Q1 BD 20'x8' RXR KIT

FLINT01

332.69PACK 2,661.52332.6900008.0000008330241L

PM125WH Q2 BD 8' LFT TURN ARW

FLINT01

332.69PACK 665.38332.6900002.000000

0

8330241R

PM125WH Q2 BD 8' RGT TURN ARW

FLINT01

0.00NA 0.000.0000001.000000D

Order Notes

QUOTE ONLY
PREPARED BY KRISTIN RUNKEL
336-477-8353
KRUNKEL@ENNISFLINT.COM

POC CLAYTON RAWLINGS 509-222-2307
EMAIL CLAYTON.RAWLINGS@CO.BENTON.WA.US

FLINT01

All sales are subject to Ennis-Flint, Inc.’s (dba Flint Trading) Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale. A copy can be found on the 
Ennis-Flint website.  For Remittance by Credit Card, a 3% transaction fee will be assessed.

  
TOTALCC FeeSALES TAXFREIGHTNONTAXABLETAXABLE

43,889.570.003,251.070.000.0040,638.50

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 150 of 411





Original: BCSO 
cc: Auditor; PA; Procurement; Public Safety Psychological Services  L. Small  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND LEPS-PSS, PLLC DBA/ PUBLIC SAFETY 
PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES FOR “AS NEEDED” PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS FOR 
THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2020-982, the Board of Benton County Commissioners awarded a 
Professional Services Contract to LEPS-PSS, PLLC dba/ Public Safety Psychological Services 
for “as needed” psychological evaluations for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office; and  
 
WHEREAS, the attached First Amendment is necessary as both parties wish to extend the 
term of the Contract, add Contract Representative information, and amend Exhibit B, while 
maintaining the rest of the Contract in full force and effect, as further outlined in the attached 
First Amendment; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby approves the attached First Amendment; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the Contract shall be effective January 1, 2021 and 
shall expire December 31, 2022; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman or the Chairman Pro-
Tem to sign the attached First Amendment to the Professional Services Contract between 
Benton County and LEPS-PSS, PLLC dba/ Public Safety Psychological Services for “as 
needed” psychological evaluations for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office.  
 
 
Dated this _________ day of __________________, 2021 
 
 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 

         
             

          Chairman Pro-Tem 
         

 
             

              Member 
Attest  
                           Clerk of the Board 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 152 of 411



1 

First Amendment to the  

Professional Services Contract 

between 

Benton County and Public Safety Psychological Services, PLLC 

This Contract Amendment, made and entered into this _______ day of 

____________, 2021 by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision with 

its principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter “COUNTY”), 

and LEPS-PSS, PLLC (DBA, PUBLIC SAFETY PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES), a 

professional service corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington 

with its principal offices at 20818 44th Ave. West, Suite 150, Lynwood, WA 98036 

(hereinafter “CONTRACTOR”).   

Recitals 

Whereas, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR entered into a Professional Services 

Contract dated December 15, 2020 whereby the CONTRACTOR agreed to perform pre-

employment psychological screening and services consisting of testing and an interview 

to assess applicant suitability, psychological stability, and strengths vis-à-vis the 

COUNTY’S desire to employ individuals capable of performing the job.  

Whereas, both parties wish to extend the term of the Contract, add 

CONTRACTOR Contract Representative information, and amend Exhibit B, while 

maintaining the rest of the Contract in full force and effect.  

Now, therefore, in consideration of the provisions and agreement set forth herein, 

the parties agree that all provisions of their original Contract shall remain in effect except 

the below sections which are amended as follows: 

a) Section 2. DURATION OF CONTRACT: - is hereby deleted and replaced 

in its entirety with the following: 

The term of this Contract shall be effective January 1, 2021 and shall expire on 

December 31, 2022.  The CONTRACTOR shall complete all work by the time(s) 

specified herein, or if no such time is otherwise specified, no later than the 

expiration date.  

b) Section 4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES: - is hereby amended by 

adding CONTRACTOR’S contact information. 

a. For CONTRACTOR: Cerise M. Vablais, MBA, PhD, ABPP 

Public Safety Psychological Services, PLLC 

20818 44th Ave. West, Suite 150 

Lynwood, WA 98036 

10
December

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 153 of 411



2 

c) Exhibit B. Method of Compensation: - is hereby deleted and replaced in its 

entirety with the attached Exhibit B. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this First Contract Amendment have executed 

this Amendment to take effect upon the signature of both parties.  

Dated: __________________________ Dated: ________________________ 

BENTON COUNTY 

_________________________________                               

Shon Small, Chairman 

Title: Benton County Commissioner 

Date: ____________________________

LEPS-PSS, (DBA, PUBLIC SAFETY 

PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES  

_________________________________ 

Cerise Vablais, COO  

Date: ___________________________ 

Approved as to form: 

_________________________________ 

Ryan J. Lukson 

Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney  

12/10/2021

12/10/2021

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 154 of 411



- 17 - 

EXHIBIT “B” 

Method of Compensation 

The COUNTY shall compensate the CONTRACTOR    for the services 
and deliverables performed under this contract according to 

the following rate(s): 

• Bifurcated, Pre-Offer Suitability Assessment

Report (SAR) $125 per applicant.

• Post-Offer Assessment and recommendation

(Classic), including testing, a facet-to-face

interview with the screening psychologist and the

report and recommendation of job suitability:

$410

• Test Materials – for applicants whose written

testing is completed but who are dropped from the

applicant pool prior to the interview, the only

fee is a material use charge of $45, Mailing

material to the agency via Federal Express Ground

(or similar service) is included in the

assessment rate. Special mailing (e.g. Priority

Express) is invoiced to the department at the

cost to PSPS.

• No Show Fee - $150 will be charged in the event

that BCSO cancels an appointment less than three

(3) business days before a scheduled interview or

in the event the applicant does not appear for 

their scheduled appointment. 

• Fitness for Duty Evaluations - $410 for initial

testing and psychological interview. $275 an

hour for report writing. 2 hours consultation

included at no charge. PSPS will give BCSO an

estimate of the hours required prior to the

appointment.

• Critical Incident Debriefings - $200 (includes

follow-ups at the 4 month, 6 month and 1 year

anniversary of the incident)

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 155 of 411



- 18 -  

• Training: All PSPS clients receive two hours of 

training annually on a topic of their choice. 

Training beyond two hours annually is $250 an 

hour or $1500 for an 8-hour workshop. 

• Other Consulting - appearance at proceedings to 

address challenged findings, management 

consultation, research (outside adverse impact 

reports), will be billed hourly at a rate of 

$200/per hour/per psychologist. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 156 of 411







 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND AND BENTON COUNTY 
FOR GENERAL EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES 
Page 1 of 6 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN CITY OF WEST RICHLAND AND BENTON COUNTY 

FOR GENERAL EQUIPMENT AND/OR SERVICES 
THROUGH THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

 
This agreement is made and entered into by and between City of West Richland and Benton County, 
pursuant to the authority granted by Chapter 39.34 RCW, INTERLOCAL COOPERATION ACT. 
 

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

 
1.01 PURPOSE.  The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions under which 

Benton County, through its Public Works Department, and City of West Richland, through its 
Public Works Department, will temporarily provide equipment and/or services to the other party.  
Neither Benton County nor City of West Richland are required under this Agreement to provide 
equipment or services to the other party in the event that the party from whom the equipment 
or services are sought does not have the equipment or services available, or determines, in its 
sole discretion, that providing the requested equipment or services would not be in its best 
interest.  No new or separate legal or administrative entity is created by this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II 
ADMINISTRATION 

 
2.01 ADMINISTRATOR.  The following individuals are designated as representatives of the respective 

parties.  The representatives shall be responsible for administration of this Agreement and for 
coordinating and monitoring performance under this Agreement.  In the event such 
representatives are changed, the party making the change shall notify the other party. 

 
2.02 City of West Richland’s representative shall be the Public Works Director, or designee. 
 
2.03 Benton County’s representative shall be the County Engineer, or designee. 

 
2.04 Requests for rental of equipment or performance of work shall be submitted by the requesting 

agency to the agency providing the equipment or work in writing in the form of a Task Letter.  
Written requests shall be submitted prior to rental of equipment or performance of work.  In the 
event that circumstances do not permit a written request to be submitted, the representative for 
the agency providing equipment or work may waive this requirement, providing that a written 
request, along with an explanation of the circumstances for the waiver, be provided as soon as is 
practical. 

 
ARTICLE III 

DURATION AND RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT 
 
3.01 DURATION AND RENEWAL.  This Agreement shall be effective January 1, 2022 and shall continue 

through December 31, 2026.  The obligation to provide compensation for the use of equipment 
or service provided during the term of this Agreement shall survive this Agreement’s termination 
or expiration. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 159 of 411



 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND AND BENTON COUNTY 
FOR GENERAL EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES 
Page 2 of 6 

 
ARTICLE IV 

COMPENSATION 
 

4.01 COMPENSATION.  Both parties hereby agree to reimburse the other for the costs of the work 
performed or equipment rented, as requested by one agency herein to the other agency herein 
and shall be based on the actual cost of labor, equipment, plus all costs for fringe benefits to labor, 
including but not limited to, Social Security, retirement, industrial and medical aid costs, prorated 
sick leave, holidays and vacation time, and group medical insurance.  Also, an additional five 
percent (5%) of the total costs shall be added for overhead expenses for accounting, billing, and 
administrative services, after a certified statement of the costs is provided within thirty (30) days 
of the service or equipment rental.  The amount shall be paid within thirty (30) days after billing. 

 
ARTICLE V 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 

5.01 COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.  Each party shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 
rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the performance of this Agreement, including 
without limitation, all those pertaining to wages and hours, confidentiality, disabilities, and 
discrimination. 

 
5.02 MAINTENANCE AND AUDIT OF RECORDS.  Each party shall maintain books, records, documents, 

and other materials relevant to its performance under this Agreement.  These records shall be 
subject to inspection, review, and audit by either party or its designee, and the Washington State 
Auditor’s Office.  Each party shall retain all such books, records documents, and other material 
for the applicable retention period under federal and Washington law. 

 
5.03 ON-SITE INSPECTIONS.  Either party or its designee may evaluate the performance of this 

Agreement through on-site inspection to determine whether performance is in compliance with 
the standards set forth in this Agreement and in compliance with federal, state, and local laws, 
rules, regulations, and ordinances. 

 
5.04 TREATMENT OF ASSETS AND PROPERTY.  No fixed assets or personal or real property will be 

jointly or cooperatively acquired, held, used, or disposed of pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
5.05 IMPROPER INFLUENCE.  Each party agrees, warrants, and represents that it did not and will not 

employ, retain, or contract with any person or entity on a contingent compensation basis for the 
purpose of seeking, obtaining, maintaining, or extending this Agreement.  Each party agrees, 
warrants, and represents that no gratuity whatsoever has been or will be offered or conferred 
with a view towards obtaining, maintaining, or extending this Agreement. 

 
5.06  CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  The elected and appointed officials and employees of the parties shall 

not have any personal interest, direct or indirect, which gives rise to a conflict of interest. 
 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 160 of 411



 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND AND BENTON COUNTY 
FOR GENERAL EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES 
Page 3 of 6 

5.07 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING.  No portion of this Agreement may be assigned or 
subcontracted to any other individual, firm, or entity without the express and prior written 
approval of both parties authorized representatives. 

 
5.08 NOTICE.  Except as set forth elsewhere in the Agreement, for all purposes under this Agreement, 

except service of process, notice to Benton County shall be to the County Engineer, P.O. Box 1001, 
Prosser, Washington 99350; and to the Benton County Commissioners, P.O. Box 190, Prosser, 
Washington 99350.  Notice to City of West Richland for all purposes under this Agreement shall 
be to City of West Richland, Public Works Director, 3100 Belmont Blvd., Suite 102, West Richland, 
Washington 99353 and the West Richland City Council, 3801 W. Van Giesen St., West Richland, 
Washington 99353. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 
6.01 MUTUAL INDEMNITY.  To the extent of its comparative liability, each party agrees to indemnify, 

defend and hold the other party, its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and 
volunteers, harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including 
but not limited to court costs, attorney’s fees and alternative dispute resolution costs, for any 
personal injury, for any bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and for any damage to or 
destruction of any property (including the loss of use resulting therefrom) which are alleged or 
proven to be caused by an act or omission, negligent or otherwise, of its elected and appointed 
officials, employees, agents or volunteers. 
 
A Party shall not be required to indemnify, defend, or hold the other Party harmless if the claim, 
damage, loss or expense for personal injury, for any bodily injury, sickness, disease or death or for 
any damage to or destruction of any property (including the loss of use resulting therefrom) is 
caused by the sole act or omission of the other Party. 
 
In the event of any concurrent act or omission of the parties, negligent or otherwise, each party 
shall pay its proportionate share of any damages awarded based upon comparative liability.  The 
parties agree to maintain a consolidated defense to claims made against them and to reserve all 
indemnity claims against each other until after liability to the claimant and damages, if any, are 
adjudicated.  If any claim is resolved by voluntary settlement and the parties cannot agree upon 
apportionment of damages and defense costs, they shall submit apportionment to binding 
arbitration. 
 
In any and all claims against City of West Richland or its officers, officials, employees, or agents by 
any employee of Benton County, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of 
them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under 
Section 6.01 of this Agreement shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or 
type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Benton County or subcontractor 
under workers compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts, it being 
clearly agreed and understood by the parties hereto that Benton County expressly waives any 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 161 of 411



 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND AND BENTON COUNTY 
FOR GENERAL EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES 
Page 4 of 6 

immunity Benton County might have had under such laws, including but not limited to Title 51 of 
the Revised Code of Washington. 
 
In any and all claims against Benton County or its officers, officials, employees, or agents by any 
employee of City of West Richland, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any 
of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under 
Section 6.01 of this Agreement shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or 
type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for City of West Richland or 
subcontractor under workers compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee 
benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood by the parties hereto that City of West 
Richland expressly waives any immunity City of West Richland might have had under such laws, 
including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington. 
 

6.02 SURVIVAL OF INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS.  The parties agree all indemnity obligations shall survive 
the completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
DISPUTES 

 
7.01 DISPUTE RESOLUTION; GOVERNING LAW; VENUE.  In the event of a dispute regarding the 

enforcement, breach or interpretation of this Agreement, the parties shall first meet in a good 
faith effort to resolve such dispute.  Any judicial proceeding arising out of this contract shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Washington, and suit may be instituted and maintained only 
in the courts of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

TERMINATION 
 
8.01 TERMINATION.  Any party hereto may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ notice in 

writing either personally delivered or mailed postage-prepaid by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the party’s last known address for the purposes of giving notice under this 
paragraph.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance 
rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective 
date of termination. 

ARTICLE IX 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
9.01 CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS.  The Agreement may be changed, 

modified, amended or waived only by written agreement signed by the parties’ authorized 
representatives and adopted by resolution of each party’s legislative authority.  Any waiver of a 
term or condition of this Agreement shall apply only to the specific act, occurrence or omission 
and shall not constitute a waiver as to any other term or condition or future act, occurrence or 
omission.  Waiver or breach of any term or condition of this Agreement shall not be considered a 
waiver of any prior or subsequent breach. 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 162 of 411



 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND AND BENTON COUNTY 
FOR GENERAL EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES 
Page 5 of 6 

9.02 ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party may assign its rights or delegate its duties under this Agreement, 
whether by assignment, further subcontract or other means.  Any such attempted assignment or 
delegation shall be void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

 
9.03 SEVERABILITY.  In the event any term or condition of this Agreement or application thereof to any 

person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms, conditions or 
application of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid term, condition or 
application.  To this end the terms and conditions of this Agreement are declared severable. 

 
9.04 ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the 

parties.  All items incorporated herein by reference are attached.  No other understandings, oral 
or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind 
any of the parities hereto. 

 
9.05 INTERLOCAL COOPERATION ACT PROVISIONS.  All vehicles, equipment, inventory and any 

improvement thereon or fixtures purchased by City of West Richland, shall remain the sole 
property of City of West Richland.  All vehicles, equipment, inventory and any improvements 
thereon or fixtures purchased by Benton County, shall remain the sole property of Benton County. 
 
No independent special budget or funds are anticipated, nor shall be created without the prior 
written agreement of the parties.  It is not intended that a separate legal entity be established to 
conduct this cooperative undertaking, nor is the acquiring, holding, or disposing of real or 
personal property other than as specifically provided within the terms of this Agreement.   

 
A copy of this Agreement shall be filed with the Benton County Auditor's office or posted on City 
of West Richland’s or Benton County’s website as required by RCW 39.34.040. 
 

9.06 EVIDENCE OF AUTHORITY.  Upon execution of this Agreement, City of West Richland shall provide 
Benton County and Benton County shall provide City of West Richland with a copy of the 
resolution, ordinance, or other authority to execute this Agreement pursuant to RCW 
39.34.030(2), and said documents shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A 
(City of West Richland) and Exhibit B (Benton County). 
 
 
 
 

This section intentionally left blank. 
  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 163 of 411







 

Original:  Purchasing Dept.                   S. Christen  
c: Auditor, Procurement 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF ENTERING INTO A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PUBLIC WORKS 
CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND CONTINENTAL DOOR COMPANY 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution No. 2021-038 Benton County entered into a Public Works Contract, 
beginning January 1, 2021 and expiring December 31, 2021, with Continental Door Company to 
provide on-call maintenance and repair work on all garage doors at Benton County owned facilities; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the contract states the County has the right to renew the contract for an additional year 
without advertising; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Operations and Capital Programs recommends approval of the First 
Contact Amendment to extend the contract termination date to December 31, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, our departmental Deputy Prosecuting Attorney has reviewed and approved the 
Amendment and it has been signed by Continental Door Company; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED the Board of County Commissioners concurs with the Director of Operations and 
Capital Programs and approves the attached First Amendment to the Public Works Contract between 
Benton County and Continental Door Company, extending the expiration date to December 31, 2022, 
and the Chairman is hereby authorized to sign said Amendment; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED all other provisions of the contract remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
Dated this 21st day of December 2021. 

 ____________________________________ 
 Chairman 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Chairman Pro-Tem 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Member 
 

Attest:_____________________________                        Constituting the Board of County 
                    Clerk of the Board              Commissioners of Benton County, 
                                              Washington 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 166 of 411



   

  

              

                

             

                  

 

              

              

                 

                  

  

              

                

     

               

  

                   

                  

     

                  

            

      

 

 
    

   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 167 of 411



   
  

       

  

     

                

   

  

  

  

          

     

      

       

  

   

                 

     

                   

                 

                

                  

             

 

         

      

                 

                

  

 

      

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 168 of 411



        

          
             

            

             
              
              

            

             
           

                
               
               

        

               
                

  

             
               

            
             

               
            

               
   

   

   

   

     
   

  
     

   
Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 169 of 411



   

    

                   
               

   

              

 

    

    

    

  

   

 

 

   

       

     

  

    

  

          

 

   

                  
       

   

      
 

 

                             

                          
                         

       

                          
                        
                       

                       
                          

                       
                       

                       
                        
      

                              
                             

                          
                          
                          

                           
                    

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 170 of 411



   

                           
                       

                      

                         
                         
                          

                       
                           

                         
                   

                          
                        

                    
  

                         
                           

                      
                       

                           
                       

                          
                     

                        
                           
                       
                     

                         
                       

                         
  

                      
                            
                           

  

                        
                       
                       

                           
                          
                          

                          
                     
                         
                          

                  

                           
                            

                         
                       

                            
                             

                            
                            

                           
                       
                            

                        
       

                          

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 171 of 411



   

                         
       

                           
                          

                           
                           

                             
                         

                           
                      

                          
                        

                        
                     

                         
                            
                           

                         
   

                      
                          

                        
                             

                   

                        
                    

                          
                         

                              
                           

                        

                            
              

                          
                       

              
             

             
 

                   
                      

   

                       
                             

                       
                          

                          
                          
                        
                     

                              
                          

                    

                          
                          
                           

                        
                    

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 172 of 411



   

                           
                         

                            
                         

       

                       
                      

                           
                         

    

                         
                          

                           

                     
   

             
  

                           
              

                         
   

                        
                           

                     

                        
                 

                         
                     

                        

                        
         

                      
                     

             

 

 
 

   

  

 

    

    

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 173 of 411





Orig:  BCCD 
cc: Auditor, S. Godinez, Purchasing Dept., HCA 

Prepared by: L. Small  

 RESOLUTION 

  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

IN THE MATTER OF A GRANT AWARD AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

NO. K5680 BETWEEN WASHINGTON STATE HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY AND 

BENTON COUNTY FOR THE PURPOSE OF OPIOID TREATMENT NETWORK WITHIN 

THE BENTON COUNTY JAIL  

 

WHEREAS,  per Resolution 2020-1002 the Board of Benton County Commissioners accepted the 

grant award from Washington State Health Care Authority (HCA) for a maximum amount of 

$615,875 for the Medication for Opioid Use Disorder (MOUD) services provided to inmates within 

the Benton County Jail, with a term commencing September 30, 2020 and continuing through 

September 29, 2021; and   
 
WHEREAS, HCA provided notice of award to Benton County Corrections Department (BCCD) 
along with the attached Professional Services Contract No. K5680 for MOUD services with a 
maximum amount of $649,208 to be paid to Benton County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Chief of Corrections recommends accepting the grant funding to keep this important 
program going within the jail; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby accepts the grant award from Washington State Health Care Authority for a maximum amount 
of $649,208 for the performance of work as further outlined in the attached Professional Service 
Contract between Benton County and Health Care Authority; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman or Chairman Pro-Tem 
to sign the attached Professional Service Contract No. K5680 between Benton County and 
Washington State Health Care Authority; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached contract commences September 29, 2021 
and shall continue through September 29, 2022.  
  
Dated this _______ day of ___________________, 2021. 
 
 
                                   ____________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
                                   ____________________________             
 Chairman Pro-Tem 
Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board  
 ____________________________  
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 175 of 411





 

Washington State  2 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. STATEMENT OF WORK (SOW) .................................................................................................. 4 

2. DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................... 4 

3. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS ......................................................................................... 7 

3.1 PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS ..................................................................................... 7 

3.2 TERM ................................................................................................................................... 7 

3.3 COMPENSATION ................................................................................................................ 8 

3.4 INVOICE AND PAYMENT .................................................................................................... 8 

3.5 CONTRACTOR and HCA CONTRACT MANAGERS ........................................................... 8 

3.6 LEGAL NOTICES ................................................................................................................. 9 

3.7 INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS AND ORDER OF PRECEDENCE .......................... 10 

3.8 INSURANCE ...................................................................................................................... 10 

4. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS ..................................................................................... 12 

4.1 ACCESS TO DATA ............................................................................................................ 12 

4.2 ADVANCE PAYMENT PROHIBITED ................................................................................. 12 

4.3 AMENDMENTS .................................................................................................................. 12 

4.4 ASSIGNMENT .................................................................................................................... 12 

4.5 ATTORNEYS’ FEES .......................................................................................................... 13 

4.6 CHANGE IN STATUS ......................................................................................................... 13 

4.7 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION PROTECTION ............................................................... 13 

4.8 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION SECURITY ..................................................................... 14 

4.9 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION BREACH – REQUIRED NOTIFICATION ....................... 14 

4.10 CONTRACTOR’S PROPRIETARY INFORMATION ........................................................... 15 

4.11 COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES .................................................................... 15 

4.12 DEBARMENT ..................................................................................................................... 15 

4.13 DISPUTES ......................................................................................................................... 16 

4.14 ENTIRE AGREEMENT ....................................................................................................... 16 

4.15 FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY & TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) .................. 17 

4.16 FORCE MAJEURE ............................................................................................................. 17 

4.17 FUNDING WITHDRAWN, REDUCED OR LIMITED ........................................................... 17 

4.18 GOVERNING LAW ............................................................................................................. 18 

4.19 INDEMNIFICATION ............................................................................................................ 18 

4.20 INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE CONTRACTOR ....................................................... 18 

4.21 INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE ........................................................................... 19 

4.22 LEGAL AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE ...................................................................... 19 

4.23 LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY ............................................................................................ 19 
Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 177 of 411



 

Washington State  3 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.24 NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES ................................................................................. 19 

4.25 NONDISCRIMINATION ...................................................................................................... 19 

4.26 OVERPAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR .............................................................................. 20 

4.27 PAY Equity ......................................................................................................................... 20 

4.28 PUBLICITY ......................................................................................................................... 20 

4.29 RECORDS AND DOCUMENTS REVIEW .......................................................................... 21 

4.30 REMEDIES NON-EXCLUSIVE ........................................................................................... 21 

4.31 RIGHT OF INSPECTION .................................................................................................... 21 

4.32 RIGHTS IN DATA/OWNERSHIP ........................................................................................ 21 

4.33 RIGHTS OF STATE AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENTS ..................................................... 23 

4.34 SEVERABILITY .................................................................................................................. 23 

4.35 SITE SECURITY ................................................................................................................ 23 

4.36 SUBCONTRACTING .......................................................................................................... 23 

4.37 SUBRECIPIENT ................................................................................................................. 24 

4.38 SURVIVAL .......................................................................................................................... 25 

4.39 TAXES ............................................................................................................................... 25 

4.40 TERMINATION ................................................................................................................... 26 

4.41 TERMINATION PROCEDURES ......................................................................................... 27 

4.42 WAIVER ............................................................................................................................. 28 

4.43 WARRANTIES.................................................................................................................... 28 

 

Attachments 

Attachment 1:  Confidential Information Security Requirements  

Attachment 2:  Federal Compliance, Certifications and Assurances  

Attachment 3:  Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Data Collection 

Form  

Attachment 4: SAMHSA Award Terms  

Schedules 

Schedule A:  Statement of Work (SOW) SOR Opioid Treatment Networks  

 

Exhibits 

Exhibit A:  Definitions Specific to Special Terms   

Exhibit B:  15 Principal CLAS Standard  

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 178 of 411



 

Washington State  4 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Contract #K5680 for Opioid Treatment Services 

The state of Washington, acting by and through the Health Care Authority (HCA), seeks client 
services for a strong treatment and recovery support referral network and increase access to 
and utilization of MOUD Services; and 

WHEREAS, client services are exempt from competitive solicitation (RCW 39.26.125(6)) and 
County of Benton (Contractor) seeks to provide such services. 

HCA has determined that entering into a Contract with County of Benton will meet HCA’s 
needs and will be in the State’s best interest. 

NOW THEREFORE, HCA awards to County of Benton this Contract, the terms and conditions 
of which will govern Contractor’s providing to HCA a strong treatment and recovery support 
referral network and increase access to and utilization of MOUD Services. 

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises as set forth in this Contract, the parties agree as 

follows: 

1. STATEMENT OF WORK (SOW) 

The Contractor will provide the services and staff as described in Schedule A: Statement of 

Work. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

“Authorized Representative” means a person to whom signature authority has been 

delegated in writing acting within the limits of his/her authority. 

“Breach” means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Confidential 

Information that compromises the security, confidentiality, or integrity of the Confidential 

Information. 

“Business Associate” means a Business Associate as defined in 45 CFR 160.103, who 

performs or assists in the performance of an activity for or on behalf of HCA, a Covered Entity, 

that involves the use or disclosure of protected health information (PHI).  Any reference to 

Business Associate in this DSA includes Business Associate’s employees, agents, officers, 

Subcontractors, third party contractors, volunteers, or directors. 

“Business Days and Hours” means Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Pacific 

Time, except for holidays observed by the state of Washington. 

“Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services” or “CMS” means the federal office under the 

Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services, responsible for the 

Medicare and Medicaid programs. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 179 of 411



 

Washington State  5 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

“CFR” means the Code of Federal Regulations.  All references in this Contract to CFR 

chapters or sections include any successor, amended, or replacement regulation. The CFR 

may be accessed at http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse.  

“Community” means an approved geographic area within school district boundaries, or within 

High School Attendance Areas (HSAA) and their feeder schools. 

“Confidential Information” means information that may be exempt from disclosure to the 

public or other unauthorized persons under chapter 42.56 RCW or chapter 70.02 RCW or other 

state or federal statutes or regulations. Confidential Information includes, but is not limited to, 

any information identifiable to an individual that relates to a natural person’s health, (see also 

Protected Health Information); finances, education, business, use or receipt of governmental 

services, names, addresses, telephone numbers, social security numbers, driver license 

numbers, financial profiles, credit card numbers, financial identifiers and any other identifying 

numbers, law enforcement records, HCA source code or object code, or HCA or State security 

information.  

“Contract” means this Contract document and all schedules, exhibits, attachments, 

incorporated documents and amendments. 

“Contractor” means County of Benton, its employees and agents. Contractor includes any 

firm, provider, organization, individual or other entity performing services under this Contract. It 

also includes any Subcontractor retained by Contractor as permitted under the terms of this 

Contract. 

“Covered entity” means a health plan, a health care clearinghouse or a health care provider 

who transmits any health information in electronic form to carry out financial or administrative 

activities related to health care, as defined in 45 CFR 160.103. 

“Data” means information produced, furnished, acquired, or used by Contractor in meeting 

requirements under this Contract. 

“Effective Date” means the first date this Contract is in full force and effect. It may be a 

specific date agreed to by the parties; or, if not so specified, the date of the last signature of a 

party to this Contract. 

“Encrypt” means to encode confidential information into a format that can only be read by 

those possessing a “key”; a password, digital certificate or other mechanism available only to 

authorized users. Encryption must use a key length of at least 128 bits. 

“Fiscal/Program Requirements” means the Supplementary Instructions and Fiscal Policy 

Standards for Reimbursable Costs as used by HCA, located at: https://www.hca.wa.gov/billers-

providers-partners/prior-authorization-claims-and-billing/provider-billing-guides-and-fee-

schedules#t. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 180 of 411



 

Washington State  6 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

“HCA Contract Manager” means the individual identified on the cover page of this Contract 

who will provide oversight of the Contractor’s activities conducted under this Contract. 

“Health Care Authority” or “HCA” means the Washington State Health Care Authority, any 

division, section, office, unit or other entity of HCA, or any of the officers or other officials 

lawfully representing HCA. 

“OMB” means the Office of Management and Budget of the executive office of the president of 

the United States. 

"Overpayment" means any payment or benefit to the Contractor in excess of that to which the 

Contractor is entitled by law, rule, or this Contract, including amounts in dispute. 

“Proprietary Information” means information owned by Contractor to which Contractor claims 

a protectable interest under law. Proprietary Information includes, but is not limited to, 

information protected by copyright, patent, trademark, or trade secret laws. 

“Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means individually identifiable information that 

relates to the provision of health care to an individual; the past, present, or future physical or 

mental health or condition of an individual; or past, present, or future payment for provision of 

health care to an individual, as defined in 45 CFR 160.103. Individually identifiable information 

is information that identifies the individual or about which there is a reasonable basis to believe 

it can be used to identify the individual, and includes demographic information. PHI is 

information transmitted, maintained, or stored in any form or medium. 45 CFR 164.501. PHI 

does not include education records covered by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 

as amended, 20 USC 1232g(a)(4)(b)(iv). 

“RCW” means the Revised Code of Washington. All references in this Contract to RCW 

chapters or sections include any successor, amended, or replacement statute.  Pertinent RCW 

chapters can be accessed at:  http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/. 

“Statement of Work” or “SOW” means a detailed description of the work activities the 

Contractor is required to perform under the terms and conditions of this Contract, including the 

deliverables and timeline, and is Schedule A hereto.  

“Subcontractor” means a person or entity that is not in the employment of the Contractor, 

who is performing all or part of the business activities under this Contract under a separate 

contract with Contractor. The term “Subcontractor” means subcontractor(s) of any tier. 

“Subrecipient” means a non-federal entity that expends federal awards received from a pass-

through entity to carry out a federal program, but does not include an individual that is a 

beneficiary of such a program. A sub-recipient may also be a recipient of other federal awards 

directly from a federal awarding agency. As in 45 C.F.R. 75.2, or any successor or replacement 

to such definition, for any federal award from HHS; or 2 C.F.R. 200.93, or any successor or 

replacement to such definition, for any other federal award. See OMB circular a-133 for 

additional details. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 181 of 411



 

Washington State  7 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

“USC” means the United States Code.  All references in this Contract to USC chapters or 

sections will include any successor, amended, or replacement statute.  The USC may be 

accessed at http://uscode.house.gov/  

“WAC” means the Washington Administrative Code. All references to WAC chapters or 

sections will include any successor, amended, or replacement regulation. Pertinent WACs may 

be accessed at:  http://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/. 

3. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

3.1 PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS  

Expected performance under this Contract includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

3.1.1 Knowledge of applicable state and federal laws and regulations pertaining to subject 

of contract; 

3.1.2 Use of professional judgment; 

3.1.3 Collaboration with HCA staff in Contractor’s conduct of the services; 

3.1.4 Conformance with HCA directions regarding the delivery of the services;  

3.1.5 Timely, accurate and informed communications; 

3.1.6 Regular completion and updating of project plans, reports, documentation and 

communications; 

3.1.7 Regular, punctual attendance at all meetings; and 

3.1.8 Provision of high quality services. 

Prior to payment of invoices, HCA will review and evaluate the performance of Contractor 

in accordance with Contract and these performance expectations and may withhold 

payment if expectations are not met or Contractor’s performance is unsatisfactory. 

3.2 TERM 

3.2.1 The initial term of the Contract will commence on September 30, 2021 and continue 

through September 29, 2022, unless terminated sooner as provided herein.  

3.2.2 This Contract may be extended in whatever time increments HCA deems 

appropriate. No change in terms and conditions will be permitted during these 

extensions unless specifically agreed to in writing. 

3.2.3 Work performed without a contract or amendment signed by the authorized 

representatives of both parties will be at the sole risk of the Contractor. HCA will not 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 182 of 411



 

Washington State  8 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

pay any costs incurred before a contract or any subsequent amendment(s) is fully 

executed. 

3.3 COMPENSATION 

3.3.1 The Maximum Compensation payable to Contractor for the performance of all 

things necessary for or incidental to the performance of work as set forth in 

Schedule A:  Statement of Work is $649,208.00, and includes any allowable 

expenses.  

3.3.2 Federal funds disbursed through this Contract were received by HCA through OMB 

Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number:  93.788, SAMHSA 

Center for Substance Abuse Treatment, 1H79TI083286-01, Washington State 

Opioid Response II (SOR II) Grant. Contractor agrees to comply with applicable 

rules and regulations associated with these federal funds and has signed 

Attachment 2:  Federal Compliance, Certification and Assurances, attached. 

3.4 INVOICE AND PAYMENT 

3.4.1 Invoice System 

a. The Contractor must submit invoices using State Form A-19 Invoice Voucher, 

or such other form as designated by HCA. Consideration for services rendered 

will be payable upon receipt of properly completed invoices submitted to  

megan.fowler@hca.wa.gov. 

b. Invoices must be submitted only once per month and must include the HCA 

Contract number in the subject line of the email 

c. Submit invoices for costs due and payable under this Contract that were 

incurred prior to the expiration date within ninety (90) days of the date services 

were provided 

d. Additional requirements as outlined in Schedule A: Statement of Work 

3.5 CONTRACTOR AND HCA CONTRACT MANAGERS  

3.5.1 Contractor’s Contract Manager will have prime responsibility and final authority for 

the services provided under this Contract and be the principal point of contact for 

the HCA Contract Manager for all business matters, performance matters, and 

administrative activities. 

3.5.2 HCA’s Contract Manager is responsible for monitoring the Contractor’s performance 

and will be the contact person for all communications regarding contract 

performance and deliverables. The HCA Contract Manager has the authority to 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 183 of 411





 

Washington State  10 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

3.6.3 Notices are effective upon receipt or four (4) Business Days after mailing, whichever 

is earlier.  

3.6.4 The notice address and information provided above may be changed by written 

notice of the change given as provided above.   

3.7 INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS AND ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

Each of the documents listed below is by this reference incorporated into this Contract.  In 

the event of an inconsistency, the inconsistency will be resolved in the following order of 

precedence: 

3.7.1 Applicable Federal and State of Washington statutes and regulations; 

3.7.2 Recitals  

3.7.3 Special Terms and Conditions; 

3.7.4 General Terms and Conditions; 

3.7.5 Attachment 1:  Confidential Information Security Requirements;  

3.7.6 Attachment 2:  Federal Compliance, Certifications and Assurances; 

3.7.7 Attachment 3:  Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Data 

Collection Form;  

3.7.8 Attachment 4:  SAMHSA Award Terms;  

3.7.9 Schedule A(s):  Statement(s) of Work; 

3.7.10 Exhibit A: Definitions Specific to Special Terms; 

3.7.11 Exhibit B: 15 CLAS Principals; and 

3.7.12 Any other provision, term or material incorporated herein by reference or otherwise 

incorporated. 

3.8 INSURANCE 

Contractor must provide insurance coverage as set out in this section.  The intent of the 

required insurance is to protect the State should there be any claims, suits, actions, costs, 

damages or expenses arising from any negligent or intentional act or omission of 

Contractor or Subcontractor, or agents of either, while performing under the terms of this 

Contract. Contractor must provide insurance coverage that is maintained in full force and 

effect during the term of this Contract, as follows: 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 185 of 411



 

Washington State  11 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

3.8.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy - Provide a Commercial General 

Liability Insurance Policy, including contractual liability, in adequate quantity to 

protect against legal liability arising out of contract activity but no less than 

$1 million per occurrence/$2 million general aggregate.  Additionally, Contractor is 

responsible for ensuring that any Subcontractors provide adequate insurance 

coverage for the activities arising out of subcontracts. 

3.8.2 Business Automobile Liability.  In the event that services delivered pursuant to this 

Contract involve the use of vehicles, either owned, hired, or non-owned by the 

Contractor, automobile liability insurance is required covering the risks of bodily 

injury (including death) and property damage, including coverage for contractual 

liability.  The minimum limit for automobile liability is $1,000,000 per occurrence, 

using a Combined Single Limit for bodily injury and property damage. 

3.8.3 Professional Liability Errors and Omissions – Provide a policy with coverage of not 

less than $1 million per claim/$2 million general aggregate. 

3.8.4 The insurance required must be issued by an insurance company/ies authorized to 

do business within the state of Washington, and must name HCA and the state of 

Washington, its agents and employees as additional insured’s under any 

Commercial General and/or Business Automobile Liability policy/ies. All policies 

must be primary to any other valid and collectable insurance. In the event of 

cancellation, non-renewal, revocation or other termination of any insurance 

coverage required by this Contract, Contractor must provide written notice of such 

to HCA within one (1) Business Day of Contractor’s receipt of such notice. Failure to 

buy and maintain the required insurance may, at HCA’s sole option, result in this 

Contract’s termination. 

Upon request, Contractor must submit to HCA a certificate of insurance that outlines the 

coverage and limits defined in the Insurance section. If a certificate of insurance is 

requested, Contractor must submit renewal certificates as appropriate during the term of 

the contract. 

3.8.5 The Contractor certifies that it is self-insured, is a member of a risk pool, or 

maintains the types and amounts of insurance identified above and will provde 

certificates of insurance to that effect to HCA upon request. 

Upon request, Contractor must submit to HCA a certificate of insurance that outlines 

the coverage and limits defined in the Insurance section. If a certificate of insurance 

is requested, Contractor must submit renewal certificates as appropriate during the 

term of the contract. 

3.8.6 Privacy Breach Response Coverage. Contractor must maintain insurance to cover 

costs incurred in connection with a Breach, or potential Breach, including: 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 186 of 411



 

Washington State  12 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

3.8.6.1 Computer forensics assistance to assess the impact of the Breach or                             

potential Breach, determine root cause, and help determine whether and the 

extent to which notification must be provided to comply with Breach 

notification laws. 

3.8.6.2 Notification and call center services for individuals affected by a Breach.  

3.8.6.3 Breach resolution and mitigation services for individuals affected by a Breach, 

including fraud prevention, credit monitoring and identity theft assistance. 

3.8.6.4 Regulatory defense, fines and penalties from any claim in the form of a 

regulatory proceeding resulting from a violation of any applicable privacy or 

security law(s) or regulation(s).  

The policy must be maintained for the term of this Agreement and three (3) years following 

its termination. 

4. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

4.1 ACCESS TO DATA 

In compliance with RCW 39.26.180 (2) and federal rules, the Contractor must provide 

access to any data generated under this Contract to HCA, the Joint Legislative Audit and 

Review Committee, the State Auditor, and any other state or federal officials so authorized 

by law, rule, regulation, or agreement at no additional cost. This includes access to all 

information that supports the findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the 

Contractor’s reports, including computer models and methodology for those models. 

4.2 ADVANCE PAYMENT PROHIBITED 

No advance payment will be made for services furnished by the Contractor pursuant to 

this Contract. 

4.3 AMENDMENTS 

This Contract may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties. Such amendments 

will not be binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind 

each of the parties. 

4.4 ASSIGNMENT 

4.4.1 Contractor may not assign or transfer all or any portion of this Contract or any of its 

rights hereunder, or delegate any of its duties hereunder, except delegations as set 

forth in Section 4.36, Subcontracting, without the prior written consent of HCA.  Any 

permitted assignment will not operate to relieve Contractor of any of its duties and 

obligations hereunder, nor will such assignment affect any remedies available to 

HCA that may arise from any breach of the provisions of this Contract or warranties 

made herein, including but not limited to, rights of setoff. Any attempted assignment, 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 187 of 411



 

Washington State  13 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

transfer or delegation in contravention of this Subsection 4.4.1 of the Contract will 

be null and void.  

4.4.2 HCA may assign this Contract to any public agency, commission, board, or the like, 

within the political boundaries of the State of Washington, with written notice of thirty 

(30) calendar days to Contractor.  

4.4.3 This Contract will inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties hereto and 

their permitted successors and assigns. 

4.5 ATTORNEYS’ FEES 

In the event of litigation or other action brought to enforce the terms of this Contract, each 

party agrees to bear its own attorneys’ fees and costs. 

4.6 CHANGE IN STATUS 

In the event of any substantive change in its legal status, organizational structure, or fiscal 

reporting responsibility, Contractor will notify HCA of the change. Contractor must provide 

notice as soon as practicable, but no later than thirty (30) calendar days after such a 

change takes effect. 

4.7 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION PROTECTION 

4.7.1 Contractor acknowledges that some of the material and information that may come 

into its possession or knowledge in connection with this Contract or its performance 

may consist of Confidential Information. Contractor agrees to hold Confidential 

Information in strictest confidence and not to make use of Confidential Information 

for any purpose other than the performance of this Contract, to release it only to 

authorized employees or Subcontractors requiring such information for the 

purposes of carrying out this Contract, and not to release, divulge, publish, transfer, 

sell, disclose, or otherwise make the information known to any other party without 

HCA’s express written consent or as provided by law. Contractor agrees to 

implement physical, electronic, and managerial safeguards to prevent unauthorized 

access to Confidential Information (See Attachment 1:  Confidential Information 

Security Requirements). 

4.7.2 Contractors that come into contact with Protected Health Information may be 

required to enter into a Business Associate Agreement with HCA in compliance with 

the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 

Pub. L. 104-191, as modified by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 

2009 (“ARRA”), Sec. 13400 – 13424, H.R. 1 (2009) (HITECH Act) (HIPAA).  

4.7.3 HCA reserves the right to monitor, audit, or investigate the use of Confidential 

Information collected, used, or acquired by Contractor through this Contract. 

Violation of this section by Contractor or its Subcontractors may result in termination 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 188 of 411



 

Washington State  14 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

of this Contract and demand for return of all Confidential Information, monetary 

damages, or penalties. 

4.7.4 The obligations set forth in this Section will survive completion, cancellation, 

expiration, or termination of this Contract. 

4.8 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION SECURITY 

The federal government, including the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 

(CMS), and the State of Washington all maintain security requirements regarding privacy, 

data access, and other areas. Contractor is required to comply with the Confidential 

Information Security Requirements set out in Attachment 1 to this Contract and 

appropriate portions of the Washington OCIO Security Standard, 141.10 

(https://ocio.wa.gov/policies/141-securing-information-technology-assets/14110-securing-

information-technology-assets). 

4.9 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION BREACH – REQUIRED NOTIFICATION  

4.9.1 Contractor must notify the HCA Privacy Officer (PrivacyOfficer@hca.wa.gov) within 

five Business Days of discovery of any Breach or suspected Breach of Confidential 

Information. 

4.9.2 Contractor will take steps necessary to mitigate any known harmful effects of such 

unauthorized access including, but not limited to, sanctioning employees and taking 

steps necessary to stop further unauthorized access. Contractor agrees to 

indemnify and hold HCA harmless for any damages related to unauthorized use or 

disclosure of Confidential Information by Contractor, its officers, directors, 

employees, Subcontractors or agents. 

4.9.3 If notification of the Breach or possible Breach must (in the judgment of HCA) be 

made under the HIPAA Breach Notification Rule, or RCW 42.56.590 or RCW 

19.255.010, or other law or rule, then: 

4.9.3.1 HCA may choose to make any required notifications to the individuals, to the 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Secretary (DHHS) 

Secretary, and to the media, or direct Contractor to make them or any of 

them.  

4.9.3.2 In any case, Contractor will pay the reasonable costs of notification to 

individuals, media, and governmental agencies and of other actions HCA 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 189 of 411



 

Washington State  15 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

reasonably considers appropriate to protect HCA clients (such as paying for 

regular credit watches in some cases). 

4.9.3.3 Contractor will compensate HCA clients for harms caused to them by any 

Breach or possible Breach.  

4.9.4 Any breach of this clause may result in termination of the Contract and the demand 

for return or disposition (Attachment 1, Section 6) of all Confidential Information.  

4.9.5 Contractor’s obligations regarding Breach notification survive the termination of this 

Contract and continue for as long as Contractor maintains the Confidential 

Information and for any breach or possible breach at any time.  

4.10 CONTRACTOR’S PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

Contractor acknowledges that HCA is subject to chapter 42.56 RCW, the Public Records 

Act, and that this Contract will be a public record as defined in chapter 42.56 RCW. Any 

specific information that is claimed by Contractor to be Proprietary Information must be 

clearly identified as such by Contractor. To the extent consistent with chapter 42.56 RCW, 

HCA will maintain the confidentiality of Contractor’s information in its possession that is 

marked Proprietary. If a public disclosure request is made to view Contractor’s Proprietary 

Information, HCA will notify Contractor of the request and of the date that such records will 

be released to the requester unless Contractor obtains a court order from a court of 

competent jurisdiction enjoining that disclosure. If Contractor fails to obtain the court order 

enjoining disclosure, HCA will release the requested information on the date specified. 

4.11 COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 

Contractor warrants that no person or selling agent has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this Contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide 

established agents maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business.  

HCA will have the right, in the event of breach of this clause by the Contractor, to annul 

this Contract without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 

consideration or recover by other means the full amount of such commission, percentage, 

brokerage or contingent fee. 

4.12 DEBARMENT 

By signing this Contract, Contractor certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, 

proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded in any Washington 

State or Federal department or agency from participating in transactions (debarred). 

Contractor agrees to include the above requirement in any and all subcontracts into which 

it enters, and also agrees that it will not employ debarred individuals. Contractor must 

immediately notify HCA if, during the term of this Contract, Contractor becomes debarred. 

HCA may immediately terminate this Contract by providing Contractor written notice, if 

Contractor becomes debarred during the term hereof. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 190 of 411



 

Washington State  16 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.13 DISPUTES 

The parties will use their best, good faith efforts to cooperatively resolve disputes and 

problems that arise in connection with this Contract. Both parties will continue without 

delay to carry out their respective responsibilities under this Contract while attempting to 

resolve any dispute. When a genuine dispute arises between HCA and the Contractor 

regarding the terms of this Contract or the responsibilities imposed herein and it cannot be 

resolved between the parties’ Contract Managers, either party may initiate the following 

dispute resolution process. 

4.13.1 The initiating party will reduce its description of the dispute to writing and deliver it to 

the responding party (email acceptable). The responding party will respond in 

writing within five (5) Business Days (email acceptable). If the initiating party is not 

satisfied with the response of the responding party, then the initiating party may 

request that the HCA Director review the dispute. Any such request from the 

initiating party must be submitted in writing to the HCA Director within five (5) 

Business Days after receiving the response of the responding party. The HCA 

Director will have sole discretion in determining the procedural manner in which he 

or she will review the dispute. The HCA Director will inform the parties in writing 

within five (5) Business Days of the procedural manner in which he or she will 

review the dispute, including a timeframe in which he or she will issue a written 

decision.    

4.13.2 A party's request for a dispute resolution must: 

4.13.2.1 Be in writing;  

4.13.2.2 Include a written description of the dispute;  

4.13.2.3 State the relative positions of the parties and the remedy sought;  

4.13.2.4 State the Contract Number and the names and contact information for the 

parties; 

4.13.3 This dispute resolution process constitutes the sole administrative remedy available 

under this Contract. The parties agree that this resolution process will precede any 

action in a judicial or quasi-judicial tribunal. 

4.14 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

HCA and Contractor agree that the Contract is the complete and exclusive statement of 

the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of the Contract and 

supersedes all letters of intent or prior contracts, oral or written, between the parties 

relating to the subject matter of the Contract, except as provided in Section 4.43 

Warranties. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 191 of 411



 

Washington State  17 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.15 FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY & TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA)  

4.15.1 This Contract is supported by federal funds that require compliance with the Federal 

Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA or the Transparency Act).  

The purpose of the Transparency Act is to make information available online so the 

public can see how federal funds are spent. 

4.15.2 To comply with the act and be eligible to enter into this Contract, Contractor must 

have a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS®) number.  A DUNS® number 

provides a method to verify data about your organization. If Contractor does not 

already have one, a DUNS® number is available free of charge by contacting Dun 

and Bradstreet at www.dnb.com. 

4.15.3 Information about Contractor and this Contract will be made available on 

www.uscontractorregistration.com by HCA as required by P.L. 109-282.  HCA’s 

Attachment 3:  Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Data 

Collection Form, is considered part of this Contract and must be completed and 

returned along with the Contract. 

4.16 FORCE MAJEURE 

A party will not be liable for any failure of or delay in the performance of this Contract for 

the period that such failure or delay is due to causes beyond its reasonable control, 

including but not limited to acts of God, war, strikes or labor disputes, embargoes, 

government orders or any other force majeure event. 

4.17 FUNDING WITHDRAWN, REDUCED OR LIMITED 

If HCA determines in its sole discretion that the funds it relied upon to establish this 

Contract have been withdrawn, reduced or limited, or if additional or modified conditions 

are placed on such funding after the effective date of this contract but prior to the normal 

completion of this Contract, then HCA, at its sole discretion, may: 

4.17.1 Terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 4.40.3, Termination for Non-Allocation 

of Funds; 

4.17.2 Renegotiate the Contract under the revised funding conditions; or 

4.17.3 Suspend Contractor’s performance under the Contract upon five (5) Business Days’ 

advance written notice to Contractor. HCA will use this option only when HCA 

determines that there is reasonable likelihood that the funding insufficiency may be 

resolved in a timeframe that would allow Contractor’s performance to be resumed 

prior to the normal completion date of this Contract. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 192 of 411



 

Washington State  18 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.17.3.1 During the period of suspension of performance, each party will inform the 

other of any conditions that may reasonably affect the potential for 

resumption of performance. 

4.17.3.2 When HCA determines in its sole discretion that the funding insufficiency 

is resolved, it will give Contractor written notice to resume performance. 

Upon the receipt of this notice, Contractor will provide written notice to 

HCA informing HCA whether it can resume performance and, if so, the 

date of resumption. For purposes of this subsection, “written notice” may 

include email. 

4.17.3.3 If the Contractor’s proposed resumption date is not acceptable to HCA and 

an acceptable date cannot be negotiated, HCA may terminate the contract 

by giving written notice to Contractor. The parties agree that the Contract 

will be terminated retroactive to the date of the notice of suspension.  HCA 

will be liable only for payment in accordance with the terms of this 

Contract for services rendered prior to the retroactive date of termination. 

4.18 GOVERNING LAW 

This Contract is governed in all respects by the laws of the state of Washington, without 

reference to conflict of law principles. The jurisdiction for any action hereunder is 

exclusively in the Superior Court for the state of Washington, and the venue of any action 

hereunder is in the Superior Court for Thurston County, Washington. Nothing in this 

Contract will be construed as a waiver by HCA of the State’s immunity under the 11th 

Amendment to the United States Constitution. 

4.19 INDEMNIFICATION 

Contractor must defend, indemnify, and save HCA harmless from and against all claims, 

including reasonable attorneys’ fees resulting from such claims, for any or all injuries to 

persons or damage to property, or Breach of its confidentiality and notification obligations 

under Section 4.7 Confidential Information Protection and Section 4.9 Confidentiality 

Breach-Required Notification,  arising from intentional or negligent acts or omissions of 

Contractor, its officers, employees, or agents, or Subcontractors, their officers, employees, 

or agents, in the performance of this Contract.  

4.20 INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE CONTRACTOR 

The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by this 

Contract.  Contractor and its employees or agents performing under this Contract are not 

employees or agents of HCA. Contractor will not hold itself out as or claim to be an officer 

or employee of HCA or of the State of Washington by reason hereof, nor will Contractor 

make any claim of right, privilege or benefit that would accrue to such employee under 

law. Conduct and control of the work will be solely with Contractor. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 193 of 411



 

Washington State  19 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.21 INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE 

Prior to performing work under this Contract, Contractor must provide or purchase 

industrial insurance coverage for the Contractor’s employees, as may be required of an 

“employer” as defined in Title 51 RCW, and must maintain full compliance with Title 51 

RCW during the course of this Contract.  

4.22 LEGAL AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

4.22.1 During the term of this Contract, Contractor must comply with all local, state, and 

federal licensing, accreditation and registration requirements/standards, necessary 

for the performance of this Contract and all other applicable federal, state and local 

laws, rules, and regulations.  

4.22.2 While on the HCA premises, Contractor must comply with HCA operations and 

process standards and policies (e.g., ethics, Internet / email usage, data, network 

and building security, harassment, as applicable). HCA will make an electronic copy 

of all such policies available to Contractor. 

4.22.3 Failure to comply with any provisions of this section may result in Contract 

termination. 

4.23 LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY 

Only the HCA Authorized Representative has the express, implied, or apparent authority 

to alter, amend, modify, or waive any clause or condition of this Contract. Furthermore, 

any alteration, amendment, modification, or waiver or any clause or condition of this 

Contract is not effective or binding unless made in writing and signed by the HCA 

Authorized Representative. 

4.24 NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

HCA and Contractor are the only parties to this contract.  Nothing in this Contract gives or 

is intended to give any benefit of this Contract to any third parties. 

4.25 NONDISCRIMINATION 

During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor must comply with all federal and 

state nondiscrimination laws, regulations and policies, including but not limited to: Title VII 

of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 

1990 (ADA), 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq., 28 CFR Part 35; and Title 49.60 RCW, 

Washington Law Against Discrimination. In the event of Contractor’s noncompliance or 

refusal to comply with any nondiscrimination law, regulation or policy, this Contract may be 

rescinded, canceled, or terminated in whole or in part under the Termination for Default 

sections, and Contractor may be declared ineligible for further contracts with HCA. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 194 of 411



 

Washington State  20 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.26 OVERPAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR  

In the event that overpayments or erroneous payments have been made to the Contractor 

under this Contract, HCA will provide written notice to Contractor and Contractor will 

refund the full amount to HCA within thirty (30) calendar days of the notice. If Contractor 

fails to make timely refund, HCA may charge Contractor one percent (1%) per month on 

the amount due, until paid in full. If the Contractor disagrees with HCA’s actions under this 

section, then it may invoke the dispute resolution provisions of Section 4.13 Disputes. 

4.27 PAY EQUITY 

4.27.1 Contractor represents and warrants that, as required by Washington state law 

(Engrossed House Bill 1109, Sec. 211), during the term of this Contract, it agrees to 

equality among its workers by ensuring similarly employed individuals are 

compensated as equals. For purposes of this provision, employees are similarly 

employed if (i) the individuals work for Contractor, (ii) the performance of the job 

requires comparable skill, effort, and responsibility, and (iii) the jobs are performed 

under similar working conditions.  Job titles alone are not determinative of whether 

employees are similarly employed. 

4.27.2 Contractor may allow differentials in compensation for its workers based in good 

faith on any of the following:  (i) a seniority system; (ii) a merit system; (iii) a system 

that measures earnings by quantity or quality of production; (iv) bona fide job-

related factor(s); or (v) a bona fide regional difference in compensation levels. 

4.27.3 Bona fide job-related factor(s)” may include, but not be limited to, 

education,  training, or experience, that is: (i) consistent with business necessity; (ii) 

not based on or derived from a gender-based differential; and (iii) accounts for the 

entire differential. 

4.27.4 A “bona fide regional difference in compensation level” must be (i) consistent with 

business necessity; (ii) not based on or derived from a gender-based differential; 

and (iii) account for the entire differential. 

4.27.5 Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, upon breach of warranty and 

Contractor’s failure to provide satisfactory evidence of compliance within thirty (30) 

Days of HCA’s request for such evidence, HCA may suspend or terminate this 

Contract. 

4.28 PUBLICITY 

4.28.1 The award of this Contract to Contractor is not in any way an endorsement of 

Contractor or Contractor’s Services by HCA and must not be so construed by 

Contractor in any advertising or other publicity materials.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 195 of 411



 

Washington State  21 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.28.2 Contractor agrees to submit to HCA, all advertising, sales promotion, and other 

publicity materials relating to this Contract or any Service furnished by Contractor in 

which HCA’s name is mentioned, language is used, or Internet links are provided 

from which the connection of HCA’s name with Contractor’s Services may, in HCA’s 

judgment, be inferred or implied. Contractor further agrees not to publish or use 

such advertising, marketing, sales promotion materials, publicity or the like through 

print, voice, the Web, and other communication media in existence or hereinafter 

developed without the express written consent of HCA prior to such use. 

4.29 RECORDS AND DOCUMENTS REVIEW 

4.29.1 The Contractor must maintain books, records, documents, magnetic media, 

receipts, invoices or other evidence relating to this Contract and the performance of 

the services rendered, along with accounting procedures and practices, all of which 

sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended 

in the performance of this Contract. At no additional cost, these records, including 

materials generated under this Contract, are subject at all reasonable times to 

inspection, review, or audit by HCA, the Office of the State Auditor, and state and 

federal officials so authorized by law, rule, regulation, or agreement [See 42 USC 

1396a(a)(27)(B); 42 USC 1396a(a)(37)(B); 42 USC 1396a(a)(42(A); 42 CFR 431, 

Subpart Q; and 42 CFR 447.202]. 

4.29.2 The Contractor must retain such records for a period of six (6) years after the date 

of final payment under this Contract. 

4.29.3 If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year 

period, the records must be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings 

involving the records have been resolved. 

4.30 REMEDIES NON-EXCLUSIVE 

The remedies provided in this Contract are not exclusive, but are in addition to all other 

remedies available under law. 

4.31 RIGHT OF INSPECTION 

The Contractor must provide right of access to its facilities to HCA, or any of its officers, or 

to any other authorized agent or official of the state of Washington or the federal 

government, at all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, 

compliance, and/or quality assurance under this Contract. 

4.32 RIGHTS IN DATA/OWNERSHIP 

4.32.1 HCA and Contractor agree that all data and work products (collectively “Work 

Product”) produced pursuant to this Contract will be considered a work for hire 

under the U.S. Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. §101 et seq, and will be owned by HCA. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 196 of 411



 

Washington State  22 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Contractor is hereby commissioned to create the Work Product. Work Product 

includes, but is not limited to, discoveries, formulae, ideas, improvements, 

inventions, methods, models, processes, techniques, findings, conclusions, 

recommendations, reports, designs, plans, diagrams, drawings, Software, 

databases, documents, pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, 

studies, computer programs, films, tapes, and/or sound reproductions, to the extent 

provided by law. Ownership includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the 

ability to transfer these rights and all information used to formulate such Work 

Product. 

4.32.2 If for any reason the Work Product would not be considered a work for hire under 

applicable law, Contractor assigns and transfers to HCA, the entire right, title and 

interest in and to all rights in the Work Product and any registrations and copyright 

applications relating thereto and any renewals and extensions thereof. 

4.32.3 Contractor will execute all documents and perform such other proper acts as HCA 

may deem necessary to secure for HCA the rights pursuant to this section. 

4.32.4 Contractor will not use or in any manner disseminate any Work Product to any third 

party, or represent in any way Contractor ownership of any Work Product, without 

the prior written permission of HCA. Contractor will take all reasonable steps 

necessary to ensure that its agents, employees, or Subcontractors will not copy or 

disclose, transmit or perform any Work Product or any portion thereof, in any form, 

to any third party. 

4.32.5 Material that is delivered under this Contract, but that does not originate therefrom 

(“Preexisting Material”), must be transferred to HCA with a nonexclusive, royalty-

free, irrevocable license to publish, translate, reproduce, deliver, perform, display, 

and dispose of such Preexisting Material, and to authorize others to do so. 

Contractor agrees to obtain, at its own expense, express written consent of the 

copyright holder for the inclusion of Preexisting Material. HCA will have the right to 

modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the Preexisting Material by 

Contractor. 

4.32.6 Contractor must identify all Preexisting Material when it is delivered under this 

Contract and must advise HCA of any and all known or potential infringements of 

publicity, privacy or of intellectual property affecting any Preexisting Material at the 

time of delivery of such Preexisting Material. Contractor must provide HCA with 

prompt written notice of each notice or claim of copyright infringement or 

infringement of other intellectual property right worldwide received by Contractor 

with respect to any Preexisting Material delivered under this Contract.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 197 of 411



 

Washington State  23 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.33 RIGHTS OF STATE AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENTS  

In accordance with 45 C.F.R. 95.617, all appropriate state and federal agencies, including 

but not limited to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), will have a 

royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, translate, or 

otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for Federal Government purposes:  (i) 

software, modifications, and documentation designed, developed or installed with Federal 

Financial Participation (FFP) under 45 CFR Part 95, subpart F; (ii) the Custom Software 

and modifications of the Custom Software, and associated Documentation designed, 

developed, or installed with FFP under this Contract; (iii) the copyright in any work 

developed under this Contract; and (iv) any rights of copyright to which Contractor 

purchases ownership under this Contract. 

4.34 SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this Contract or the application thereof to any person(s) or 

circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity will not affect the other provisions or 

applications of this Contract that can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to 

this end the provisions or application of this Contract are declared severable. 

4.35 SITE SECURITY 

While on HCA premises, Contractor, its agents, employees, or Subcontractors must 

conform in all respects with physical, fire or other security policies or regulations. Failure to 

comply with these regulations may be grounds for revoking or suspending security access 

to these facilities. HCA reserves the right and authority to immediately revoke security 

access to Contractor staff for any real or threatened breach of this provision. Upon 

reassignment or termination of any Contractor staff, Contractor agrees to promptly notify 

HCA. 

4.36 SUBCONTRACTING 

4.36.1 Neither Contractor, nor any Subcontractors, may enter into subcontracts for any of 

the work contemplated under this Contract without prior written approval of HCA. 

HCA has sole discretion to determine whether or not to approve any such 

subcontract. In no event will the existence of the subcontract operate to release or 

reduce the liability of Contractor to HCA for any breach in the performance of 

Contractor’s duties.  

4.36.2 Contractor is responsible for ensuring that all terms, conditions, assurances and 

certifications set forth in this Contract are included in any subcontracts.  

4.36.3 If at any time during the progress of the work HCA determines in its sole judgment 

that any Subcontractor is incompetent or undesirable, HCA will notify Contractor, 

and Contractor must take immediate steps to terminate the Subcontractor's 

involvement in the work. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 198 of 411



 

Washington State  24 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.36.4 The rejection or approval by the HCA of any Subcontractor or the termination of a 

Subcontractor will not relieve Contractor of any of its responsibilities under the 

Contract, nor be the basis for additional charges to HCA. 

4.36.5 HCA has no contractual obligations to any Subcontractor or vendor under contract 

to the Contractor. Contractor is fully responsible for all contractual obligations, 

financial or otherwise, to its Subcontractors. 

4.37 SUBRECIPIENT 

4.37.1 General 

If the Contractor is a subrecipient (as defined in 45 CFR 75.2 and 2 CFR 200.93) 

of federal awards, then the Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.501 and 45 

CFR 75.501, shall: 

4.37.1.1 Maintain records that identify, in its accounts, all federal awards received 

and expended and the federal programs under which they were received, 

by Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) title and number, 

award number and year, name of the federal agency, and name of the 

pass-through entity; 

4.37.1.2 Maintain internal controls that provide reasonable assurance that the 

Contractor is managing federal awards in compliance with laws, 

regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could 

have a material effect on each of its federal programs; 

4.37.1.3 Prepare appropriate financial statements, including a schedule of 

expenditures of federal awards; 

4.37.1.4 Incorporate OMB Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501 and 45 CFR 75.501 audit 

requirements into all agreements between the Contractor and its 

Subcontractors who are subrecipients; 

4.37.1.5 Comply with any future amendments to OMB Super Circular 2 CFR 

200.501 and 45 CFR 75.501 and any successor or replacement Circular 

or regulation; 

4.37.1.6 Comply with the applicable requirements of OMB Super Circular 2 CFR 

200.501 and 45 CFR 75.501 and any future amendments to OMB Super 

Circular 2 CFR 200.501 and 45 CFR 75.501, and any successor or 

replacement Circular or regulation; and 

4.37.1.7 Comply with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe streets Act of 1968, 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 

Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Title IX 

of the Education Amendments of 1972, The Age Discrimination Act of 

1975, and The Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 28 

C.F.R. Part 42, Subparts C.D.E. and G, and 28 C.F.R. Part 35 and 39. (Go 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 199 of 411



 

Washington State  25 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

to http://ojp.gov/about/offices/ocr.htm for additional information and access 

to the aforementioned Federal laws and regulations.) 

4.37.2 Single Audit Act Compliance 

If the Contractor is a subrecipient and expends $750,000 or more in federal awards 

from any and/or all sources in any fiscal year, the Contractor will procure and pay 

for a single audit or a program-specific audit for that fiscal year.  Upon completion 

of each audit, the Contractor will: 

4.37.2.1 Submit to the Authority contact person the data collection form and 

reporting package specified in OMB Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501 and 45 

CFR 75.501, reports required by the program-specific audit guide (if 

applicable), and a copy of any management letters issued by the auditor; 

4.37.2.2 Follow-up and develop corrective action for all audit findings; in 

accordance with OMB Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501 and 45 CFR 75.501, 

prepare a “Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings.” 

4.37.3 Overpayments 

4.37.3.1 If it is determined by HCA, or during the course of a required audit, that 

Contractor has been paid unallowable costs under this or any Program 

Agreement, Contractor will refund the full amount to HCA as provided in 

Section 4.26 Overpayments to Contractors.  

4.38 SURVIVAL 

The terms and conditions contained in this Contract that, by their sense and context, are 

intended to survive the completion, cancellation, termination, or expiration of the Contract 

will survive. In addition, the terms of the sections titled Confidential Information Protection, 

Confidential Information Breach – Required Notification, Contractor’s Proprietary 

Information, Disputes, Overpayments to Contractor, Publicity, Records and Documents 

Review, Rights in Data/Ownership, and Rights of State and Federal Governments will 

survive the termination of this Contract.  The right of HCA to recover any overpayments 

will also survive the termination of this Contract. 

4.39 TAXES 

HCA will pay sales or use taxes, if any, imposed on the services acquired hereunder. 

Contractor must pay all other taxes including, but not limited to, Washington Business and 

Occupation Tax, other taxes based on Contractor’s income or gross receipts, or personal 

property taxes levied or assessed on Contractor’s personal property. HCA, as an agency 

of Washington State government, is exempt from property tax. 

Contractor must complete registration with the Washington State Department of Revenue 

and be responsible for payment of all taxes due on payments made under this Contract. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 200 of 411



 

Washington State  26 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.40 TERMINATION  

4.40.1 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT 

In the event HCA determines that Contractor has failed to comply with the terms 

and conditions of this Contract, HCA has the right to suspend or terminate this 

Contract. HCA will notify Contractor in writing of the need to take corrective action. 

If corrective action is not taken within five (5) Business Days, or other time period 

agreed to in writing by both parties, the Contract may be terminated. HCA reserves 

the right to suspend all or part of the Contract, withhold further payments, or 

prohibit Contractor from incurring additional obligations of funds during 

investigation of the alleged compliance breach and pending corrective action by 

Contractor or a decision by HCA to terminate the Contract. 

In the event of termination for default, Contractor will be liable for damages as 

authorized by law including, but not limited to, any cost difference between the 

original Contract and the replacement or cover Contract and all administrative 

costs directly related to the replacement Contract, e.g., cost of the competitive 

bidding, mailing, advertising, and staff time.  

If it is determined that Contractor: (i) was not in default, or (ii) its failure to perform 

was outside of its control, fault or negligence, the termination will be deemed a 

“Termination for Convenience.”   

4.40.2 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

When, at HCA’s sole discretion, it is in the best interest of the State, HCA may 

terminate this Contract in whole or in part by providing ten (10) calendar days’ 

written notice. If this Contract is so terminated, HCA will be liable only for payment 

in accordance with the terms of this Contract for services rendered prior to the 

effective date of termination. No penalty will accrue to HCA in the event the 

termination option in this section is exercised. 

4.40.3 TERMINATION FOR NONALLOCATION OF FUNDS 

If funds are not allocated to continue this Contract in any future period, HCA may 

immediately terminate this Contract by providing written notice to the Contractor. 

The termination will be effective on the date specified in the termination notice. 

HCA will be liable only for payment in accordance with the terms of this Contract 

for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination. HCA agrees to 

notify Contractor of such nonallocation at the earliest possible time. No penalty will 

accrue to HCA in the event the termination option in this section is exercised.  

4.40.4 TERMINATION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF AUTHORITY 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 201 of 411



 

Washington State  27 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

In the event that the authority of HCA to perform any of its duties is withdrawn, 

reduced, or limited in any way after the commencement of this Contract and prior 

to normal completion, HCA may immediately terminate this Contract by providing 

written notice to the Contractor. The termination will be effective on the date 

specified in the termination notice. HCA will be liable only for payment in 

accordance with the terms of this Contract for services rendered prior to the 

effective date of termination. HCA agrees to notify Contractor of such withdrawal of 

authority at the earliest possible time. No penalty will accrue to HCA in the event 

the termination option in this section is exercised. 

4.40.5 TERMINATION FOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

HCA may terminate this Contract by written notice to the Contractor if HCA 

determines, after due notice and examination, that there is a violation of the Ethics 

in Public Service Act, Chapter 42.52 RCW, or any other laws regarding ethics in 

public acquisitions and procurement and performance of contracts. In the event 

this Contract is so terminated, HCA will be entitled to pursue the same remedies 

against the Contractor as it could pursue in the event Contractor breaches the 

contract. 

4.41 TERMINATION PROCEDURES 

4.41.1 Upon termination of this Contract, HCA, in addition to any other rights provided in 

this Contract, may require Contractor to deliver to HCA any property specifically 

produced or acquired for the performance of such part of this Contract as has been 

terminated. 

4.41.2 HCA will pay Contractor the agreed-upon price, if separately stated, for completed 

work and services accepted by HCA and the amount agreed upon by the Contractor 

and HCA for (i) completed work and services for which no separate price is stated; 

(ii) partially completed work and services; (iii) other property or services that are 

accepted by HCA; and (iv) the protection and preservation of property, unless the 

termination is for default, in which case HCA will determine the extent of the liability. 

Failure to agree with such determination will be a dispute within the meaning of 

Section 4.13 Disputes.  HCA may withhold from any amounts due the Contractor 

such sum as HCA determines to be necessary to protect HCA against potential loss 

or liability. 

4.41.3 After receipt of notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by HCA, 

Contractor must: 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 202 of 411



 

Washington State  28 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.41.3.1 Stop work under the Contract on the date of, and to the extent specified in, 

the notice; 

4.41.3.2 Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities 

except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of the work 

under the Contract that is not terminated;  

4.41.3.3 Assign to HCA, in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by 

HCA, all the rights, title, and interest of the Contractor under the orders 

and subcontracts so terminated; in which case HCA has the right, at its 

discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of 

such orders and subcontracts; 

4.41.3.4 Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such 

termination of orders and subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of 

HCA to the extent HCA may require, which approval or ratification will be 

final for all the purposes of this clause; 

4.41.3.5 Transfer title to and deliver as directed by HCA any property required to be 

furnished to HCA; 

4.41.3.6 Complete performance of any part of the work that was not terminated by 

HCA; and 

4.41.3.7 Take such action as may be necessary, or as HCA may direct, for the 

protection and preservation of the records related to this Contract that are 

in the possession of the Contractor and in which HCA has or may acquire 

an interest. 

4.42 WAIVER 

Waiver of any breach of any term or condition of this Contract will not be deemed a waiver 

of any prior or subsequent breach or default. No term or condition of this Contract will be 

held to be waived, modified, or deleted except by a written instrument signed by the 

parties. Only the HCA Authorized Representative has the authority to waive any term or 

condition of this Contract on behalf of HCA. 

4.43 WARRANTIES 

4.43.1 Contractor represents and warrants that it will perform all services pursuant to this 

Contract in a professional manner and with high quality and will immediately re-

perform any services that are not in compliance with this representation and 

warranty at no cost to HCA. 

4.43.2 Contractor represents and warrants that it will comply with all applicable local, State, 

and federal licensing, accreditation and registration requirements and standards 

necessary in the performance of the Services. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 203 of 411



 

Washington State  29 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

4.43.3 Any written commitment by Contractor within the scope of this Contract will be 

binding upon Contractor. Failure of Contractor to fulfill such a commitment may 

constitute breach and will render Contractor liable for damages under the terms of 

this Contract. For purposes of this section, a commitment by Contractor includes:  

(i) Prices, discounts, and options committed to remain in force over a specified 

period of time; and (ii) any warranty or representation made by Contractor to HCA 

or contained in any Contractor publications, or descriptions of services in written or 

other communication medium, used to influence HCA to enter into this Contract. 

 

 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 204 of 411



 

Washington State  30 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 
 Attachment 1: Confidential information Security Requirements 

Attachment 1  

Confidential Information Security Requirements 

1. Definitions 

In addition to the definitions set out in Section 2 of this Contract K5680 for Opioid Treatment 

Network Services, the definitions below apply to this Attachment.  

a. “Hardened Password” means a string of characters containing at least three of the following 

character classes: upper case letters; lower case letters; numerals; and special characters, 

such as an asterisk, ampersand or exclamation point.  

i. Passwords for external authentication must be a minimum of 10 characters long. 

ii. Passwords for internal authentication must be a minimum of 8 characters long. 

iii. Passwords used for system service or service accounts must be a minimum of 20 

characters long. 

b. “Portable/Removable Media” means any Data storage device that can be detached or 

removed from a computer and transported, including but not limited to: optical media (e.g. 

CDs, DVDs); USB drives; or flash media (e.g. CompactFlash, SD, MMC). 

c. “Portable/Removable Devices” means any small computing device that can be transported, 

including but not limited to: handhelds/PDAs/Smartphones; Ultramobile PC’s, flash memory 

devices (e.g. USB flash drives, personal media players); and laptops/notebook/tablet 

computers. If used to store Confidential Information, devices should be Federal Information 

Processing Standards (FIPS) Level 2 compliant.  

d. “Secured Area” means an area to which only Authorized Users have access. Secured Areas 

may include buildings, rooms, or locked storage containers (such as a filing cabinet) within a 

room, as long as access to the Confidential Information is not available to unauthorized 

personnel. 

e. “Transmitting” means the transferring of data electronically, such as via email, SFTP, 

webservices, AWS Snowball, etc. 

f. “Trusted System(s)” means the following methods of physical delivery: (1) hand-delivery by a 

person authorized to have access to the Confidential Information with written 

acknowledgement of receipt; (2) United States Postal Service (“USPS”) first class mail, or 

USPS delivery services that include Tracking, such as Certified Mail, Express Mail or 

Registered Mail; (3) commercial delivery services (e.g. FedEx, UPS, DHL) which offer 

tracking and receipt confirmation; and (4) the Washington State Campus mail system. For 

electronic transmission, the Washington State Governmental Network (SGN) is a Trusted 

System for communications within that Network. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 205 of 411



 

Washington State  31 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 
 Attachment 1: Confidential information Security Requirements 

g. “Unique User ID” means a string of characters that identifies a specific user and which, in 

conjunction with a password, passphrase, or other mechanism, authenticates a user to an 

information system. 

2. Confidential Information Transmitting 

a. When transmitting HCA’s Confidential Information electronically, including via email, the 

Data must be encrypted using NIST 800-series approved algorithms 

(http://csrc.nist.gov/publications/PubsSPs.html). This includes transmission over the public 

internet. 

b. When transmitting HCA’s Confidential Information via paper documents, the Receiving Party 

must use a Trusted System. 

3. Protection of Confidential Information 

The Contractor agrees to store Confidential Information as described: 

a. Data at Rest: 

i. Data will be encrypted with NIST 800-series approved algorithms. Encryption keys will 

be stored and protected independently of the data. Access to the Data will be restricted 

to Authorized Users through the use of access control lists, a Unique User ID, and a 

Hardened Password, or other authentication mechanisms which provide equal or 

greater security, such as biometrics or smart cards. Systems which contain or provide 

access to Confidential Information must be located in an area that is accessible only to 

authorized personnel, with access controlled through use of a key, card key, 

combination lock, or comparable mechanism.  

ii. Data stored on Portable/Removable Media or Devices: 

• Confidential Information provided by HCA on Removable Media will be encrypted 

with NIST 800-series approved algorithms. Encryption keys will be stored and 

protected independently of the Data. 

• HCA’s data must not be stored by the Receiving Party on Portable Devices or 

Media unless specifically authorized within the Data Share Agreement. If so 

authorized, the Receiving Party must protect the Data by: 

1. Encrypting with NIST 800-series approved algorithms. Encryption keys will 

be stored and protected independently of the data;  

2. Control access to the devices with a Unique User ID and Hardened 

Password or stronger authentication method such as a physical token or 

biometrics;  

3. Keeping devices in locked storage when not in use; 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 206 of 411



 

Washington State  32 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 
 Attachment 1: Confidential information Security Requirements 

4. Using check-in/check-out procedures when devices are shared; 

5. Maintain an inventory of devices; and 

6. Ensure that when being transported outside of a Secured Area, all devices 

with Data are under the physical control of an Authorized User.  

b. Paper documents. Any paper records containing Confidential Information must be protected 

by storing the records in a Secured Area that is accessible only to authorized personnel. 

When not in use, such records must be stored in a locked container, such as a file cabinet, 

locking drawer, or safe, to which only authorized persons have access. 

4. Confidential Information Segregation 

HCA Confidential Information received under this Contract must be segregated or otherwise 

distinguishable from non-HCA data. This is to ensure that when no longer needed by the 

Contractor, all HCA Confidential Information can be identified for return or destruction.  It also 

aids in determining whether HCA Confidential Information has or may have been compromised 

in the event of a security Breach. 

a. The HCA Confidential Information must be kept in one of the following ways: 

i. on media (e.g. hard disk, optical disc, tape, etc.) which will contain only HCA Data; 

or 

ii. in a logical container on electronic media, such as a partition or folder dedicated to 

HCA’s Data; or 

iii. in a database that will contain only HCA Data; or 

iv. within a database and will be distinguishable from non-HCA Data by the value of a 

specific field or fields within database records; or 

v. when stored as physical paper documents, physically segregated from non-HCA 

Data in a drawer, folder, or other container. 

b. When it is not feasible or practical to segregate HCA Confidential Information from non-

HCA data, then both the HCA Confidential Information and the non-HCA data with which it 

is commingled must be protected as described in this Attachment. 

5. Confidential Information Shared with Subcontractors 

If HCA Confidential Information provided under this Contract is to be shared with a 

Subcontractor, the contract with the Subcontractor must include all of the Confidential 

Information Security Requirements.   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 207 of 411



 

Washington State  33 Description of Services 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 
 Attachment 1: Confidential information Security Requirements 

6. Confidential Information Disposition 

When the Confidential Information is no longer needed, except as noted below, the Confidential 

Information must be returned to HCA or destroyed. Media are to be destroyed using a method 

documented within NIST 800-88 (http://csrc.nist.gov/publications/PubsSPs.html). 

a. For HCA’s Confidential Information stored on network disks, deleting unneeded 

Confidential Information is sufficient as long as the disks remain in a Secured Area and 

otherwise meet the requirements listed in Section 3, above. Destruction of the Confidential 

Information as outlined in this section of this Attachment may be deferred until the disks 

are retired, replaced, or otherwise taken out of the Secured Area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 208 of 411



 

Washington State  34 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Attachment 2: Federal Compliance, Certifications, and Assurances 

ATTACHMENT 2 

Federal Compliance, Certifications, and Assurances 

I. FEDERAL COMPLIANCE - The use of federal funds requires additional compliance and 
control mechanisms to be in place. The following represents the majority of compliance 
elements that may apply to any federal funds provided under this contract. For clarification 
regarding any of these elements or details specific to the federal funds in this contract, 
contact: Megan Fowler. 

a. Source of Funds SOR II: This Contract is being funded partially or in full through Cooperative 
Contract number 1H79TI083286-01, the full and complete terms and provisions of which are 
hereby incorporated into this Contract. Federal funds to support this Contract are identified by the 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number 93.788 in the amount of $649,208.00 
The Contractor or Subrecipient is responsible for tracking and reporting the cumulative amount 
expended under HCA Contract K5680. 

b. Period of Availability of Funds SOR II: Pursuant to 45 CFR 92.23, Contractor or Subrecipient may 
charge to the award only costs resulting from obligations of the funding period specified in 
1H79TI083286-01 unless carryover of unobligated balances is permitted, in which case the 
carryover balances may be charged for costs resulting from obligations of the subsequent funding 
period. All obligations incurred under the award must be liquidated no later than 90 days after the 
end of the funding period. 

c. Single Audit Act: This section applies to subrecipients only. Subrecipient (including 
private, for-profit hospitals and non-profit institutions) shall adhere to the federal Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501 and 45 CFR 75.501. A 
Subrecipient who expends $750,000 or more in federal awards during a given fiscal year 
shall have a single or program-specific audit for that year in accordance with the 
provisions of OMB Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501 and 45 CFR 75.501. 

d. Modifications: This Contract may not be modified or amended, nor may any term or 
provision be waived or discharged, including this particular Paragraph, except in writing, 
signed upon by both parties. 

1. Examples of items requiring Health Care Authority prior written approval include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

i. Deviations from the budget and Project plan. 

ii. Change in scope or objective of the Contract. 

iii. Change in a key person specified in the Contract. 

iv. The absence for more than one (1) months or a 25% reduction in time by the 
Project Manager/Director. 

v. Need for additional funding. 

vi. Inclusion of costs that require prior approvals as outlined in the appropriate 
cost principles. 

vii. Any changes in budget line item(s) of greater than twenty percent (20%) of 
the total budget in this Contract. 

2. No changes are to be implemented by the Sub-awardee until a written notice of 
approval is received from the Health Care Authority. 

e. Sub-Contracting: The Contractor or Subrecipient shall not enter into a sub-contract for any 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 209 of 411



 

Washington State  35 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Attachment 2: Federal Compliance, Certifications, and Assurances 

of the work performed under this Contract without obtaining the prior written approval of 
the Health Care Authority. If sub-contractors are approved by the Health Care Authority, 
the subcontract, shall contain, at a minimum, sections of the Contract pertaining to 
Debarred and Suspended Vendors, Lobbying certification, Audit requirements, and/or any 
other project Federal, state, and local requirements. 

f. Condition for Receipt of Health Care Authority Funds: Funds provided by Health Care 
Authority to the Contractor or Subrecipient under this Contract may not be used by the 
Contractor or Subrecipient as a match or cost-sharing provision to secure other federal 
monies without prior written approval by the Health Care Authority. 

g. Unallowable Costs: The Contractor or Subrecipient’s expenditures shall be subject to 
reduction for amounts included in any invoice or prior payment made which determined by 
HCA not to constitute allowable costs on the basis of audits, reviews, or monitoring of this 
Contract. 

h. Supplanting Compliance: SABG: If SABG funds support this Contract, the Block Grant will 
not be used to supplant State funding of alcohol and other drug prevention and treatment 
programs. (45 CFR section 96.123(a)(10)). 

i. Citizenship/Alien Verification/Determination: The Personal Responsibility and Work 
Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) of 1996 (PL 104-193) states that federal public 
benefits should be made available only to U.S. citizens and qualified aliens. Entities that 
offer a service defined as a “federal public benefit” must make a citizenship/qualified alien 
determination/ verification of applicants at the time of application as part of the eligibility 
criteria. Non-US citizens and unqualified aliens are not eligible to receive the services. PL 
104-193 also includes specific reporting requirements. 

j. Federal Compliance: The Contractor or Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable State 
and Federal statutes, laws, rules, and regulations in the performance of this Contract, 
whether included specifically in this Contract or not. 

k. Civil Rights and Non-Discrimination Obligations: During the performance of this Contract, 
the Contractor or Subrecipient shall comply with all current and future federal statutes 
relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (PL 88-352), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 
§§ 1681-1683 and 1685-1686), section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 
794), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101- 6107), the Drug Abuse 
Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (PL 92-255), the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and 
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (PL 91-616), §§523 and 
527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290dd-3 and 290ee-3), Title 
VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), and the Americans with 
Disability Act (42 U.S.C., Section 12101 et seq.) http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/civilrights. 

HCA Federal Compliance Contact Information 

Federal Grants and Budget Specialist Health Care Policy 

Washington State Health Care Authority 

Post Office Box 42710 

Olympia, Washington 98504-2710 

II. CIRCULARS ‘COMPLIANCE MATRIX’ - The following compliance matrix identifies the OMB 
Circulars that contain the requirements which govern expenditure of federal funds. These 
requirements apply to the Washington State Health Care Authority (HCA), as the primary 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 210 of 411



 

Washington State  36 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Attachment 2: Federal Compliance, Certifications, and Assurances 

recipient of federal funds and then follow the funds to the sub-awardee, County of Benton. 
The federal Circulars which provide the applicable administrative requirements, cost 
principles and audit requirements are identified by sub-awardee organization type. 

 OMB CIRCULAR 

ENTITY TYPE  ADMINISTRATIV

E 

REQUIREMENT

S 

COST 

PRINCIPLE

S 

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

State. Local and 

Indian Tribal 

Governments and 

Governmental 

Hospitals 

OMB Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501 and 45 CFR 75.501 

Non-Profit 

Organizations and 

Non-Profit Hospitals 

Colleges or 

Universities and 

Affiliated Hospitals 

For-Profit 

Organizations 

 

III. STANDARD FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES - Following are the 
Assurances, Certifications, and Special Conditions that apply to all federally funded (in whole 
or in part) Contracts administered by the Washington State Health Care Authority. 

1. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION : The undersigned 
(authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies to the best of his or 
her knowledge and belief, that the contractor, defined as the primary participant in 
accordance with 45 CFR Part 76, and its principals: are not presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any Federal Department or agency have not within a 3-year 
period preceding this contract been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; are not 
presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
Section 2 of this certification; and have not within a 3-year period preceding this 
contract had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for 
cause or default. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 211 of 411



 

Washington State  37 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Attachment 2: Federal Compliance, Certifications, and Assurances 

Should the Contractor or Subrecipient not be able to provide this certification, an explanation as 

to why should be placed after the assurances page in the contract. 

The contractor agrees by signing this contract that it will include, without modification, the clause 

above certification in all lower tier covered transactions (i.e., transactions with sub-grantees 

and/or contractors) and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions in accordance with 

45 CFR Part 76. 

2. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: The 

undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies that the 

contractor will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free workplace in accordance with 45 CFR 

Part 76 by: 

1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s 

workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation 

of such prohibition; Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform 

employees about 

i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

ii. The contractor’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

iii. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance 

programs; and 

iv. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 

occurring in the workplace; 

2. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the 

contract be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (I) above; 

3. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (I), above, that, as a 

condition of employment under the contract, the employee will— 

i. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 

ii. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal 

drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) calendar days after 

such conviction; 

4. Notifying the agency in writing within ten calendar days after receiving notice under 

paragraph (III)(b) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such 

conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position 

title, to every contract officer or other designee on whose contract activity the convicted 

employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for 

the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each 

affected grant; 

5. Taking one of the following actions, within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving notice 

under paragraph (III) (b), with respect to any employee who is so convicted— 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 212 of 411



 

Washington State  38 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Attachment 2: Federal Compliance, Certifications, and Assurances 

i. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and 

including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act 

of 1973, as amended; or 

ii. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance 

or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or 

local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 

6. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 

implementation of paragraphs (I) through (V). 

For purposes of paragraph (V) regarding agency notification of criminal drug convictions, Authority 

has designated the following central point for receipt of such notices: 

Legal Services Manager  

WA State Health Care Authority 

PO Box 42700 

Olympia, WA  98504-2700 

3. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING: Title 31, United States Code, Section 1352, 

entitled "Limitation on use of appropriated funds to influence certain Federal contracting and 

financial transactions," generally prohibits recipients of Federal grants and cooperative 

Contracts from using Federal (appropriated) funds for lobbying the Executive or Legislative 

Branches of the Federal Government in connection with a SPECIFIC grant or cooperative 

Contract. Section 1352 also requires that each person who requests or receives a Federal grant 

or cooperative Contract must disclose lobbying undertaken with non-Federal (nonappropriated) 

funds. These requirements apply to grants and cooperative Contracts EXCEEDING $100,000 

in total costs (45 CFR Part 93).  

The undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies, to the 

best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 

employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, 

or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering 

into of any cooperative Contract, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 

or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative Contract. 

2. If any funds other than Federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 

agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 

a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or 

cooperative Contract, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 

"Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions. (If needed, 

Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," its instructions, and continuation 

sheet are included at the end of this application form.) 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 213 of 411



 

Washington State  39 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Attachment 2: Federal Compliance, Certifications, and Assurances 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including subcontracts, subcontracts, 

and contracts under grants, loans and cooperative Contracts) and that all sub-recipients 

shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, U.S. Code. Any person who 
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

4. CERTIFICATION REGARDING PROGRAM FRAUD CIVIL REMEDIES ACT (PFCRA): The 
undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies that the 
statements herein are true, complete, and accurate to the best of his or her knowledge, and that 
he or she is aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject him 
or her to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. The undersigned agrees that the contracting 
organization will comply with the Public Health Service terms and conditions of award if a 
contract is awarded. 

5. CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE: Public Law 103-
227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted 
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an entity and used 
routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, early childhood development 
services, education or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are 
funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal 
grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The law also applies to children’s services that are 
provided in indoor facilities that are constructed, operated, or maintained with such Federal 
funds. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residence, portions of 
facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment, service providers whose sole source of 
applicable Federal funds is Medicare or Medicaid, or facilities where WIC coupons are 
redeemed. 

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary 
penalty of up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative 
compliance order on the responsible entity. 

By signing the certification, the undersigned certifies that the contracting organization will 

comply with the requirements of the Act and will not allow smoking within any portion of any 

indoor facility used for the provision of services for children as defined by the Act. 

The contracting organization agrees that it will require that the language of this certification be 

included in any subcontracts which contain provisions for children’s services and that all sub-

recipients shall certify accordingly. 

The Public Health Services strongly encourages all recipients to provide a smoke-free 
workplace and promote the non-use of tobacco products. This is consistent with the 
PHS mission to protect and advance the physical and mental health of the American 
people. 

6. CERTIFICATION REGARDING OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

1. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily 
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective contractor 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 214 of 411



 

Washington State  40 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Attachment 2: Federal Compliance, Certifications, and Assurances 

shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The 
certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or 
agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the 
prospective contractor to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such 
person from participation in this transaction. 

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If 
it is later determined that the prospective contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default. 

3. The prospective contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the department or 
agency to whom this contract is submitted if at any time the prospective contractor 
learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by 
reason of changed circumstances. 

4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered 
transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and 
voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the 
Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. 
You may contact the person to whom this contract is submitted for assistance in 
obtaining a copy of those regulations.  

5. The prospective contractor agrees by submitting this contract that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any 
lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless 
authorized by Authority. 

6. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a 
system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this 
clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that 
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business 
dealings. 

7. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a 
participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 
to the Federal Government, HCA may terminate this transaction for cause or default.  

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE REQUIRED 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL  

 

TITLE 

Please also print or type name: 

Jerome Delvin, Chairman 

 

Benton County Commissioner 

ORGANIZATION NAME: (if applicable) 

 

DATE 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 215 of 411





 

Washington State  42 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

      Attachment 3: Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 

1.   

2.   

3.   

4.   

5.   

Note: “Total compensation” means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the executive during the 

sub-recipient’s past fiscal year of the following (for more information see 17 CFR 229.402 (c) (2)) 

By signing this document, the Contractor Authorized Representative attests to the 

information. 

HCA will not endorse the Contractor’s sub-award until this form is completed and 

returned. 

FOR HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY USE ONLY 

HCA Contract Number:  K5680 

Sub-award Project Description (see instructions and examples below) 

 

Instructions for Sub-award Project Description: 

In the first line of the description provide a title for the sub-award that captures the main purpose 

of the Subrecipients work.  Then, indicate the name of the Subrecipient and provide a brief 

  Signature of Contractor Authorized Representative Date 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 217 of 411



 

Washington State  43 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

      Attachment 3: Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 

description that captures the overall purpose of the sub-award, how the funds will be used, and 

what will be accomplished.   

Example of a Sub-award Project Description: 

Increase Healthy Behaviors:  Educational Services District XYZ will provide training and 

technical assistance to chemical dependency centers to assist the centers to integrate tobacco 

use into their existing addiction treatment programs.  Funds will also be used to assist centers in 

creating tobacco free treatment environment

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 218 of 411





 

Washington State  45     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                             Attachment 4: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Terms 
 

Effective January 3, 2021, the salary limitation for Executive Level II is 

$199,300. 

Promotional Items SAMHSA grant funds may not be used for Promotional Items. 

Promotional Items include but are not limited to: Clothing and 

commemorative items such as pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios, 

lanyards, and conference bags. 

Acknowledgment of 

Federal Funding at 

Conferences and 

Meetings 

When a conference is funded by a grant or cooperative agreement, the 

recipient must include the following statement in all conference 

materials (including promotional materials, agenda, and internet sites): 

Funding for this conference was made possible 9in part) by (insert grant 

or cooperative agreement award number) from SAMHSA. The views 

expressed in written conference materials or publications and by 

speakers and moderators do not necessarily reflect the official policies 

of the Department of Health and Human Services; nor does mention of 

trade names, commercial practices, or organizations imply 

endorsements by the U.S. Government. 

Rights in Data and 

Publications 

As applicable, recipients agree to the requirements for intellectual 

property, rights in data, access to research data, publications, and 

sharing research tools, and intangible property and copyrights as 

described in 45 CFR 75.322 and the HHS Grants Policy Statement. 

HCA may copyright any work that is subject to copyright and was 

developed, or for which ownership was acquired, under a Federal 

Award. SAMHSA reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable 

right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the work for Federal 

purposes, and to authorize others to do so. 

Mandatory 

Disclosures 

Consistent with 45 CFR 75.113, Subrecipients must disclose, in a timely 

manner, in writing to HCA and the HHS Office of Inspector General 

(OIG), all information related to violations, or suspected violations, of 

Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations 

potentially affecting the Federal award. Disclosures must be sent in 

writing to HCA and the HHS OIG at the following addresses: 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Office of Inspector General  

ATTN: Mandatory Grant Disclosures, Intake Coordinator  

330 Independence Avenue, SW, Cohen Building Room 5527 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 220 of 411



 

Washington State  46     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                             Attachment 4: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Terms 
 

Washington DC 20201 

Fax: (202) 205-0604 (include “Mandatory Grant Disclosures” in subject 

line or email) 

MandatoryGranteeDisclosures@oig.hhs.gov 

Failure to make required disclosures can result in any of the remedies 

described in 45 CFR 75.371 remedies for noncompliance, including 

suspension or debarment (See 2 CFR parts 180 & 376 and 31 USC 

3321) 

Lobbying Restrictions Per 45 CFR §75.215, Subrecipients are subject to the restrictions on 

lobbying as set forth in 45 CFR part 93.  

U.S.C. > Title 18 > Part I > Chapter 93 > Section 1913, No part of the 

money appropriated by any enactment of Congress shall, in the 

absence of express authorization by Congress, be used directly or 

indirectly to pay for any personal service, advertisement, telegram, 

telephone, letter, printed or written matter, or other device, intended or 

designed to influence in any manner a Member of Congress, a 

jurisdiction, or an official of any government, to favor, adopt, or oppose, 

by vote or otherwise, any legislation, law, ratification, policy, or 

appropriation, whether before or after the introduction of any bill, 

measure, or resolution proposing such legislation, law, ratification, 

policy, or appropriation; but this shall not prevent officers or employees 

of the United States or of its departments or agencies from 

communicating to any such Member or official, at his/her request, or to 

Congress or such official, through the proper official channels, requests 

for any legislation, law, ratification, policy, or appropriations which they 

deem necessary for the efficient conduct of the public business, or from 

making any communication whose prohibition by this section might, in 

the opinion of the Attorney General, violate the Constitution or interfere 

with the conduct of foreign policy, counter-intelligence, intelligence, or 

national security activities.  

Violations of this section shall constitute as a violation of section 1352 

(a) of Title 31. 

Drug Free Workplace The Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.) 

requires that all organizations receiving grants from any Federal agency 

agree to maintain a drug-free workplace. By signing this Contract, you 

agree that the grantee will provide a drug-free workplace and will 

comply with the requirement to notify NIH if an employee is convicted of 

violating a criminal drug statute. Failure to comply with these 

requirements may be cause for debarment. Government wide 

requirements for Drug-Free Workplace for Financial Assistance are 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 221 of 411



 

Washington State  47     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                             Attachment 4: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Terms 
 

found in 2 CFR part 182; HHS implementing regulations are set forth in 

2 CFR part 382.400. All recipients of NIH grant funds must comply with 

the requirements in Subpart B (or Subpart C if the recipient is an 

individual) of part 382. 

Trafficking Victims 

Protection Act of 

2000 (22 USC 

7104(G)), as 

amended, and 2 CFR 

Part 175 

The Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 authorizes termination of 

financial assistance provided to a private entity, without penalty to the 

Federal government, if the recipient or subrecipient engages in certain 

activities related to trafficking in persons.  

SAMHSA or HCA may unilaterally terminate this award, without penalty, 

if a private entity recipient, or a private entity subrecipient, or their 

employees: a) Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during 

the period of time that the award is in effect; b) Procure a commercial 

sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or, c) Use 

forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the 

award.  

The text of the full award term is available at 2 C.F.R. § 175.15(b). See 

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2012-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2012-title2-

vol1-sec175-15.pdf 

Confidentiality of 

Alcohol and Drug 

Abuse Patient 

Records 

The regulations (42 CFR 2) are applicable to any information about 

alcohol and other drug abuse patients obtained by a "program" (42 CFR 

2.11), if the program is federally assisted in any manner (42 CFR 

2.12b). Accordingly, all project patient records are confidential and may 

be disclosed and used only in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2. The 

Subrecipient is responsible for assuring compliance with these 

regulations and principles, including responsibility for assuring the 

security and confidentiality of all electronically transmitted patient 

material. 

Healthy People 2020 Healthy People 2020 is a national initiative led by HHS that set priorities 

for all SAMHSA programs. The initiative has two major goals: (1) 

increase the quality and years of a healthy life; and (2) eliminate our 

country’s health disparities. The program consists of 28 focus areas and 

467 objectives. SAMHSA has actively participated in the work groups of 

all the focus areas and is committed to the achievement of the Healthy 

People 2020 goals. Healthy People 2010 and the conceptual framework 

for the forthcoming Healthy People 2020 process can be found online 

at: http://www.healthypeople.gov/  

Accessibility 

Provisions 

Recipients of Federal financial assistance (FFA) from HHS must 

administer their programs in compliance with Federal civil rights law. 

This means that recipients of HHS funds must ensure equal access to 

their programs without regard to a person’s race, color, national origin, 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 222 of 411



 

Washington State  48     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                             Attachment 4: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) Terms 
 

disability, age, and in some circumstances, sex and religion. This 

includes ensuring your programs are accessible to persons with limited 

English proficiency.  

The HHS Office for Civil Rights also provides guidance on complying 

with civil rights laws enforced by HHS. Please see: 

http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/civilrights/understanding/section1557/index.html.  

Recipients of FFA also have specific legal obligations for serving 

qualified individuals with disabilities. Please see- 

http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/civilrights/understanding/disability/index.html.  

Please contact the HHS Office for Civil Rights for more information 

about obligations and prohibitions under Federal civil rights laws at 

https://www.hhs.gov/civil- rights/index.html or call 1-800-368-1019 or 

TDD 1-800- 537-7697.  

Also note that it is an HHS Departmental goal to ensure access to 

quality, culturally competent care, including long-term services and 

supports, for vulnerable populations. For further guidance on providing 

culturally and linguistically appropriate services, recipients should 

review the National Standards for Culturally and Linguistically 

Appropriate Services in Health and Health Care at 

https://minorityhealth.hhs.gov/omh/browse.aspx?lvl=1&lvlid=6. 

Legislative Mandates Certain statutory provisions under P.L. 115-245, Department of Defense 

and Labor, Health and Human Services, and Education Appropriations 

Act, 2019, Division B, Title V, Title II, General Provisions limit the use of 

funds on SAMHSA grants, cooperative agreements, and contract 

awards. Such provisions are subject to change annually based on 

specific appropriation language that restricts the use of grant funds. The 

full text of P.L. 115-245 is available at 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/housebill/6157/text? 

Format=txt. 

Ad Hoc Submissions Throughout the project period, SAMHSA may determine that a grant 

requires submission of additional information beyond the standard 

deliverables. This information may include, but is not limited to, the 

following:  

• Payroll 

• Purchase orders 

• Contract documentation 

• Proof of project implementation 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 223 of 411



 

Washington State  49     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

 
Schedule A: Statement of Work 

September 30, 2021 – September 29, 2022 

1. The Contractor shall serve as the Initiation Site and be responsible for:  

1.1. Providing MOUD initiation, referral, and retention to an individual prior to his or her transfer 

to the Local MOUD Treatment Site, ensuring MOUD capacity is maintained at both the 

Initiation and Local MOUD Treatment Site(s). 

1.2. Serving as the lead organization and recipient of funding for the development and 

implementation of an Opioid Treatment Network model for adults with an Opioid Use 

Disorder who are Medicaid eligible or low income.  OTN will give priority to: 

a. Individuals at highest risk of overdose and death. 

b. Tribal members to address their OUD needs. 

c. MOUD services for pregnant and parenting individuals with OUD. 

d. MOUD services for intravenous drug users. 

1.3. Ensuring services at the Initiation Site and Local MOUD Treatment Site(s) begin no later 

than September 30, 2021.  

1.4. Monitoring and ensuring MOUD is initiated to a minimum of twenty-seven (27) individuals 

per month for the entirety of the contract period, no later than September 30, 2022 at the 

Initiation Site.  

1.5. Holding responsibility for oversight of the OTN, and ensuring the Local MOUD Treatment 

Site(s) are working in coordination (including participation in regularly scheduled leadership 

meetings and educational and technical assistance opportunities) and meet the terms of 

the project, contract, goals and project deliverables.  

1.6. Ensuring travel per diem, computers, office supplies, and all other supplies and tools 

necessary to provide defined duties are provided to staff at the Initiation Site and Local 

MOUD Treatment Site(s) via a legal written agreement between the two sites.   

1.7. Ensuring a low-barrier medication model as evidence by the Contractor’s unique site and 

functions. 

1.8. Providing both agonist and antagonist MOUD medications (on-site or in relationship with a 

pharmacy) in order to facilitate initial inductions.  

1.9. Using a coordinated team and processes to provide intensive services by developing a 

central Initiation Site to provide MOUD, and a warm hand-off to a Local MOUD Treatment 

Site(s) for continuity of care.  Local MOUD Treatment Site(s) will provide referrals for other 

behavioral health and ancillary services necessary to address the individual’s holistic 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 224 of 411



 

Washington State  50     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

medical and recovery needs. Build, strengthen, and maintain referral relationships between 

Initiation Site and Local MOUD Treatment Site(s). 

1.10. Hiring and/or contracting up to 4.08 FTEs or an agreed-upon amount with the DBHR 

Contract Manager to cover the functions listed below at the Initiation Site.  Through 

subcontracting, provide for staffing at Local MOUD Treatment Site(s). Specific staffing 

arrangements are determined by Initiation Site. The following functions are required 

(individual staff may perform multiple functions):  

a. OTN Nurse Care Manager (NCM):  The NCM’s primary responsibilities are to 

provide medical support to the prescribing physicians or other waivered 

practitioners.  Duties of the NCM will include, but are not limited to: individual 

screening, MOUD education, assisting with MOUD inductions, taking vital 

signs, drug testing, lab work, medical assessments, charting, care planning, 

stabilization, observation and maintenance, ongoing coordination of follow-up 

care, relapse prevention, and support for an individual’s self-management.  

b. OTN Care Navigator:  The Care Navigator expedites enrollment into Medicaid 

as necessary, conducts screenings, assessments and evaluations, provides 

education, and coordinates referrals for MOUD.  Care Navigators assist with 

data collection requirements and facilitate referrals for infectious disease 

screenings, housing, employment services, withdrawal management services, 

transportation, referral to OUD or behavioral health counseling, and provide a 

warm hand-off to a MOUD provider upon an individual’s transfer from any 

current treatments.   

c. OTN Data Collection Coordinator (Coordinator):  The Coordinator is responsible 

for managing all data collection activities and serves as the liaison between the 

OTN, DBHR and RDA.  The Coordinator must become competent in all aspects 

of GPRA data collection required for this project (including completion of 

SAMHSA GRPA training) and be available and responsive to project 

evaluators. 

d. OTN MOUD Prescriber:  Continue to employ and or contract at least one 

prescriber and at least one back-up prescriber with a current DATA-2000 

Waiver (in case of primary prescriber absence) at the Initiation Site.  

e. Contract Management/Accounting: Submitting invoices for payment, ensuring 

Releases of Information (ROIs) are in place, certifying that agreements with 

other community partners are signed and guaranteeing the contract 

deliverables are met including subcontractor’s deliverables.  

2. Reporting 

2.1. Ensuring specific tools, such as job descriptions and statements of work, are developed to 

ensure consistent practice throughout the OTN.  

2.2. Identifying, collaborating, and subcontracting with Local MOUD Treatment Site(s) that are 

willing to support and embrace MOUD and are responsible for providing integrated care 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 225 of 411



 

Washington State  51     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

that includes therapy, SUD counseling, outreach, MOUD education, case management, 

and/or referral services.  

2.3. Ensuring policies and procedures are in place throughout the OTN to mitigate medication 

diversion.  

2.4. Securing and maintaining Release of Information forms that meet federal confidentiality 

regulations and allow the release of patient identifying information between Initiation Site 

and Local MOUD Treatment Site(s) and to DSHS RDA for the purpose of program 

monitoring and performance evaluation.  

2.5. Working collaboratively with ADAI technical assistance staff to identify training needs and 

participate in peer-to-peer and educational learning opportunities including the utilization of 

EBPs.  

2.6. Attend quarterly meetings with DBHR Contract Manager or SOR Project or Treatment 

Manager to discuss project contract requirements, compliance, and problem-solving or 

attending trainings. Additional meetings as required or deemed necessary by the DBHR 

Contract Manager.   

2.7. Site visits will occur one time per year or more often if determined necessary by the DBHR 

Contract Manager. 

2.8. Ensure the use of a certified EHR.  

Review of the Prescription Monitoring Drug Program data, when available and appropriate. 

2.9. Ensure patient assessments and treatment are consistent with DSM-5 criteria.   

2.10. Data Collection Requirements:   

2.10.1. OTN staff will collect specified data on every individual inducted (beginning a new 

episode of grant-funded MOUD treatment) at the Initiation Site. The data collection 

includes completion of a participant log and three structured interviews. These data 

collection activities will take place under the supervision of the grant’s project 

evaluator, who will provide the OTN all relevant data collection instruments, 

training, access to data entry tools, and technical assistance.   

2.10.2. OTNs will designate staff (Data Coordinator) responsible for ensuring all data are 

collected accurately, comprehensively, and in a timely fashion. Any OTN staff with 

sufficient training may contribute to data collection activities, but the Data 

Coordinator is responsible for oversite of all aspects of SOR-II data collection at the 

OTN, including coordination between the Initiation Site and the Local MOUD 

Treatment Site(s) as individuals move between those locations. The Data 

Coordinator will be available to the project evaluator, complete necessary training, 

and attend monthly, 90-minute teleconferences.  

2.10.3. OTNs must collect the following data:  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 226 of 411



 

Washington State  52     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

a. Participant Information: All individuals inducted at the OTN must be entered 

onto the relevant section of the RDA data portal. Upon induction onto MOUD, 

OTN staff will collect and enter client identifiers, demographics, and basic 

treatment information into the data portal provided by the project evaluator. The 

data should be updated at least weekly. Alternatively, OTNs may provide 

electronic extracts if they meet specifications provided by the project evaluator. 

Contracted targets for the number of individuals served will be measured using 

data entered into the data portal. 

b. GPRA Intake Survey: this interview is required for all individuals who (a) 

transfer to your local MOUD provider, OR (b) who have a second consecutive 

appointment for continued MOUD treatment at your initiation site. The interview 

must be completed within four days of these appointments. Only one GPRA 

intake survey (the first enrollment) is required per individual. A minimum of 80 

percent of eligible intake surveys must be completed. 

c. The Intake Survey and the surveys listed below must be completed by OTN 

staff in person (telephone/virtual interviews are permitted if approved by the 

project evaluator). The survey is based on the GPRA Client Outcome Measures 

Tool.  However, the project evaluator will provide a modified version of the 

GPRA tool for use on this project. No later than weekly, OTN staff will enter all 

surveys into the data portal provided by the project evaluator. 

d. GPRA Six-month Follow-up Survey: the follow-up interview must be completed 

within one month before to two months after the six-month anniversary date of 

the GPRA Intake Survey, regardless of whether the individual has been 

discharged. If a GPRA Intake Survey was never competed for an individual, a 

follow-up is not required. Follow-up surveys are not required after grant funding 

ends. See “GPRA Intake Survey” regarding data collection and data entry. You 

are expected to complete 80 percent of your follow-up surveys. Note that only 

completed surveys, meaning the client answered at least some of the survey 

questions, count towards your 80% completion rate. The SOR II grant includes 

funding for incentives that may be used to encourage hard-to-reach individuals 

to complete a follow up survey. 

e. GPRA Discharge Survey: the discharge survey is to be completed for all 

individuals who discontinue treatment at your OTN. An administrative discharge 

survey, which may be completed without the individual’s participation, is 

permitted for discharged individuals you are unable to locate. Individuals still 

enrolled at the close of the grant will not require a discharge survey. Discharge 

surveys should be completed within 15 days of discharge. See “GPRA Intake 

Survey” regarding data collection and data entry. 

2.10.4. The Project Evaluator will monitor data collection and provide the OTN Data 

Coordinator technical assistance when necessary. In the event of prolonged or 

serious non-compliance, at the request of the Project Evaluator, you must submit a 

corrective action plan to the DBHR Contract Manager.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 227 of 411



 

Washington State  53     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

2.10.5. Research and Data Analysis (RDA): Maintain and submit monthly through a secure 

DSHS portal to RDA, a participant data log template (to be provided) from the 

Initiation Site only that includes, but is not limited to the following for every new 

MOUD treatment episode:  

2.10.5.1 First name, last name and middle initial; date of birth; Social Security 

Number; gender; race; ethnicity; treatment start date (induction date); 

MOUD drug prescribed (methadone, Bup-mono, Bup-combo, 

Naltrexone-Injectable; Naltrexone-Oral), transfers to Local MOUD 

Provider, discharge date and discharge status (completed, transferred 

or lost to follow up). 

2.10.6. Engagement Measure: 

OTN Performance Measures and Definitions:  

 

“MOUD Treatment Engagement” will be estimated using Medicaid claims and 

encounter data on MOUD prescriptions received by OTN patients.  This information 

will be used to estimate the percentage of individuals receiving any MOUD within 3 

months following their month of induction by the OTN. This measure will account 

for any MOUD received after induction, regardless of where the MOUD was 

provided. Only individuals enrolled in Medicaid will be used to generate this 

measure. Your target performance metric will be based on your site’s baseline 

MOUD treatment engagement rate. Your baseline engagement rate will be based 

on all SOR-funded inductions at your OTN from January 1, 2019, through 

September 29, 2020. 

 

2.11. Submit a Monthly Report as detailed in the Deliverables Table with the invoice to the 

DBHR Contract Manager, including, but not limited to: barriers and successes; training and 

technical assistance needs; staff changes; actions to address diversity; equity and 

inclusion (DEI); and additional information as needed. 

2.12. Contingency Management: Among patients receiving medication for OUD, provide 

evidence of a screening for stimulant use disorder, and if screened in, a warm hand-off for 

referral to services to address stimulant use disorder.  All efforts must be documented in 

the patient’s record. Use of Contingency Management may be utilized at a rate of no more 

than $75 per person per year of SOR II grant funds and $225 per person per year from 

proviso funds for individuals with stimulant use disorder. 

2.12.1. SOR II grant funds can be used in the following: noncash gift cards (e.g., 

transportation vouchers, phone minute cards, and grocery stores/restaurants), 

entertainment gift cards, prizes for CM activities, and other items as approved by 

DBHR Contract Manger. 

2.12.2. Proviso CM Funds can be used in the following: cash incentives, noncash gift cards 

(e.g., transportation vouchers, phone minute cards, and grocery 

stores/restaurants), entertainment gift cards, prizes for CM activities, and other 

items as approved by DBHR Contract Manager. Up to $10,000 of Proviso Funds 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 228 of 411



 

Washington State  54     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

may be spent towards CM resources not listed above. Must be submitted for prior 

approval by DBHR Contract Manager. 

2.13. Transportation Voucher: Among individuals, receiving MOUD, a transportation voucher can 

be provided to them for reimbursement.  

2.14. Referrals to EBPs such as CBT or MI for people who experience Stimulant Use Disorder 

are encouraged.  If a referral is made, documentation is needed. 

2.15. Attend a DBHR Contract Manager approved Contingency Management Training. Provide 

evidence of sending a minimum of two staff persons to the training. Additional staff are 

allowed to attend beyond the required minimum person. 

2.16. Tobacco Training: Participate in a minimum of six (6) Tobacco Treatment phone calls 

during the contract period provided by the Department of Health.  

a. A 40-hour Tobacco Training is available through the Department of Health as 

needed for sites to access. Submit a request to the DBHR Contract Manager. 

b. Funding for NRT is available through the Department of Health as needed to 

sites. Submit a request to the DBHR Contract Manager.   

2.17. Assisting in the preparation of reports (e.g., SAMHSA Annual Report, SAMHSA Bi-annual 

Report) and other data requested by SAMHSA, their designee, or the DBHR Contract 

Manager.  

2.18. Ensuring the utilization of third party and other revenue realized from provision of services 

to the extent possible and use SAMHSA grant funds only for services to individuals who 

are not covered by public or commercial health insurance programs, or for services that 

are not sufficiently covered by an individual’s health insurance plan. Facilitate the health 

insurance application and enrollment process for eligible uninsured clients.  

2.19. Screen and refer HIV and Viral Hepatitis cases through a warm hand-off or treatment. 

Treatment or referrals are to be included in the monthly report and RDA data sheets. 

Documentation is required and must be included in the monthly report.  

2.20. Sustainability Plan: Provide a written document on site letterhead or by PowerPoint to 

DBHR Contract Manager. This plan should address the following:  

a. What is your site’s sustainability plan? 

b. What actions steps do you need to take in order to implement your 

sustainability plan?  

c. Address staffing and financial aspects of the project. 

d. Consider and address alternative funding sources such as other grants in the 

plan. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 229 of 411



 

Washington State  55     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

e. Who are your partners in the community and what role do they play in your 

sustainability plan? 

f. Include improvement opportunities or barriers your site has experienced.  

g. Include successes of the past year. For example, what is going well and what 

do you need to keep doing more of?  

h. What are your future goals for the SOR II project and how will your site sustain 

it?  

i. Consider the three elements of sustainability. They include impact on people, 

economics and the environment. List how these will be met.  

j. How does your site address diversity, equity and inclusion?  

3. Considerations 

3.1. Billing and Payment  

a. Invoice System. The Contractor shall submit invoices using State Form A-19 

Invoice Voucher, or such other form as designated by HCA. Consideration for 

services rendered shall be payable upon receipt of properly completed invoices 

which shall be submitted to the DBHR Contact, Megan Fowler at 

megan.fowler@hca.wa.gov by the Contractor not more often than monthly. The 

invoices shall describe and document to HCA’s satisfaction a description of the 

work performed, activities accomplished, the progress of the project, and fees. 

Payments shall be in accordance with delivery and approval of deliverables as 

outlined in Section 3.2, Deliverables Table. 

b. Payment. Payment shall be considered timely if made by HCA within thirty (30) 

days after receipt and acceptance by HCA of the properly completed invoices. 

Payment shall be sent to the address designated by the Contractor on page 

one (1) of this Contract. HCA may, at its sole discretion, withhold payment 

claimed by the Contractor for services rendered if Contractor fails to 

satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of this Contract.  

c. Claims for payment submitted by the Contractor to HCA for amounts due and 

payable under this agreement that were incurred prior to the expiration date 

shall be paid by HCA if received by HCA within 90 days after the expiration 

date. 

d. HCA shall not reimburse the Contractor for any fees and expenses which 

exceed the maximum consideration of this contract. 

 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 230 of 411



 

Washington State  56     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

3.2. Deliverables Table: 

 

Deliverable Due Date  Up to  

1 Attend a DBHR Contract Manager 
approved Contingency Management 
Training. Provide evidence of sending a 
minimum of two (2) persons to the 
training. Listed under section 2.15. 

Prior to September 29, 
2022 

$20,000 

2 Monthly Reports to DBHR Contract 
Manager including the items listed in 
section 2.11 of this SOW. Monthly report 
form provided by DBHR Contract 
Manager and Monthly Reports to RDA, 
including compiled data of Local MOUD 
Treatment Site referrals and services 
including agonists and antagonists 
($18,000 per month x 12 months = 
$216,000). 

Due by the second 
Wednesday of the 
month following the 
month in which 
services were 
provided 

$216,000 

3 Provision of services to a minimum of 27 
individuals per month, starting October 
2021 ($1,000 per month x 12 months = 
$27,000)  
(Payment will be prorated if minimum 
numbers are not met). Listed under 
section 1.4. 

Due by the second 
Wednesday of the 
month following the 
month in which 
services were 
provided. 

$324,000 

4 Participant Incentives:  
 
a.GPRA follow-up for participants refer to 
section 2.10.3(d). Up to $1,725.00 
through September 29th, 2022. 
 
b. Contingency Management refer to 
section 2.12 up to $225 per person of 
proviso funds through June 30th, 2022.  
 
c. Contingency Management refer to 
section 2.12 up to $10,000 of proviso 
funds through June 30th, 2022. 
 
 For b. and c. proviso funds up to $33,333 
 
d. Contingency Management refer to 
section 2.12 up to $75 per person of SOR 
II funds up to $17,550 through September 
29th, 2022.  
 
e. Transportation vouchers refer to 
section 2.13 up to $3,600 through 
September 29th, 2022.  
 

Due by the second 
Wednesday of the 
month following the 
month in which 
services were 
provided. Contractor 
will provide updates 
on monthly reports. 

Up to $56,208 
 
 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 231 of 411



 

Washington State  57     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

5 Participate in a minimum of six (6) 
Tobacco Treatment phone calls during 
the contract period. Listed under section 
2.16. 

Trainings provided on 
a monthly basis.  
Report participation in 
monthly report.  

$3,000 

6 Sustainability Plan refer to section 2.20. 
Provide an updated or revised plan.  

September 29, 2022 $15,000 

7 Engagement Measure refers to section 

2.10.6. 

 

September 29, 2022 No payment point 

8 Benchmark payment for serving 324 
individuals (an average of 27 individuals 
per month) and meet an overall individual 
engagement of 50% over the period 
covered by this Contract. Note: If this 
benchmark payment is earned, 
Contractor shall also be entitled to bill, up 
to the maximum amount that remains 
available for payment under 
Deliverable 3, a pro rata payment of 
$1,000 for each individual whom 
Contractor has served but for whom 
payment could not be received under the 
payment terms applicable to Deliverable 
3. In no event shall more than a total of 
$339,000 be payable under this 
Deliverable 8 combined with payment 
under Deliverable 3. Listed under section 
3.2. 

September 29, 2022 $15,000 

 TOTAL  $649,208 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 232 of 411



 

Washington State  58     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                                               Schedule A: Statement of Work  
 

Federal Award Identification for Subrecipients (reference 2 CFR 200.331) 

Washington State Opioid Response II (SOR II) Grant 

(i) Subrecipient name (which must match the name 

associated with its unique entity identifier); 

County of Benton 

(ii) Subrecipient's unique entity identifier; (DUNS) 083738997 

(iii) Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN); H79TI083286 

(iv) Federal Award Date (see §200.39 Federal award 

date); 

08/9/2021 

(v) Subaward Period of Performance Start and End 

Date; 

9/30/2021 – 9/29/2022 

(vi) Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action; $649,208 

(vii) Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the 

subrecipient; 

$649,208 

(xiii)  Total Amount of the Federal Award; $27,173,792 

(ix) Federal award project description, as required to be 

responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability 

and Transparency Act (FFATA); 

Washington State Opioid Response II (SOR 

II) Grant 

(x) Name of Federal awarding agency, pass-through 

entity, and contact information for awarding official, 

SAMHSA 

WA State Health Care Authority 

Keri Waterland, Assistant Director DBHR 

626 8th Ave SE; Olympia, WA 98504-5330 

Keri.waterland@hca.wa.gov 

(xi) CFDA Number and Name; the pass-through entity 

must identify the dollar amount made available 

under each Federal award and the CFDA number at 

time of disbursement; 

93.788 

(xii) Identification of whether the award is R&D; and  Yes   No 

(xiii) Indirect cost rate for the Federal award (including if 

the de minimis rate is charged per §200.414 Indirect 

(F&A) costs). 

de minimus (10%) 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 233 of 411



 

Washington State  59     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                       Exhibit A: Definitions Specific to Special Terms   

Exhibit A 
 

Definitions Specific to Special Terms 
The words and phrases listed below, as used in this Contract, shall each have the following 
definitions: 
  
a. “ADAI” means the University of Washington’s Addictions Drug & Alcohol Institute, and its   

employees and authorized agents. 

b. “Agonist” means an FDA-approved opioid agonist medication (e.g., methadone, buprenorphine 
products including buprenorphine/naloxone combination formulations and buprenorphine 
mono-product formulations) for the maintenance treatment of opioid use disorder. 

c. “Antagonist” means the FDA-approved opioid antagonist medication (e.g., naltrexone products 
including extended-release and oral formulations) to prevent relapse to opioid use. 

d. “ASAM” means the American Society of Addiction Medicine. 

e. “Care Navigator” means the position responsible to provide support to and work collaboratively 
with the Care Manager. In addition, the Care Navigator will work closely and collaboratively 
with staff at each Local MOUD Treatment Site to coordinate patient care, keep the patient 
engaged with services, address issues related to relapse, and communicate together on 
patient needs. Duties also include conducting screenings, scheduling appointments, following 
up on missed appointments, medication diversion control, grant data recordkeeping and 
reporting, and making referrals to the appropriate Local MOUD Treatment Site. The Care 
Navigator can be a licensed or credentialed Substance Use Disorder Professional (SUDP) or 
Substance Use Disorder Professional Trainee (SUDPT), behavioral healthcare worker, social 
worker, primary healthcare worker, or other staff depending on the personnel needs of the 
Initiation Site. 

f. “Cognitive Behavioral Therapy” or “CBT” means an evidence-based treatment that has been 
demonstrated to be effective for a range of issues including depression, anxiety disorders, 
alcohol and substance use disorder, marital problems, eating disorders and severe mental 
illness. 

g. “Contingency Management (CM)” means the behavior modification method of providing 
reinforcement in exchange for objective evidence of a desired behavior. 

h. “Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services” or “CLAS” means the national standards in 
health and health care intended to advance health equity, improve quality, and help eliminate 
health disparities by establishing a blueprint for health and health care organizations 

i. “Data Collector Coordinator” means the person responsible for managing all data collection 
activities and also serves as the liaison between the OTN and the Project Evaluators (RDA).  
The Coordinator must become competent in all aspects of GPRA data collection (intake, and 
six-month follow ups and discharge) required for this project (including completion of SAMHSA 
GRPA training and project data collection systems) and be available and responsive to Project 
Evaluators (RDA). 

j. “Data Universal Numbering System” or “DUNS” means a unique identifier for businesses. 
DUNS numbers are assigned and maintained by Dun and Bradstreet (D&B) and are used for a 
variety of purposes, including applying for government contracting opportunities. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 234 of 411



 

Washington State  60     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                       Exhibit A: Definitions Specific to Special Terms   

k. “DBHR” means the HCA Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery, and its employees and 
authorized agents. 

l. “DEI” means diversity, equity, and inclusion. 

m. “Department of Health” or “DOH” means a state agency who works with others to protect and 
improve the health of all people in Washington State. DOH programs and services help 
prevent illness and injury, promote healthy places to live and work, provide information to help 
people make good health decisions and ensure that Washington State is prepared for 
emergencies. 

n. “Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders” or “DSM–5” means the product of 
more than 10 years of effort by hundreds of international experts in all aspects of mental 
health. Their dedication and hard work have yielded an authoritative volume that defines and 
classifies mental disorders in order to improve diagnoses, treatment, and research. 

o. “DSHS” means the Washington State Department of Social and Health Services, and its 
employees and authorized agents. 

p. “Engagement Measure” means the percentage of individuals receiving any MOUD within 3 
months following their OTN induction month. It will be limited to individuals receiving publicly-
funded (i.e. Medicaid) MOUD. 

q. “Evidence-based Practice” or “EBP” means a prevention or treatment service or practice that 
has been validated by some form of documented research evidence and is appropriate for use 
with individuals with an opioid use disorder. 

r. “Electronic Health Records” or “EHR” means a certified electronic health record system that 
has been tested and certified by an approved Office of National Coordinator for Health 
Information Technology’s (ONC) certifying body. 

s. “FDA” means the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. 

t. “GPRA” means Government Performance Results and Modernization Act. Grantees must 
comply with the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010.  

u. “HCA” means the Washington State Health Care Authority and its employees and authorized 
agents. 

v. “Human Immunodeficiency Virus” or “HIV” means the virus that may causes AIDS.  

w. “Induct” means the medically monitored initiation of treatment medication when a person with 
an opioid use disorder has abstained from using opioids for the appropriate amount of time in 
order to tolerate the utilization of MOUD.  

x. “Initiation Site Prescriber” or “Waivered Prescriber” means a physician, physician’s assistant 
(PA), or nurse practitioner (NP) that has obtained and maintained a current DATA 2000 
Waiver to prescribe buprenorphine and other medications.  A prescriber will also inform 
individuals regarding the risks and benefits of MOUD, allow for shared-decision making and 
address other presenting medical needs either directly or by referral.  

y. “Integrated Care” means the organized delivery and/or coordination of medical, behavioral or 
social and recovery support services provided for individuals.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 235 of 411



 

Washington State  61     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                       Exhibit A: Definitions Specific to Special Terms   

z. “Local MOUD (formerly MAT) Treatment Site” means a facility that will provide Opioid Use 
Disorder (OUD) treatment medications, behavioral health treatment and/or primary healthcare 
services, and/or wrap-around services, and referrals. Local MOUD Treatment Site may be 
federally qualified health center (FQHC), opioid treatment program, outpatient substance use 
disorder treatment facility, mental health clinic, or integrated behavioral health clinic.  

aa. “Medication Assisted Treatment” or “MAT” (now MOUD) means the use of FDA-approved 
opioid agonist medications (e.g., methadone, buprenorphine products including 
buprenorphine/naloxone combination formulations and buprenorphine mono-product 
formulations) for the treatment of opioid use disorder and the use of opioid antagonist 
medication (e.g. naltrexone products including extended-release and oral formulations) to 
prevent relapse to opioid use. 

bb. “Medication for Opioid Use Disorder” or “MOUD” means the use of FDA-approved opioid 
agonist medications (e.g., methadone, buprenorphine products including 
buprenorphine/naloxone combination formulations and buprenorphine mono-product 
formulations) for the maintenance treatment of opioid use disorder and the use of opioid 
antagonist medication (e.g., naltrexone products including extended-release and oral 
formulations) to prevent relapse to opioid use. 

cc. “Motivational Interviewing” or “MI” means an evidence-based practice with a focus on resolving 
ambivalence and centers on motivational processes within the individual that facilitate positive 
change. 

dd. “Nicotine Replacement Therapy” or “NRT” means a treatment that gives you nicotine in the 
form of gum, patches, sprays, inhalers, or lozenges but not the other harmful chemicals in 
tobacco. 

ee. “Nurse Care Manager” means the nurse or other employee at the Initiation Site who is 
responsible for providing medical support to the prescribing physician or other waivered 
prescribers. Duties of the Care Manager include, but are not limited to patient screening, 
MOUD education, assisting with MOUD inductions, taking vital signs, drug testing, lab work, 
medical assessments, charting, care planning, stabilization, maintenance, ongoing 
coordination of follow-up care, relapse prevention, support for patient self-management, and 
observation of the patient. 

ff. “OTN” means an Opioid Treatment Network that includes an Initiation Site and Local MOUD 
Treatment Site(s).   

gg. “Opioid Use Disorder” or OUD is defined by a pattern of problematic use of opioids, whether 
prescription painkillers, or heroin, or other illicit synthetic opioids. Practitioners use criteria from 
the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders 5 (DSM 5) to diagnose opioid use 
disorder. 

hh. “Prescriber/Administrator” means the position responsible for developing, administering, and 
overseeing the program and ongoing performance of the OTN. Initiation Sites may use funding 
to provide oversight and management to an administrator if more appropriate, depending on 
the business needs of the OTN. 

ii. “Prescription Monitoring Drug Program” or “PMDP” means a law that the Washington State 
Legislature passed in 2007 requiring the Department of Health to create a prescription 
monitoring program. The law directs the Department to design the program to improve 
healthcare quality and effectiveness by: Reducing abuse of controlled substances, reducing 
duplicative prescribing and overprescribing; and improving prescribing practices. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 236 of 411



 

Washington State  62     Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

                                                                                                       Exhibit A: Definitions Specific to Special Terms   

jj. “Report” or “Monthly Report” means and refers to a report that the Contractor will complete 
and submit to DBHR on a monthly basis prior to monthly reimbursement. 

kk. “RDA” means the Department of Social and Health Services, Research and Data Analysis 
Division, to whom the Contractor will send required patient and program data through a secure 
data file transfer. 

ll. “SAMHSA” means the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and 
Mental Health Services Administration, and its employees and authorized agents.  

mm. “Stimulate Use Disorder” means a pattern of amphetamine-type substance, cocaine, or other 

stimulant use leading to clinically significant impairment or distress (DSM-5). 

nn. “Substance Use Disorder Professional” or “SUDP” means an individual certified in substance 

use disorder counseling by the Washington Department of Health Licensing. 

 

oo. “Substance Use Disorder Professional Trainee” or “SUDPT” means an individual who is in 

training to become a certified SUDP and is under supervision by a certified SUDP. 

pp. “SUD” means substance use disorder.  Practitioners use criteria from the Diagnostic and 
Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders 5 (DSM-5). 

qq. “Sustainability Plan” means a roadmap for achieving long-term stability and maintenance 
through documentation of strategies allowing for the program, activities and partnerships to 
continue. 

rr. “Viral Hepatitis” means is an infection that causes liver inflammation and damage. 
 

ss. “Warm hand-off” means a transfer of care between two members of the health care team, 

where the handoff occurs in front of the patient explaining why the other team member can 

better address a specific issue with the patient and emphasizing the other team member’s 

competence. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 237 of 411



 

Washington State  63 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Exhibit B: 15 Principal CLAS Standard 

Exhibit B 

15 Principal CLAS Standard 

1. Provide effective, equitable, understandable and respectful quality care and services that 

are responsive to diverse cultural health beliefs and practices, preferred languages, health 

literacy and other communication needs. 

Governance, Leadership and Workforce 

2. Advance and sustain organizational governance and leadership that promotes CLAS and 

health equity through policy, practices and allocated resources. 

3. Recruit, promote and support a culturally and linguistically diverse governance, leadership 

and workforce that are responsive to the population in the service area. 

4. Educate and train governance, leadership and workforce in culturally and linguistically 

appropriate policies and practices on an ongoing basis. 

Communication and Language Assistance 

5. Offer language assistance to individuals who have limited English proficiency and/or other 

communication needs, at no cost to them, to facilitate timely access to all health care and 

services. 

6. Inform all individuals of the availability of language assistance services clearly and in their 

preferred language, verbally and in writing. 

7. Ensure the competence of individuals providing language assistance, recognizing that the 

use of untrained individuals and/or minors as interpreters should be avoided. 

8. Provide easy-to-understand print and multimedia materials and signage in the languages 

commonly used by the populations in the service area. 

Engagement, Continuous Improvement and Accountability 

9. Establish culturally and linguistically appropriate goals, policies and management 

accountability, and infuse them throughout the organizations’ planning and operations. 

10. Conduct ongoing assessments of the organization’s CLAS-related activities and integrate 

CLAS-related measures into assessment measurement and continuous quality improvement 

activities. 

11. Collect and maintain accurate and reliable demographic data to monitor and evaluate the 

impact of CLAS on health equity and outcomes and to inform service delivery. 

12. Conduct regular assessments of community health assets and needs and use the results to 

plan and implement services that respond to the cultural and linguistic diversity of 

populations in the service area. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 238 of 411



 

Washington State  64 Opioid Treatment Network 
Health Care Authority   HCA Contract #K5680 

Exhibit B: 15 Principal CLAS Standard 

13. Partner with the community to design, implement and evaluate policies, practices and 

services to ensure cultural and linguistic appropriateness. 

14. Create conflict- and grievance-resolution processes that are culturally and linguistically 

appropriate to identify, prevent and resolve conflicts or complaints. 

15. Communicate the organization’s progress in implementing and sustaining CLAS to all 

stakeholders, constituents and the general public. 

 

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 239 of 411





Originals (1):  1-BC Commissioners 

BENTON COUNTY RESOLUTION 

 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 

WASHINGTON; 

 

IN THE MATTER OF THE REQUEST FOR SIGNATURE FROM THE BOARD OF 

BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ON THE INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

#IAA22450 BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 

INTERPRETER SERVICES  

 

WHEREAS, the Superior Court received notification on November 27, 2021, of available interpreter 

reimbursement funding to Benton County for the term commencing July 1, 2021 and terminating on 

June 30, 2022; and  

 

WHEREAS, Tiffany Runge, Superior Court Administrator, believes it is in the best interest of the 

Superior Court that the Agreement between State of Washington Administrative Office of the Courts 

and Benton County be approved as presented for a term commencing July 1, 2021 and terminating on 

June 30, 2022 for a maximum reimbursement amount of $59,422; NOW, THEREFORE,  

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby accepts the proposed 

interpreter reimbursement agreement for the term commencing July 1, 2021 and terminating on June 30, 

2022 with a maximum reimbursement amount of $59,422; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County Commissioners is 

hereby authorized to sign interagency agreement #IAA22450 between Benton County and the State of 

Washington Administrative Offices of the Courts on behalf of Benton County. 

 

DATED this _______ day of ______________________, 2021. 

 

BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Chairman of the Board 

 

 

_____________________________________ ATTEST: 

Member 

 

 

_____________________________________ ________________________________ 

Member      Clerk of the Board 

 
Constituting the Board of County  

Commissioners, Benton County,  

Washington. 
    Prepared by:  T. Runge 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 241 of 411



IAA22450 Page 1 of 7 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT IAA22450 
BETWEEN 

WASHINGTON STATE ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS 
AND 

BENTON COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT 

THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is entered into by and between the Administrative Office of 
the Courts (AOC) and Benton County Superior Court, for the purpose of distributing funds for 
court interpreter and language access service expenses to the Benton County Superior Court 
(Court). 

1. DEFINITIONS
For purposes of this contract, the following definitions shall apply:
a) “Credentialed Interpreter” means an interpreter who is certified or registered by the

Administrative Office of the Courts, as defined in RCW 2.43.020 (4) and RCW
2.43.020 (6), or an interpreter certified by the Office of the Deaf and Hard of Hearing
(ODHH) pursuant to WAC 388-818-500, et seq.
The names and contact information of AOC-certified interpreters are found, and 
incorporated herein by reference, at 
http://www.courts.wa.gov/programs orgs/pos interpret/ 
The names and contact information of ODHH-certified interpreters are found, and 
incorporated herein by reference, at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/dshs/odhhapps/Interpreters/CourtInterpreter.aspx 

b) “Qualified Interpreter” means a spoken language interpreter as defined in RCW
2.43.020 (2), or sign language interpreter as defined in RCW 2.42.110 (2).

c) “Qualifying Event” means a proceeding or event for which an interpreter is appointed
by an appointing officer pursuant to RCW 2.42 and/or RCW 2.43.

2. PURPOSE
The purpose of this Agreement is to partner with individual local courts in improving
access to the Court for Limited English Proficient (LEP), deaf, and hard of hearing persons
in accordance with RCW Chapters 2.42 and 2.43.
These funds are intended to address each court’s following needs:

• Financial Need
For example, the gap between the court’s available financial resources and the costs
to meet its need for credentialed interpreters and the implementation of the Court’s
language access plan.

• Need for Court Interpreters
For example, the public’s right to access the court, and the court’s responsibility to
provide credentialed interpreters as required by RCW Chapters 2.42 and 2.43.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 242 of 411





IAA22450 Page 3 of 7 

d) Staff from the Washington State Supreme Court Interpreter Commission will work
with courts to develop and implement their LAPs, and will provide technical
assistance and training when needed.

5. TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS
a) The Court shall use the Language Access Reimbursement Web Application created

by the AOC to electronically submit quarterly data and A-19 voucher invoices for
reimbursements.

b) Courts submitting quarterly data and A-19 vouchers shall use one of the following
supported web browsers:

• MS Edge
• Chrome
• Firefox

c) Network access to the Inter-Governmental Network (IGN) or VPN access to the IGN
will be required to use the Language Access Reimbursement Web Application.

d) JIS Court Credentials (RACF) will be required to authenticate and gain access to the
Language Access Reimbursement Program Web Application.

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE
The beginning date of performance under this Agreement is July 1, 2021, regardless of the
date of execution and which shall end on June 30, 2022, Fiscal Year 2022 (FY22).

7. COMPENSATION AND COMPENSATION PROCEDURES
a) The Court shall be reimbursed a maximum of $59,422 for interpreter and language

access services costs incurred during the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022,
FY22.

b) No reimbursement shall be made under this Agreement for language access
services provided after June 30, 2022.

c) The Court shall receive payment for its costs for language access services as set
forth in Exhibit A, and incorporated herein.

d) The Court shall only receive payment after properly submitting A-19 voucher
invoices and corresponding data (See subsection 3b).

e) The Court shall submit requests for reimbursements to the AOC quarterly according
to the schedule below (see chart below). The AOC will not accept monthly requests
for reimbursements.

f) Requests for reimbursement must be received for review and approval by the AOC,
pursuant to the schedule below. The AOC can refuse payment if requests for
reimbursement are submitted after the deadlines listed below.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 244 of 411





IAA22450 Page 5 of 7 

grant such a license.  The Court shall advise the AOC, at the time of delivery of data 
furnished under this Agreement, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained 
therein and of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance 
of this Agreement.  The AOC shall receive prompt written notice of each notice or claim of 
copyright infringement received by the Court with respect to any data delivered under this 
Agreement.  The AOC shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive markings 
placed upon the data by the Court. 

10. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY
The employees or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this
Agreement shall continue to be employees or agents of that party and shall not be
considered for any purpose to be employees or agents of the other party.

11. AGREEMENT ALTERATIONS AND AMENDMENTS
This Agreement may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties.  Such amendments
shall not be binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind
each of the parties.

12. RECORDS, DOCUMENTS, AND REPORTS
The Court shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence of accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs
of any nature expended in the performance of this Agreement.  These records shall be
subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by personnel duly authorized
by the AOC, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal officials so authorized by law, rule,
regulation, or Agreement.  The Court will retain all books, records, documents, and other
material relevant to this Agreement for six years after settlement, and make them available
for inspection by persons authorized under this provision.

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION
The Court shall provide right of access to its facilities to the AOC, or any of its officers, or
to any other authorized agent or official of the state of Washington of the federal
government at all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance,
compliance, and/or quality assurance under this Agreement.

14. DISPUTES
Disputes arising under this Agreement shall be resolved by a panel consisting of one
representative from the AOC, one representative from the Court, and a mutually agreed
upon third party.  The dispute panel shall thereafter decide the dispute with the majority
prevailing.  Neither party shall have recourse to the courts unless there is a showing of
noncompliance or waiver of this section.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 246 of 411



IAA22450 Page 6 of 7 

15. TERMINATION
Either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other
party.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance
rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the
effective date of termination.

16. GOVERNANCE
This Agreement is entered into pursuant to and under the authority granted by the laws of
the state of Washington and any applicable federal laws.  The provisions of this
Agreement shall be construed to conform to those laws.
In the event of an inconsistency in the terms of this Agreement, or between its terms and
any applicable statute or rule, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in
the following order:

• Applicable state and federal statutes and rules;
• This Agreement; and
• Any other provisions of the agreement, including materials incorporated by

reference.

17. ASSIGNMENT
The work to be provided under this Agreement, and any claim arising hereunder, is not
assignable or delegable by either party in whole or in part, without the express prior written
consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

18. WAIVER
A failure by either party to exercise its rights under this Agreement shall not preclude that
party from subsequent exercise of such rights and shall not constitute a waiver of any
other rights under this Agreement unless stated to be such in a writing signed by an
authorized representative of the party and attached to the original Agreement.

19. SEVERABILITY
If any provision of this Agreement, or any provision of any document incorporated by
reference shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this
Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provision and to this end the
provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 247 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 248 of 411



Page 1 of 3 

EXHIBIT A 

WASHINGTON STATE LANGUAGE ACCESS INTERPRETER REIMBURSEMENT 
PROGRM FUNDING 

FUNDING CONDITIONS AND PAYMENT STRUCTURE 
The Language Access Reimbursement Program funding conditions and payment structure 
shall be as follows:   

1. GENERAL FUNDING CONDITIONS
The Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC), will reimburse courts under this 
Agreement for the cost of spoken language interpretation and sign language 
interpretation and other goods and services that improve language access in the courts 
for Limited English Proficient (LEP), deaf, and hard of hearing persons. This includes 
interpreters credentialed by AOC (certified or registered), or otherwise court-qualified 
interpreters appointed pursuant to RCW 2.42 and RCW 2.43 under the following 
conditions listed under Section 2 “Qualifying Interpreter Events.”
It also includes goods and services that improve language access, listed under Section 
3 “Language Access Items,” and services listed under Section 4 “Language Access 
Services”.
Courts shall work with AOC staff in determining whether an expense that is not explicitly 
mentioned below, qualifies as a reimbursable expense under the Agreement.

2. QUALIFYING INTERPRETING EVENTS
A. Spoken Language Interpreters Qualifying Events

AOC will reimburse courts under this Agreement for the cost of appointing AOC-
credentialed or otherwise court-qualified interpreters pursuant to RCW 2.43 that 
meet one of the following conditions:

a) If there is at least one AOC credentialed interpreter in the language being 
used then reimbursement will only be provided for using an AOC credentialed 
interpreter who is credentialed in that language.

b) Compensation for interpreters for languages for which neither a certified 
interpreter nor registered interpreter is offered will be reimbursed where the 
interpreter has been qualified on the record pursuant to RCW 2.43.

c) Courts will not be reimbursed for events using non-AOC credentialed 
interpreters if there is one or more AOC credentialed interpreter listed for the 
language being used.

B. Sign Language Interpreters Qualifying Events
AOC will reimburse courts for 50% of the actual expenses for services of American 
Sign Language (ASL) interpreters and Certified Deaf Interpreters (CDI) pursuant to 
RCW 2.42 when the interpreter is listed with the Department of Social and Health 
Services, Office of Deaf and Hard of Hearing (DSHS, ODHH) as a court-certified 
interpreter.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 249 of 411



Page 2 of 3 

The Office of Deaf and Hard of Hearing (ODHH) at the Department of Social and 
Health Services (DSHS) maintains a list of Certified Court Sign Language 
Interpreters. This list includes American Sign Language (ASL) interpreters and 
Certified Deaf Interpreters (CDI). To qualify for reimbursement, and event using an 
ASL and/or CDI interpreter from this list must be used.  
Certified interpreters are listed under three categories: 

• Specialist Certificate: Legal – SC: L 
• RID Certification with SC: L written test 
• Intermediary Interpreters (Deaf Interpreter) 

The most up to date list can be found here: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/dshs/odhhapps/Interpreters/CourtInterpreter.aspx 

C. Staff Interpreters (Salaried Staff) 
Reimbursement will be provided for salaried staff meeting the Qualifying Event 
conditions for the payment of credentialed spoken and sign language interpreters, as 
referenced in subsections 2.A and 2.B above. 

D. Telephonic and Video Remote Interpreting and Services Outside of the 
Courtroom  
AOC will reimburse local jurisdictions for using certified, registered, or otherwise 
qualified interpreters operating by telephone or video for court proceedings and 
other services provided to the public by the Court. The services must meet the 
Qualifying Event conditions for the payment of credentialed spoken and sign 
language interpreters, as referenced in subsections 2.A and 2.B above.  

3. LANGUAGE ACCESS GOODS AND SERVICES 
Courts can request reimbursement for the cost of goods and services that will help 
increase language access in the Court.  
The items listed below are common goods and services that courts have used to 
increase language access and will be improved for reimbursement.  

• Interpreter scheduling software or services 
• Document translation  
• Portable video device(s) for video remote interpreting  
• Equipment used for simultaneous interpretation 
• Printed signage for language assistance purposes 
• Staff training on language access, interpreting, or bilingual skills improvement, for 

example: 
o Interpreters skills training for bilingual staff who want to become certified 
o Training for staff who are partly bilingual to improve their skills 
o General training on addressing language access issues.  

Other examples can be found here: 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 250 of 411



Page 3 of 3 

https://www.nmcenterforlanguageaccess.org/cms/en/courts- agencies/about-language-
access-basic-training 
Items or services not listed above must be pre-approved (via email) by Language 
Access Interpreter Reimbursement Program staff prior to purchase or they may not 
qualify for reimbursement under the Program.  

4. SCOPE OF REIMBURSEMENT FUNDING 
Reimbursement payment under this Agreement will only be made to the Court when the 
cost is paid out of the budget or budgets, in the case of multi-court collaborative 
applicants of the Court responsible for full payment.  

5. PAYMENT STRUCTURE 
A. Reimbursement Rate  

a) Spoken Language Interpreters   
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of the cost of AOC certified, registered, 
or otherwise court-qualified interpreters providing services under this 
Agreement.  

b) Sign Language Interpreters  
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of the cost of certified and court-qualified 
interpreters providing services under this Agreement. 

c) Staff Interpreters (Salaried Staff) 
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of the cost of staff interpreters. 

d) Contracted Interpreters  
The cost of contract interpreters who are paid other than on an hourly basis, for 
example, on a half-day of flat rate basis, will be reimbursed at 50%.  

e) Remote Interpreting 
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of the cost of using certified, registered, 
or otherwise qualified interpreters providing interpretation by telephone or 
video.   

f) Cancellation Fees 
AOC will reimburse the Court for 50% of cancellation fees paid to interpreter.  

B. Travel Time and Mileage 
AOC will reimburse the Court at 50% of the cost of interpreter travel time and 
mileage. 
Interpreter travel time is reimbursable if a required party fails to appear. “Failure to 
appear” means a non-appearance by the LEP or deaf or hard of hearing client, 
attorneys, witnesses, or any necessary party to a hearing, thereby necessitating a 
cancellation or continuance of the hearing. The Court can be reimbursed for 50% of 
the cancellation fees paid to the interpreter.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 251 of 411





Return to  
Benton County Commissioners 

P.O. Box 190 
Prosser WA 99350 

RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING REGARDING THE PROPOSED VACATION OF THE TWENTY (20) 
FOOT INGRESS-EGRESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT ON THE SOUTHERN 300 FEET OF THE WEST 10 FEET 
OF LOT 1 AND THE EAST 10 FEET OF LOT 2 OF SHORT PLAT 2831, SECTION 04, TOWNSHIP 10 NORTH, 
RANGE 27 EAST, W.M. APPLICANT: RYAN HONE, PARENT PARCEL NUMBERS 1-0407-401-2831-001, AND 
1-0407-401-2831-002, FILE NUMBER - SPV 2021-005

WHEREAS the Board of County Commissioners did conduct a public hearing on Tuesday, December 21, 
2021 at 9:00 a.m. in the Commissioners Meeting Room, Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, 
Washington; and, 

WHEREAS the signature of the property owners of said application includes all properties affected by 
these easements; and,  

WHEREAS, upon due notice as provided in RCW 58.17.080 and 58.17.090, the hearing before the Board 
of County Commissioners was held on such petition as indicated above; and,  

WHEREAS the Board of County Commissioners agrees with the summary report from the Benton County 
Planning Division, retained in File No. SPV 2021-005; and, 

WHEREAS the 20-foot ingress-egress and utility easement located on the southern 300 feet of the west 
10 feet of Lot 1 and the east 10 feet of Lot 2 of Short Plat 2831 is proposed to be vacated (see Exhibit A 
attached hereto); and, 

WHEREAS it further appears that the vacation of the above-mentioned easement would not unduly 
jeopardize the health, safety, welfare and public good; NOW THEREFORE,  

BE IT RESOLVED that the vacation of a 20-foot ingress-egress and utility easement located on the 
southern 300 feet of the west 10 feet of Lot 1 and the east 10 feet of Lot 2 of Short Plat 2831 of 
Section 04, Township 10 North, Range 27 East, W.M., as legally described on Exhibit A attached 
hereto, is hereby approved. 

Dated this 21st day of December 2021. 

Chairman of the Board 

Member 

Member 
Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County 

Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 253 of 411



104074012831001
103073000002002

103072000000000

104074000001000

104074011763001

103073011764006

104074012383003

104074011746002

104074011824003

104074011824002 104074012384002

103073012596001

103073011763007

104074011746008

103073012993002

104074012383002

103073000002001

104074011746007

104074011824001 104074012384003

101070000000000

104071000000000

Site

SPV 2021-005 Vicinity Map

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

Access_Easement

Parcels_and_Assess

12/6/2021, 10:31:30 AM
0 0.15 0.30.07 mi

0 0.25 0.50.13 km

1:9,028

Benton County Planning
Google Inc |

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 254 of 411



 
Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 255 of 411



 
Community Development Department  Planning Division 
Prosser Office: 620 Market Street, 1st Floor (509) 786-5612 
Kennewick Office: 102206 East Wiser Parkway P.O. Box 910, Prosser, WA 99350 
www.co.benton.wa.us planning.department@co.benton.wa.us 

 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
NOTICE OF HEARING BEFORE THE BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS in the matter 
of County Planning:  
 
SPV 2021-005 - A Short Plat Vacation application by Ryan Hone to vacate a 20-foot ingress-
egress and utility easement located on the southern 300 feet of the west 10 feet of Lot 1 of Short 
Plat 2831 and the southern 300 feet of the east 10 feet of Lot 2 of Short Plat 2831. The property 
is located approximately 930 feet west of the end of Harrington Road in West Richland in Section 
4, Township 10 North, Range 27 East, W.M.  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of County Commissioners will hold a public hearing on 
December 21, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. in the Commissioners Meeting Room, Third Floor, Courthouse, 
Prosser WA.  Due to the ongoing and unprecedented COVID-19 emergency, participation in this 
meeting will be offered in person and virtually. All concerned persons may attend the meeting in 
person or virtually appear and present any support for or objection to the application or provide 
written testimony to the Board of County Commissioners in care of the Planning Division before 
the date of the hearing. Written testimony will need to be submitted to the Benton 
County Planning Division PO Box 910 Prosser, WA 99350 by 3 p.m. Monday December 
20, 2021.  
 
To find information regarding testifying and on virtual attendance options please use 
this link.  https://www.co.benton.wa.us/agendalist.aspx?categoryid=1181 
 
Further information regarding these files and copies of the proposals are available at no cost from 
the Benton County Planning Division, P.O. Box 910, Prosser, WA 99350. Telephone: Prosser (509) 
786-5612; Tri-Cities (509) 736-3086 or on our website at https://tinyurl.com/BCpublicnotice. 
 
BASED ON THE TESTIMONY presented at the public hearing, the Board of County Commissioners 
may approve, disapprove or they may make changes to the short plat vacation application.  Any 
information submitted to the Benton County Planning Division is subject to public records 
disclosure law for the State of Washington (RCW Chapter 42.56) and all other applicable law that 
may require the release of the documents to the public. 
 
DATED this 3rd day of December 2021. 
 
JEROME DELVIN, Chairman 
BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
       
Michelle Cooke, Assistant Planning Manager 
Benton County Planning Division 
 
PUBLISH: December 8, 2021 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 256 of 411



 
   

   

  

   
   

 

   
     

  
          

     

    

   

            

        

  

    

  

 

 

  

      

 

 

 

                   

              

  

 

 

 

      

              

         

            

                   
                   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 257 of 411



 

 

   

  

            

      
 

       

    

         

       

      

               

     

   

     

     

     

       

     
            

         

  

        

    
  

       
     

  

      
   

    

 

   

    

  

 

                   
                   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 258 of 411



1

Andrea Watts

From: Nick Pryor <NPryor@bentonrea.org>
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 1:45 PM
To: Andrea Watts; Chris Cooke; Jason Brown; Danielle Hoglen
Cc: Michelle Cooke; Ryan Hone
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]   RE: SPV 2021-005 Agency Review 

Hello Andrea, 
 
I wanted to follow up on this email regarding an easement vacation for Ryan Hone.  We have received the new signed 
and notarized easements from the landowner and are in the process of having them recorded with Benton County 
now.  As far as Benton REA is concerned, we will sign off on the vacation of the access and utility easement recorded on 
his parcels now. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Nick Pryor 
Distribution Engineer 
402 7th Street / PO Box 1150 
Prosser, WA 99350 
 

 
 
(509) 786‐8251  ( Office) 
(509) 492‐6723 ( Cell) 
(509) 786‐2231  ( Fax) 

 
 
 

From: Andrea Watts <Andrea.Watts@co.benton.wa.us>  
Sent: Monday, October 11, 2021 11:26 AM 
To: Nick Pryor <NPryor@bentonrea.org>; Chris Cooke <ccooke@bentonrea.org>; Jason Brown 
<jabrown@bentonrea.org> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: SPV 2021‐005 Agency Review  
 
Thank you. I will let the applicant know. 
 
Best, 
 

 
Andrea Watts  
Associate Planner 
Benton County Community Development Department - Planning Division 
Andrea.watts@co.benton.wa.us 
(509) 786-5612 
 

From: Nick Pryor <NPryor@bentonrea.org>  
Sent: Monday, October 11, 2021 11:21 AM 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 259 of 411



2

To: Andrea Watts <Andrea.Watts@co.benton.wa.us>; Chris Cooke <ccooke@bentonrea.org>; Jason Brown 
<jabrown@bentonrea.org> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: SPV 2021‐005 Agency Review  
 

EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING!!!: This email originated from outside of Benton County. DO NOT click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 
Hi Andrea, 
 
Unfortunately, we cannot sign off on the vacation of this easement since it is an access and utility easement that has 
Benton REA primary electric facilities currently utilizing that easement.  The land owner will need to contact Benton REA 
and setup an appointment to discuss options on site. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Nick Pryor 
Distribution Engineer 
402 7th Street / PO Box 1150 
Prosser, WA 99350 
 

 
 
(509) 786‐8251  ( Office) 
(509) 492‐6723 ( Cell) 
(509) 786‐2231  ( Fax) 

 
 
 

From: Andrea Watts <Andrea.Watts@co.benton.wa.us>  
Sent: Monday, October 11, 2021 9:05 AM 
To: Chris Cooke <ccooke@bentonrea.org>; Jason Brown <jabrown@bentonrea.org>; Nick Pryor 
<NPryor@bentonrea.org> 
Subject: SPV 2021‐005 Agency Review  
 
 
Hello, 
 
Please see attached application for a short plat vacation involving the removal of an access easement off of Harrington 
PR NE. Please respond with any comments you may have by Friday October 15th, 2021.  
 
Best,  
 

 
Andrea Watts  
Associate Planner 
Benton County Community Development Department - Planning Division 
Andrea.watts@co.benton.wa.us 
(509) 786-5612 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 260 of 411





Fiscal Impact 

None known at this time. 

Recommendation 

It is the recommendation of the Benton County Planning Division and the Planning Commission that Planning 
casefile application OA 2021-004, be approved with the suggested nine (9) Findings of Fact. 

Suggested Motion 

I move that the Board of County Commissioners adopt the Planning Commission’s Findings and Conclusions as 
their own and approve the proposed amendments relating to renewable energy uses requiring a conditional use 
permit and amending the sections relating to allowable of Ordinance 611, Ordinance 617, and Ordinance 634 
as noted in Planning casefile OA 2021-004.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 262 of 411



PCM 1.1       Staff Report November 4, 2021
PCM 1.2       Draft Ordinance
PCM 1.3       Notice of Public Hearing November 17, 2021
PCM 1.4       Zoning for Wind & Solar Benton County PowerPoint November 4, 2021

SEPA INFORMATION
PCM 1.5       Environmental Checklist EA 2021-004 October 18, 2021
PCM 1.6       Determination of Non Significance October 19, 2021
PCM 1.7       Notice of Intent to Adopt Ordinance October 19, 2021
PCM 1.8       Approval of Expediated Review November 16, 2021

COMMENTS
PCM 1.9       Benton County PUD October 28, 2021
PCM 1.10     Dept. of Natural Resources October 29, 2021

PCH 1.1       Stacy Smith Comments November 28, 2021
PCH 1.2       David Robert Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.3       Denise Christensen Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.4       Doug Robert Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.5       Jim Atkins Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.6       Marilyn Ford Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.7       Randy Robert Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.8       Robin Robert Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.9       Jean Robert Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.10      David Robert Comments November 29, 2021
PCH 1.11      Robert/Angela Andrews Comments November 30, 2021
PCH 1.12      Greg Hammer Comments November 30, 2021
PCH 1.13      Jill Hedgpeth Comments November 30, 2021
PCH 1.14      Cassandra Macy Comments November 30, 2021
PCH 1.15      Rich Nall Comments November 30, 2021
PCH 1.16      Chris Wissel-Tyson Comments November 30, 2021
PCH 1.17       Beverly Brewer Heaverlo Comments November 30, 2021

BCCM 1.1      Board of County Commissioners Agenda Sheet December 10, 2021
BCCM 1.2     Board of County Commissioners Resolution December 10, 2022
BCCM 1.3     Draft Ordinance
BCCM 1.4     Planning Commission Recommendation & Findings of Fact          December 6, 2021
BCCM 1.5     Planning Commission Audio Recording                                      December 7, 2021
BCCM 1.6       Board of County Commissioners Legal Notice December 3, 2021
BCCM 1.7       D. Brent Strecker Comments November 30, 2021
BCCM 1.8     Doug Robert Comments December 13, 2021
BCCM 1.9     Marilyn Ford Comments December 13, 2021
BCCM 1.10   Allison Keeler Comments December 13, 2021

BCCH 1.1
BCCH 1.2
BCCH 1.3
BCCH 1.4
BCCH 1.5
BCCH 1.6
BCCH 1.7

EXHIBIT LIST FOR OA 2021-004/EA 2021-026
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO BCC 11.15, 11.17, 11.33 AND 11.35

The Exhibit Numbers are found in the Top Right Hand Corner of each document.
PCM = Planning Commission Memo Exhibits 

BCCM = County Commissioner Memo Exhibits 
PCH= Planning Commission Hearing Exhibits 

BCCH= County Commissioner Hearing Exhibits

Board of County Commissioners Memo Exhibits December 21, 2021
BCCM

Board of County Commissioners Hearing Exhibits December 21, 2021

Planning Commission Memo Exhibit List - November 30, 2021
PCM 1
Includes
:

Planning Commission Hearing Exhibit List - November 30, 2021
PCH 1
Includes
:

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 263 of 411



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO ZONING, AMENDING 
THE SECTIONS RELATING TO USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; AMENDING THE 
SECTIONS RELATING TO ALLOWABLE USES; AMENDING ORDINANCE 611, SECTION 53, 
ORDINANCE 617, SECTION 5, ORDINANCE 634, SECTION 1 AND BCC 11.15.060; AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 611, SECTION 63, ORDINANCE 617, SECTION 7, ORDINANCE 634, SECTION 3, 
ORDINANCE 636, SECTION 2  AND BCC 11.17.070; AMENDING ORDINANCE 611, SECTION 126 
AND BCC 11.33.030; AMENDING ORDINANCE 611, SECTION 129 AND BCC 11.33.060; 
AMENDING ORDINANCE 611, SECTION 134 AND BCC 11.35.030 AND AMENDING ORDINANCE 
611, SECTION 137 AND BCC 11.35.060. 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission after conducting an open record 
hearing and review on November 30, 2021 has forwarded the proposed amendment(s) 
to the Board of County Commissioners with a positive recommendation; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board did review the Planning Commission record, and staff 
recommendations, the testimony and the proposed ordinance; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommendation of approval is set forth in the 
Planning Commission’s Recommendation, Findings of Fact and Conclusions that are found 
in File # OA 2021-004 in the Planning Division; and,  

WHEREAS, Notice of Open Record Hearing before the Board of County Commissioners 
was published in the Prosser Record Bulletin on December 8, 2021; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did conduct an open record hearing on 
Tuesday, December 21, 2021, at 9.00 a.m. in the Commissioners Meeting Room, Benton 
County Courthouse, Prosser Washington to consider the above proposed ordinance 
amendment to Ordinance 611, Ordinance 617, and Ordinance 634 as noted in Planning 
casefile OA 2021-004; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners did adopt the Planning Commission’s 
Findings of Fact and Conditions of Approval as their own (which are kept in File No. OA 
2021-004 in the Planning Division records); and, 

WHEREAS, after consideration of the above-mentioned request and review of the 
Planning Commission record, staff analysis and memos, and all written and oral 
comments submitted at the public hearing, the Board of County Commissioners are 
satisfied that it appears to be in the best interest of the public to adopt Planning 
Application OA 2020-004, amendment to Ordinance 611, Ordinance 617, and Ordinance 
634 as noted in Planning casefile OA 2021-004; NOW THEREFORE,

BCCM 1.2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 264 of 411





ORDINANCE NO.______ 

AN ORDINANCE relating to zoning, amending the sections relating to 

uses requiring a conditional use permit; amending the sections 

relating to allowable uses; amending Ordinance 611, Section 53, 

Ordinance 617, Section 5, Ordinance 634, Section 1 and BCC 

11.15.060; amending Ordinance 611, Section 63, Ordinance 617, 

Section 7, Ordinance 634, Section 3, Ordinance 636, Section 2  and 

BCC 11.17.070; amending Ordinance 611, Section 126 and BCC 

11.33.030; amending Ordinance 611, Section 129 and BCC 11.33.060; 

amending Ordinance 611, Section 134 and BCC 11.35.030 and amending 

Ordinance 611, Section 137 and BCC 11.35.060. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

SECTION 1. Ordinance 611, Section 53, Ordinance 617, Section 

5, Ordinance 634, Section 1 and BCC 11.15.060 are hereby amended 

to read as follows: 

USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The following uses 

may be permitted on a single parcel of record within the Rural 

Lands Twenty Acre District (RL-20) if a conditional use permit is 

issued by the Hearings Examiner after notice and public hearing as 

provided by BCC 11.50.040. 

(a) A sand or gravel pit, stone quarry and similar use for the

development of natural resources extracted on-site.

(b) Kennel, commercial.

(c) Child Day Care Facility, Type B, subject to the provisions of

BCC 11.42.060. 

(d) A Park.

(e) Bed and Breakfast Facility, subject to the provisions in BCC

11.42.030.

(f) Agricultural Market.

(g) Business activities, other than those set forth above, that

are compatible with the principal uses and purpose of the

underlying zone and the surrounding land uses may be conducted

from within an approved accessory building detached from all

dwelling units if the following criteria as well as any other

conditions required by the Hearings Examiner are satisfied:

(1) The business activity must take place on a parcel of

land that is 2.0 acres or greater in size.

(2) There must be a residence on site, and at least one (1)

of the proprietors of the business must be the owner or lessee

of the property where the business and the residence are

located and must reside in said residence.

(3) No more than four (4) non-resident persons, whether they

work on site or not, may be employed by or be partners in the

business.

(4) The business activity, including all storage space,

shall not occupy more than two thousand (2,000) square feet

of total floor area within the detached accessory building.

BCCM 1.3

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 266 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 2 

 
 (5) Only one (1) approved detached accessory building on a 

parcel may be used for business activities.  If more than one 

(1) business will be conducted within an approved detached 

accessory building, then a separate application must be 

submitted for each business activity, provided that the total 

area used by all business activities shall not exceed that 

permitted by BCC 11.15.060(g)(4). 

 

 (6) No more than two (2) non-illuminating signs, with a 

maximum area of four (4) square feet each, shall be permitted 

in connection with the business activity.  The posting of 

such signs is limited to the parcel on which the approved 

detached accessory building is located.  On-street (inside  

the road right-of-way) sign posting and sign posting which 

interferes with the line-of-site for road intersections are 

prohibited. 

 

 (7) Not more than three (3) vehicles marked to identify the 

business may be on the parcel at any one time.  No other on-

site outside storage of vehicles, equipment and/or supplies 

is allowed in connection with the business activity.  This 

prohibition applies to, but is not limited to:  lumber, 

plasterboard, pipe, paint, inoperable vehicles, and heavy 

equipment that are related to the business. 

 

 (8) The property owner and the proprietor(s) of the business 

shall comply with all requirements of the Benton County 

Building Department, the Benton County Fire Marshal, the 

Benton-Franklin Health District, and all other local, state 

and federal regulations pertinent to the business activity 

pursued.  The requirements of or permission granted by the 

Hearings Examiner shall not be construed as an exemption from 

such regulations. 

 

 (9) Adequate off-street parking, as determined by the 

Hearings Examiner, must be provided. 

 

 (10) Any waste created as a result of the business activity 

must be disposed of off-site in compliance with all local, 

state and/or federal regulations. 

 

 (11) The presence of customers/clients and non-resident 

employees at the location of the business activity shall be 

limited to the days and hours of operation as determined by 

the Hearings Examiner. 

 

 (12) The business activity does not require a marijuana 

retail outlet license from the Washington State Liquor and 

Cannabis Board. 

 

(h) Shooting range facility.  

 

(((i) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty 

(60) feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support 

structures and other improvements under the following conditions: 

 

 (1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least 

thirty (30) feet above ground level; 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand 

six hundred and forty (1,640) feet;

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 267 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 3 

(3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for 

development of a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the 

property lines common with such leased properties may be 

eliminated so long as no part of any wind turbine extends 

past any such interior property lines and the above required 

setbacks are maintained from the property lines comprising 

the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

(4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the

closest edge of a state, county, or city road right of way 

distance equal to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that 

height; 

(5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance

equal to the wind turbine height from all borders of the GMA 

Agricultural District, except for GMA Agricultural District 

borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation owned by the 

Department of Energy or adjacent to another zoning district 

adopted by another county that contains a general minimum 

parcel size of at least twenty (20) acres per parcel; 

(6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four

(4) miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the

nearest airport available for public use, the applicant for 

a building permit must comply with all the requirements 

imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

provide a written statement from the FAA that sets forth the 

FAA's comments and requirements, if any, for the proposal; 

(7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal 

Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable 

Airspace, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended, 

including but not limited to, providing such notices to the 

FAA as required thereunder and compliance with all 

requirements or prohibitions imposed by the FAA on the 

applicant's proposal; 

(8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement

and operation of wind turbines under this section shall be 

made available for review by the United States Department of 

Defense (USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect 

now or hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind 

turbine permit applications will be in accordance with Benton 

County Code chapter 17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the 

applicant is required to provide sufficient evidence to 

persuade the Hearings Examiner that the proposed wind turbine 

is compatible with other uses in the surrounding area, 

including any military training activities, or is no more 

incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses in 

the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040; 

(9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least

forty (40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one 

mile, whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least 

five thousand (5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which 

are available solely for private use and identified on the 

most current edition of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts 

produced by the National Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 268 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 4 

(10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner 

of such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) 

days of written notification by the Planning Department.  If 

such facility is not removed within said ninety (90) days, 

the County may refer the issue to the code enforcement officer 

for appropriate action pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

(11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may

not displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that 

parcel(s) on which they are located.)) 

(((j))) (i) Agri-tourism accommodations. 

(((k) Solar Power Generator Facility, Major.)) 

SECTION 2.   Ordinance 611, Section 63, Ordinance 617, Section 

7, Ordinance 634, Section 3, Ordinance 636, Section 2  and BCC 

11.17.070 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT. The following uses 

may be permitted within the GMA Agricultural District if a 

conditional use permit is issued by the Hearings Examiner after 

notice and public hearing as provided by BCC 11.50.040:  

(a) Slaughterhouses, commercial meat-packing plants, animal 

feedlots; provided, that they are not located in the floodway and 

floodplain as shown on the FEMA maps, or within two hundred (200) 

feet of a naturally occurring body of water, or a well-used for 

domestic or municipal purposes and shall be designed to prevent 

infiltration or other movement of livestock wastes into the 

aquifer, or directly into surface waters. 

(b) Commercial dairy, hog, poultry, and rabbit operations, 

propagation of fur bearing species for commercial purposes, or 

livestock auction yard; provided, that at least the following 

setbacks are met as well as all other conditions imposed in 

connection with the issuance of the conditional use permit: one 

hundred (100) foot setbacks from any lot line to any animal 

enclosure, except for fenced pasture; and a five hundred (500) 

foot setback from any existing residential structure on adjacent 

property not under applicant's ownership. 

(c) Commercial establishments for the transportation of 

agricultural products other than those produced on the premises, 

or agricultural supplies or equipment, together with the 

maintenance, storage, repair and servicing of the necessary trucks 

and equipment. 

(d) The following agriculturally based recreational and sales

facilities:  covered arenas, rodeo events, livestock sales rings, 

and working animal events.  The following accessory uses may be 

permitted during one or more of the above events: veterinary 

service, food concessions, RV parking area, and event related 

novelty/accessory sales. 

(e) Airstrips (commercial crop dusting).

(f) Facilities for treatment of industrial solid wastes with

associated spray fields related to the on-site processing of

agricultural products.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 269 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 5 

(g) Solid waste disposal site; except on lands designated as

having less than 160 acre minimum parcel size.

(h) Off-site hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities may

be allowed by conditional use permit issued by the Benton County

Hearings Examiner after notice and public hearing as provided in

BCC 11.50.040 provided, that such facilities must comply with the

state siting criteria adopted in accordance with RCW 70.105.210,

as currently in effect or as hereafter amended.

(i) Asphalt manufacture in conjunction with rock, sand and gravel

mining.

(((j) Facilities for power generation, other than nuclear 

fueled, wind fueled or solar fueled.)) 

(((k))) (j)  Child Day Care Facility, Type B, subject to the 

provisions of BCC 11.42.060. 

(((l))) (k)  Off-premise directional signs. 

(((m))) (l)  The production of bio-diesel and alcohol fuels from 

agricultural products. 

(((n))) (m)  The commercial maintenance, repair, servicing, and 

storage of agricultural machinery, implements, and equipment for 

use off the premises.  

(((o))) (n)  Commercial establishments for the storage, sale and 

off-site application of agricultural chemicals, including but not 

limited to herbicides, fertilizers, insecticides, and pesticides. 

(((p))) (o)  Underground natural gas storage facilities. 

(((q) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty 

(60) feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support

structures and other improvements under the following conditions: 

(1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least

thirty (30) feet above ground level; 

(2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand 

six hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

(3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for 

development of a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the 

property lines common with such leased properties may be 

eliminated so long as no part of any wind turbine extends 

past any such interior property lines and the above required 

setbacks are maintained from the property lines comprising 

the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

(4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the

closest edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way 

distance equal to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that 

height; 

(5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance

equal to the wind turbine height from all borders of the GMA 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 270 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 6 

Agricultural District, except for GMA Agricultural District 

borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation owned by the 

Department of Energy or adjacent to another zoning district 

adopted by another county that contains a general minimum 

parcel size of at least twenty (20) acres per parcel; 

(6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four

(4) miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the

nearest airport available for public use, the applicant for 

a building permit must comply with all the requirements 

imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

provide a written statement from the FAA that sets forth the 

FAA's comments and requirements, if any, for the proposal; 

(7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal 

Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable 

Airspace, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended, 

including but not limited to, providing such notices to the 

FAA as required thereunder and compliance with all 

requirements or prohibitions imposed by the FAA on the 

applicant's proposal; 

(8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement

and operation of wind turbines under this section shall be 

made available for review by the United States Department of 

Defense (USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect 

now or hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind 

turbine permit applications will be in accordance with Benton 

County Code chapter 17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the 

applicant is required to provide sufficient evidence to 

persuade the Hearings Examiner that the proposed wind turbine 

is compatible with other uses in the surrounding area, 

including any military training activities, or is no more 

incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses in 

the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040; 

(9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least

forty (40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one 

mile, whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least 

five thousand (5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which 

are available solely for private use and identified on the 

most current edition of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts 

produced by the National Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

(10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner 

of such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) 

days of written notification by the Planning Department.  If 

such facility is not removed within said ninety (90) days, 

the County may refer the issue to the code enforcement officer 

for appropriate action pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

(11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may

not displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that 

parcel(s) on which they are located.)) 

(((r))) (p) Non-agricultural accessory uses that promote or 

sustain the continuation of the agricultural uses of a parcel if 

the accessory uses meet the following criteria as well as any other 

conditions required by the Hearings Examiner:

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 271 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 7 

(1) The non-agricultural accessory use shall be located,

designed, and operated so as to not interfere with, and to

support the continuation of, the overall agricultural use of

the parcel;

(2) The non-agricultural accessory use must be consistent

with the size, scale, and intensity of the existing

agricultural use of the parcel and the existing buildings

thereon;

(3) The parcel on which the non-agricultural accessory use

is located meets one of the following:

(i) the parcel is no less than twenty (20) acres in size

with eighty (80) percent of the acreage primarily

committed to agricultural use and has produced gross

income equivalent to two hundred (200) dollars or more

per acre each year for three (3) of the five (5) calendar

years preceding the date of application;

(ii) the parcel is currently enrolled in the County's

Agricultural Open Space program pursuant to Chapter

84.34 RCW, as currently in effect or as hereafter

amended;

(iii) the parcel is not less than one hundred (100)

contiguous acres that has been in agricultural use for

three (3) of the last five (5) years.

(4) The non-agricultural accessory use, including any new

buildings, parking or supportive uses associated therewith,

shall be located within one thousand (1000) feet of the

nearest existing buildings or residential structures and

shall not otherwise convert more than one (1) acre of

agricultural land to non-agricultural uses;

(5) The non-agricultural accessory uses, including any

storage space associated therewith, shall not collectively

occupy more than fifteen thousand (15,000) square feet of

building space;

(6) No more than three (3) vehicles marked to identify the

non-agricultural accessory use(s) may be on the parcel at any

time.  No other on-site outside storage of vehicles, equipment

and/or supplies is allowed in connection with the non-

agricultural accessory use;

(7) No person may possess more than one valid permit at a

time under this section and all non-agricultural accessory

use permits issued under this section for any given parcel

must be authorized in one permit;

(8) No more than two (2) signs of a size determined by the

Hearings Examiner shall be permitted in connection with the

non-agricultural accessory use. Illumination of a sign shall

be only by hooded directional lighting so that only the sign

surface is illuminated.  The posting of such sign is limited 

to the parcel on which the non-agricultural accessory use is 

located. On-street (inside the road right-of-way) sign 

posting is prohibited, and no sign outside of a road right-

of-way may interfere with the line of sight for road 

intersection; 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 272 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 8 

(9) The parcel and non-agricultural accessory use owner

shall comply with all requirements of the Benton County

Building Department, the Benton County Fire Marshal, the

Benton-Franklin Health District, and all other local, state,

and federal regulations pertinent to the non-agricultural

accessory use being pursued.  The requirements of or the

permission granted by the Hearings Examiner shall not be

construed as an exemption from such regulations;

(10) Adequate off road parking, as determined by the Hearings

Examiner, must be provided;

(11) Any waste created as a result of the non-agricultural

accessory use must be disposed of off-site in compliance with

all local, state, and/or federal regulations;

(12) The days and hours of operation shall be determined by

the Hearings Examiner with the granting of a Conditional Use

Permit; and

(13) The non-agricultural accessory use shall not require a

marijuana retail outlet license from the Washington State

Liquor and Cannabis Board.

(((s))) (q)  Overnight lodging within a structure primarily used 

for processing of beer, wine, or spirits that meets the following 

criteria:  

(1) The number of guest rooms may not exceed two (2); and,

(2) The area used for the guest rooms and associated with

overnight lodging shall not exceed eight hundred square feet

(800); and,

(3) The overnight lodging guest rooms shall meet Benton-

Franklin Health District requirements for septic systems and

domestic water usage shall be demonstrated; and,

(4) The overnight lodging guest rooms shall comply with all

the applicable building code requirements.

(((t))) (r)  Events Facility on the same or adjoining parcel as a 

Winery/Brewery/Distillery, but not related to the operational and 

marketing of the business, such as weddings, receptions, and 

meetings/retreats shall be limited to not more than two hundred 

(200) guest or less, meet the following criteria as well as any

other conditions required by the Hearings Examiner:

(1) The events facility shall be located, designed, and

operated so as to not interfere with, and to support the

continuation of, the overall agricultural use of the parcel;

(2) The events facility must be consistent with the size,

scale, and intensity of the existing agricultural use of the

parcel and the existing buildings thereon;

(3) The events facility, including any new buildings, parking

or supportive uses associated therewith, shall be located

within one thousand (1000) feet of the existing

Winery/Brewery/Distillery structures and shall not otherwise

convert more than one (1) acre of agricultural land to the

use;

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 273 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 9 

 
4)  The parcel and events facility shall comply with all 

requirements of the Benton County Building Department, the 

Benton County Fire Marshal, the Benton-Franklin Health 

District, and all other local, state, and federal regulations 

pertinent to the events facility being pursued. The 

requirements of or the permission granted by the Hearings 

Examiner shall not be construed as an exemption from such 

regulations; 

 

 (5) Adequate off-road parking, as determined by the Hearings 

Examiner, must be provided; and 

 

 (6) Any waste created as a result of the event facility must 

be disposed of off-site in compliance with all local, state, 

and/or federal regulations. 

 

(((u))) (s)  Bed and Breakfast Facility, subject to the provisions 

in BCC 11.42.030. 

 

(((v))) (t)  Recreation and entertainment activities centered on 

an agricultural theme. This may include activities such as field 

mazes, hayrides, sleigh rides, animal rides, petting zoos and other 

similar uses. 

 

(((w))) (u)  Commercial sand and gravel pits, stone quarries, other 

mineral extraction, asphalt and/or concrete batching plants.  

 

(((x))) (v)  Veterinarian Clinics. 

 

(((y))) (w)  Shooting Range Facility. 

 

(((z) Solar power generator facility, major.)) 

 

(((aa))) (x)  Agri-tourism accommodations. 

 

(((bb))) (y)  Agricultural research facility which conducts basic, 

applied, and/or developmental research of regional, national, or 

international concerns in the field of agriculture. 

  

(((cc))) (z)  Commercial agricultural establishments that 

primarily provide  

storage, repair, or sale of irrigation, mechanical, and excavation  

service activities for use off premise. 

 

(((dd))) (aa) Winery/Brewery/Distillery facility, including 

sampling, tasting, and sales of the product, may occur on an 

adjacent parcel from the site where the fruit or other products 

are processed, if both parcels are under the same ownership. 

 

 SECTION 3. Ordinance 611, Section 126 and BCC 11.33.030 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 ALLOWABLE USES.  The following uses are allowed within the 

Light Industrial District (LI) on a single parcel of record: 

 

(a) Fire department facility, law enforcement facility, and/or 

medical facility. 

 

(b) Research and development facility, computer component 

manufacturing, laboratory, and/or electronic data processing 

facility. 

 

(c) Agricultural uses.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 274 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 10 

(d) Lumber yard and/or custom milling of logs into dimensional

lumber.

(e) Nursery and/or landscaping business.

(f) Warehouse.

(g) Utility substation facility.

(h) Rental storage facility.

(i) Food processing and/or cannery.

(j) Metal fabrication and/or welding.

(k) Sales of on-site manufactured goods.

(l) Sales, service and repair of machinery equipment, 

automobiles, and/or trucks.

(m) Wineries/Breweries/Distilleries.

(n) Hiking and non-motorized biking trails.

(o) Hazardous waste treatment and/or hazardous waste storage

facilities as an accessory use to an allowed or conditionally

permitted use; provided, that such facilities must comply with the

state siting criteria adopted in RCW 70.105.210, as it now exists

or is hereafter amended, and only treat waste generated on the

same parcel or a contiguous parcel.

(p) Rapid Charging Station.

(q) No more than one (1) wind turbine and related support

structures and other improvements per parcel for private use; 

provided, the wind turbine height must be less than sixty (60) 

feet and the wind turbine must be set back from all property lines 

a distance equal to one (1) foot for every foot in height of the 

wind turbine. 

SECTION 4. Ordinance 611, Section 129 and BCC 11.33.060 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The following uses 

may be permitted on a single parcel of record within the Light 

Industrial District (LI) if a conditional use permit is issued by 

the Hearings Examiner after notice and public hearing as provided 

by BCC 11.50.040. 

(a) Racetrack facility for automotive, motocross, or horse 

racing.

(b) Agricultural recreational facility.

(c) Sand and/or gravel pit, stone quarry, mining, crushing,

stockpiling of mineral resources and similar uses for the

development of natural resources extracted on-site.

(d) Solid waste transfer station.

(e) Airport/Heliport.

(f) Asphalt plant.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 275 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 11 

(g) Concrete plant.

(h) Sewage treatment plant for industrial and/or domestic waste.

(i) Wrecking yard.

(j) Indoor shooting range.

(k) Solar Power Generator Facility, Major.

(l) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty (60)

feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support structures 

and other improvements under the following conditions: 

(1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least

thirty (30) feet above ground level; 

(2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand 

six hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

(3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all
property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 
height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 
properties are leased for an identical duration for 
development of a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the 
property lines common with such leased properties may be 
eliminated so long as no part of any wind turbine extends 
past any such interior property lines and the above-required 
setbacks are maintained from the property lines comprising 
the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

(4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the

closest edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way 

distance equal to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that 

height; 

(5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance

equal to the wind turbine height from all borders of the Light 

Industrial Zoning District, except for Light Industrial 

Zoning District borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation 

owned by the Department of Energy or adjacent to another 

zoning district adopted by another county that contains a 

general minimum parcel size of at least twenty (20) acres per 

parcel; 

(6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four

(4) miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the

nearest airport available for public use, the applicant for 

a building permit must comply with all the requirements 

imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

provide a written statement from the FAA that sets forth the 

FAA's comments and requirements, if any, for the proposal; 

(7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal 

Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable 

Airspace, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended, 

including but not limited to, providing such notices to the 

FAA as required thereunder and compliance with all 

requirements or prohibitions imposed by the FAA on the 

applicant's proposal; 

(8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement

and operation of wind turbines under this section shall be 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 276 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 12 

made available for review by the United States Department of 

Defense (USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect 

now or hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind 

turbine permit applications will be in accordance with Benton 

County Code chapter 17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the 

applicant is required to provide sufficient evidence to 

persuade the Hearings Examiner that the proposed wind turbine 

is compatible with other uses in the surrounding area, 

including any military training activities, or is no more 

incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses in 

the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040; 

(9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least

forty (40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one 

mile, whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least 

five thousand (5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which 

are available solely for private use and identified on the 

most current edition of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts 

produced by the National Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

(10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner 

of such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) 

days of written notification by the Planning Department.  If 

such facility is not removed within said ninety (90) days, 

the County may refer the issue to the code enforcement officer 

for appropriate action pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

(11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may

not displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that 

parcel(s) on which they are located. 

SECTION 5. Ordinance 611, Section 134 and BCC 11.35.030 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

ALLOWABLE USES.  The following uses are allowed within the 

Heavy Industrial District (HI) on a single parcel of record: 

(a) The processing, assembly and/or manufacturing of raw 

materials, semi-finished materials, and/or finished materials, 

except for the manufacturing reprocessing and/or storage of 

radioactive waste. 

(b) Ironwork, drop forge industry, and/or metal fabrication.

(c) Repair of machinery equipment, automobiles and/or trucks.

(d) Food processing facility, cannery and/or cold storage 

facility.

(e) Agricultural uses.

(f) Retail sales of goods manufactured on the premises; provided,

that the floor space devoted to such use does not exceed ten (10)

percent of the gross floor area of all buildings on the parcel.

(g) Wholesale sales of products.

(h) Transportation facilities for handling cargo and/or

passengers, including mooring facilities, grain elevator, or barge

terminal.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 277 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 13 

(i) Warehouse.

(j) Utility substation facility.

(k) Production of alcohol fuels, biodiesel, or ethanol.

(l) Hiking and non-motorized biking trails.

(m) Sewage treatment plant for industrial and/or domestic waste.

(n) Solid waste transfer station and/or recycling center.

(o) Wrecking yard.

(p) Hazardous waste treatment and/or hazardous waste storage

facilities as an accessory use to an allowed or conditionally

permitted use; provided, that such facilities must comply with the

state siting criteria adopted in RCW 70.105.210, as currently in

effect or as hereafter amended, and only treat waste generated on

the same parcel or a contiguous parcel.

(q) Rapid Charging Station.

(r) No more than one (1) wind turbine and related support

structures and other improvements per parcel for private use; 

provided, the wind turbine height must be less than sixty (60) 

feet and the wind turbine must be set back from all property lines 

a distance equal to one (1) foot for every foot in height of the 

wind turbine. 

SECTION 6. Ordinance 611, Section 137 and BCC 11.35.060 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The following uses 

may be permitted on a single parcel of record within the Heavy 

Industrial District (HI) if a conditional use permit is issued by 

the Hearings Examiner after notice and public hearing as provided 

by BCC 11.50.040. 

(a) Facilities for generating power for sale to the public,

including solar power generators; provided, that such power cannot

be nuclear fueled.

(b) Hazardous waste treatment and/or hazardous waste storage

facility treating waste not generated on the same or a contiguous

parcel; provided, that such facility must comply with Washington

State siting criteria set forth in RCW 70.105.210, as currently in

effect or as hereafter amended.

(c) Sand and/or gravel pit, stone quarry, mining, crushing,

stockpiling of mineral resources and similar uses for the

development of natural resources extracted on-site.

(d) Asphalt plant.

(e) Concrete plant.

(f) Airport/Heliport.

(g) Railroad switch yards, maintenance and/or repair facilities.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 278 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 14 

(h) State and/or local correctional facility, and/or Secure

Community Transition Facility as described by RCW 36.70A.200, as

currently in effect or as hereafter amended.

(i) Solar Power Generator Facility, Major.

(j) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty (60)

feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support structures 

and other improvements under the following conditions: 

(1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least

thirty (30) feet above ground level; 

(2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand 

six hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

(3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for 

development of a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the 

property lines common with such leased properties may be 

eliminated so long as no part of any wind turbine extends 

past any such interior property lines and the above-required 

setbacks are maintained from the property lines comprising 

the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

(4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the

closest edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way 

distance equal to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that 

height; 

(5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance

equal to the wind turbine height from all borders of the Heavy 

Industrial Zoning District, except for Heavy Industrial 

Zoning District borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation 

owned by the Department of Energy or adjacent to another 

zoning district adopted by another county that contains a 

general minimum parcel size of at least twenty (20) acres per 

parcel; 

(6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four

(4) miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the

nearest airport available for public use, the applicant for 

a building permit must comply with all the requirements 

imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

provide a written statement from the FAA that sets forth the 

FAA's comments and requirements, if any, for the proposal; 

(7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal 

Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable 

Airspace, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended, 

including but not limited to, providing such notices to the 

FAA as required thereunder and compliance with all 

requirements or prohibitions imposed by the FAA on the 

applicant's proposal; 

(8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement

and operation of wind turbines under this section shall be 

made available for review by the United States Department of 

Defense (USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect 

now or hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 279 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 15 

turbine permit applications will be in accordance with Benton 

County Code chapter 17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the 

applicant is required to provide sufficient evidence to 

persuade the Hearings Examiner that the proposed wind turbine 

is compatible with other uses in the surrounding area, 

including any military training activities, or is no more 

incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses in 

the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040; 

(9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least

forty (40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one 

mile, whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least 

five thousand (5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which 

are available solely for private use and identified on the 

most current edition of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts 

produced by the National Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

(10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner 

of such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) 

days of written notification by the Planning Department.  If 

such facility is not removed within said ninety (90) days, 

the County may refer the issue to the code enforcement officer 

for appropriate action pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

(11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may

not displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that 

parcel(s) on which they are located. 

SECTION 7.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance 

is declared unconstitutional, or the applicability thereof to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, the constitutionality of 

the remainder of the Ordinance and the applicability thereof to 

other persons and circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

SECTION 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect 

and be in full force upon its passage and adoption. 

ADOPTED AND PASSED this _____ day of _____________________. 

Chairman of the Board. 

Chairman Pro-Tem. 

Member. 

Approved as to Form: Constituting the Board of 

County Commissioners of 

Benton County, Washington 

Attest: 

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Clerk of the Board 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 280 of 411



BCCM 1.4

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 281 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 282 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 283 of 411



The Audio for the Planning Commission meeting on November 30, 2021 
can be found on the County website under the Meeting Agendas page at 
https://www.co.benton.wa.us/agendalist.aspx?categoryid=1204

BCCM 1.5

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 284 of 411





To continue to provide citizens access to public meetings, Benton County in addition to in 
person attendance, will also be providing telephonic and video access for the public to view
and provide testimony at public meetings. If you choose to join the meeting telephonically, we 
ask that you please limit background noise or mute your line to prevent any unnecessary 
interruption to the meeting.  To find information on virtual attendance options, including 
streaming video, WebEx video conferencing and telephone, please visit 
https://www.co.benton.wa.us/agendalist.aspx?categoryid=1181. 

Comments regarding the proposed ordinance amendment, Shoreline Master Plan or SEPA 
determinations of the proposals may also be submitted in writing to the Benton County Planning 
Division; P.O. Box 910, Prosser, WA 99350 or via email to 
planning.department@co.benton.wa.us by 3 p.m. Monday, June 21, 2021.  No individual with 
a disability shall be denied the benefit of participating in such meetings. If you wish to use 
auxiliary aids or require assistance to comment at a public meeting, please contact the Benton 
County Planning Division at least ten days prior to the meeting date to make arrangements for 
special needs. 

At this hearing, the Board of County Commissioners may approve, or disapprove the 
amendments.  Information concerning the applications can be obtained at the Benton County 
Planning Division, by calling 736-3086 (Tri-Cities) or 786-5612 (Prosser). 

Dated at Prosser, Washington on this 4th day of June 2021. 

JEROME DELVIN, Chairman 
BENTON COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Greg Wendt, Director 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPT. 

PUBLISH ON: June 9, 2021 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 286 of 411





BCCM 1.8

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 288 of 411



BCCM 1.9

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 289 of 411



BCCM 1.10

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 290 of 411





OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

2 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand six 

hundred and forty (1,640) feet;  

 

 (3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for development of 

a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the property lines 

common with such leased properties may be eliminated so long as no 

part of any wind turbine extends past any such interior property 

lines and the above required setbacks are maintained from the 

property lines comprising the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

 

 (4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the closest 

edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way distance equal 

to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that height; 

 

 (5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance equal 

to the wind turbine height from all borders of the GMA Agricultural 

District, except for GMA Agricultural District borders adjacent to 

the Hanford Reservation owned by the Department of Energy or 

adjacent to another zoning district adopted by another county that 

contains a general minimum parcel size of at least twenty (20) 

acres per parcel;  

 

 (6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four (4) 

miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the nearest 

airport available for public use, the applicant for a building 

permit must comply with all the requirements imposed by the Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA) and provide a written statement from 

the FAA that sets forth the FAA's comments and requirements, if 

any, for the proposal; 

 

 (7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal Aviation 

Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace, as 

currently in effect or as hereafter amended, including but not 

limited to, providing such notices to the FAA as required 

thereunder and compliance with all requirements or prohibitions 

imposed by the FAA on the applicant's proposal; 

 

 (8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement and 

operation of wind turbines under this section shall be made 

available for review by the United States Department of Defense 

(USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect now or 

hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind turbine permit 

applications will be in accordance with Benton County Code chapter 

17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the applicant is required to 

provide sufficient evidence to persuade the Hearings Examiner that 

the proposed wind turbine is compatible with other uses in the 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 292 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

3 

surrounding area, including any military training activities, or 

is no more incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses 

in the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040; 

 

 (9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least forty 

(40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one mile, 

whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least five thousand 

(5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which are available 

solely for private use and identified on the most current edition 

of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts produced by the National 

Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO);  

  

 (10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is 

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner of 

such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) days of 

written notification by the Planning Department.  If such facility 

is not removed within said ninety (90) days, the County may refer 

the issue to the code enforcement officer for appropriate action 

pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

 

 (11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may not 

displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that parcel(s) 

on which they are located.)) 

 

 (((k) Solar Power Generator Facility, Major.)) 

 
2. Chapter 11.17 Growth Management Act Agricultural Zoning District (GMAAD). 

The proposed amendment removes facilities for power generation other than nuclear 
fueled, wind turbines, and solar power generator facility uses from requiring a conditional 
use permit in the GMAAD Zoning District. 
 
The changes impact BCC 11.17.070(j)(q) and (z) as shown: 

 

 (((j) Facilities for power generation, other than nuclear fueled, 

wind fueled or solar fueled.)) 

 

 (((q) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty (60) 

feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support structures 

and other improvements under the following conditions: 

 

 (1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least thirty 

(30) feet above ground level; 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand six 

hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

 

 (3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 293 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

4 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for development of 

a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the property lines 

common with such leased properties may be eliminated so long as no 

part of any wind turbine extends past any such interior property 

lines and the above-required setbacks are maintained from the 

property lines comprising the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

 

 (4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the closest 

edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way distance equal 

to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that height; 

 

 (5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance equal 

to the wind turbine height from all borders of the GMA Agricultural 

District, except for GMA Agricultural District borders adjacent to 

the Hanford Reservation owned by the Department of Energy or 

adjacent to another zoning district adopted by another county that 

contains a general minimum parcel size of at least twenty (20) 

acres per parcel; 

 

  (6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four (4) 

miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the nearest 

airport available for public use, the applicant for a building 

permit must comply with all the requirements imposed by the Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA) and provide a written statement from 

the FAA that sets forth the FAA's comments and requirements, if 

any, for the proposal; 

 

 (7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal Aviation 

Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace, as 

currently in effect or as hereafter amended, including but not 

limited to, providing such notices to the FAA as required 

thereunder and compliance with all requirements or prohibitions 

imposed by the FAA on the applicant's proposal; 

  

 (8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement and 

operation of wind turbines under this section shall be made 

available for review by the United States Department of Defense 

(USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect now or 

hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind turbine permit 

applications will be in accordance with Benton County Code chapter 

17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the applicant is required to 

provide sufficient evidence to persuade the Hearings Examiner that 

the proposed wind turbine is compatible with other uses in the 

surrounding area, including any military training activities, or 

is no more incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses 

in the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040;  

 

 (9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least forty 

(40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one mile, 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 294 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

5 

whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least five thousand 

(5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which are available 

solely for private use and identified on the most current edition 

of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts produced by the National 

Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

 

 (10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is 

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner of 

such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) days of 

written notification by the Planning Department.  If such facility 

is not removed within said ninety (90) days, the County may refer 

the issue to the code enforcement officer for appropriate action 

pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

 

 (11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may not 

displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that parcel(s) 

on which they are located.)) 

 

 (((z) Solar power generator facility, major.)) 

 

3. Chapter 11.33 Light Industrial Zoning District (LI). The proposed amendment adds 
a single wind turbine less than 60’ and related support structures to allowable uses and 
adds a single wind turbine exceeding 60’ or a wind turbine farm as uses requiring a 
conditional use permit in the LI Zoning District. 

 

The changes impact BCC 11.33.030(q) as shown: 
 

 (q) No more than one (1) wind turbine and related support structures 

and other improvements per parcel for private use; provided, the 

wind turbine height must be less than sixty (60) feet and the wind 

turbine must be set back from all property lines a distance equal 

to one (1) foot for every foot in height of the wind turbine. 

 

The changes impact BCC 11.33.060(l) as shown: 
 

 (l) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty (60) 

feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support structures 

and other improvements under the following conditions: 

 

 (1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least thirty 

(30) feet above ground level; 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand six 

hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

 

 (3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for development of 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 295 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

6 

a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the property lines 

common with such leased properties may be eliminated so long as no 

part of any wind turbine extends past any such interior property 

lines and the above-required setbacks are maintained from the 

property lines comprising the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

 

 (4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the closest 

edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way distance equal 

to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that height; 

 

 (5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance equal 

to the wind turbine height from all borders of the Light Industrial 

Zoning District, except for Light Industrial Zoning District 

borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation owned by the Department 

of Energy or adjacent to another zoning district adopted by another 

county that contains a general minimum parcel size of at least 

twenty (20) acres per parcel; 

 

 (6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four (4) 

miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the nearest 

airport available for public use, the applicant for a building 

permit must comply with all the requirements imposed by the Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA) and provide a written statement from 

the FAA that sets forth the FAA's comments and requirements, if 

any, for the proposal; 

 

 (7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal Aviation 

Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace, as 

currently in effect or as hereafter amended, including but not 

limited to, providing such notices to the FAA as required 

thereunder and compliance with all requirements or prohibitions 

imposed by the FAA on the applicant's proposal; 

 

 (8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement and 

operation of wind turbines under this section shall be made 

available for review by the United States Department of Defense 

(USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect now or 

hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind turbine permit 

applications will be in accordance with Benton County Code chapter 

17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the applicant is required to 

provide sufficient evidence to persuade the Hearings Examiner that 

the proposed wind turbine is compatible with other uses in the 

surrounding area, including any military training activities, or 

is no more incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses 

in the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040;  

 

 (9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least forty 

(40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one mile, 

whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least five thousand 

(5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which are available 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 296 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

7 

solely for private use and identified on the most current edition 

of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts produced by the National 

Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

 

 (10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is 

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner of 

such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) days of 

written notification by the Planning Department.  If such facility 

is not removed within said ninety (90) days, the County may refer 

the issue to the code enforcement officer for appropriate action 

pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

 

 (11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may not 

displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that parcel(s) 

on which they are located. 

 

4. Chapter 11.35 Heavy Industrial Zoning District (HI). The proposed amendment 
adds a single wind turbine less than 60’ and related support structures to allowable uses 
and adds a single wind turbine exceeding 60’ or a wind turbine farm as uses requiring a 
conditional use permit in the HI Zoning District. 

 

The changes impact BCC 11.35.030(r) as shown: 
 

 (r) No more than one (1) wind turbine and related support structures 

and other improvements per parcel for private use; provided, the 

wind turbine height must be less than sixty (60) feet and the wind 

turbine must be set back from all property lines a distance equal 

to one (1) foot for every foot in height of the wind turbine. 

 

The changes impact BCC 11.35.060(j) as shown: 
 

 (j) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty (60) 

feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support structures 

and other improvements under the following conditions: 

 

 (1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least thirty 

(30) feet above ground level; 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand six 

hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

 

 (3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for development of 

a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the property lines 

common with such leased properties may be eliminated so long as no 

part of any wind turbine extends past any such interior property 

lines and the above-required setbacks are maintained from the 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 297 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

8 

property lines comprising the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

 

 (4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the closest 

edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way distance equal 

to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that height; 

 

 (5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance equal 

to the wind turbine height from all borders of the Heavy Industrial 

Zoning District, except for Heavy Industrial Zoning District 

borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation owned by the Department 

of Energy or adjacent to another zoning district adopted by another 

county that contains a general minimum parcel size of at least 

twenty (20) acres per parcel; 

 

 (6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four (4) 

miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the nearest 

airport available for public use, the applicant for a building 

permit must comply with all the requirements imposed by the Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA) and provide a written statement from 

the FAA that sets forth the FAA's comments and requirements, if 

any, for the proposal; 

 

 (7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal Aviation 

Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace, as 

currently in effect or as hereafter amended, including but not 

limited to, providing such notices to the FAA as required 

thereunder and compliance with all requirements or prohibitions 

imposed by the FAA on the applicant's proposal; 

 

 (8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement and 

operation of wind turbines under this section shall be made 

available for review by the United States Department of Defense 

(USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect now or 

hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind turbine permit 

applications will be in accordance with Benton County Code chapter 

17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the applicant is required to 

provide sufficient evidence to persuade the Hearings Examiner that 

the proposed wind turbine is compatible with other uses in the 

surrounding area, including any military training activities, or 

is no more incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses 

in the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040; 

 

 (9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least forty 

(40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one mile, 

whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least five thousand 

(5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which are available 

solely for private use and identified on the most current edition 

of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts produced by the National 

Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 298 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

9 

 (10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is 

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner of 

such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) days of 

written notification by the Planning Department.  If such facility 

is not removed within said ninety (90) days, the County may refer 

the issue to the code enforcement officer for appropriate action 

pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

 

 (11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may not 

displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that parcel(s) 

on which they are located. 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

1. The Planning Staff mailed out the Determination of Non Significance to reviewing 
agencies on October 19, 2021 with a 14 day comment period ending on November 2, 
2021. 
 

2. The Notice of Intent to Adopt an Ordinance Amendment was sent to the Dept. of 
Commerce asking for expedited Review on October 19, 2021. 
 

3. On November 16, 2021, the Dept. of Commerce granted the Expedited Review 
request. 
 

4. The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Prosser Record Bulletin on November 
17, 2021 and was put on the County’s website on November 4, 2021.  

 
APPLICABLE STANDARDS/ORDINANCES 
 
1.  Zoning Code:   Benton County Code, Title 11, Zoning. 
 
AGENCY COMMENTS 
 
1.  Washington State Department of Natural Resources. See letter dated October 29, 2021, 

submitted as part of the SEPA review process. 
 
2. Benton PUD. See email dated October 28 ,2021. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Benton County Planning Staff will assist the Planning Commission with the determination of 
findings of fact for File OA 2021-004. 
 
The Benton County Planning Division recommends that the Planning Commission forward a 
recommendation of approval to the Benton County Board of Commissioners for application 
OA 2021-004 with the following suggested findings of fact and motion. 
 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 299 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

10 

SUGGESTED FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. Benton County is proposing a text amendment to the County Zoning Regulations, 

Ordinance 611, 617, 634, and 636 with a focus on the following: 
 

a. Chapter 11.15 Rural Lands Twenty Acre District (RL-20), amending BCC 
11.15.060(i) and (k) to remove wind turbine farm and solar power generator 
facility, major requirements; 

 
b. Chapter 11.17 Growth Management Act Agricultural Zoning District (GMAAD), 

amending BCC 11.17.070(j)(q) and (z) facilities for power generation other than 
nuclear fueled, wind turbine farms, and solar power generator facility, major uses 
from requiring a conditional use permit; 

 
c. Chapter 11.33 Light Industrial District (LI), amending BCC 11.33.030(q) to add a 

single wind turbine less than 60’ and related support structures to allowable use 
requirements; 

 
d. Chapter 11.33 Light Industrial District (LI), amending BCC 11.33.060(l) to add a 

single wind turbine exceeding 60’ or a wind turbine farm as uses requiring a 
conditional use permit; 

 
e. Chapter 11.35 Heavy Industrial District (HI), amending BCC 11.35.030(r) to add 

a single wind turbine less than 60’ and related support structures to allowable 
use requirements; and 

 
f. Chapter 11.35 Heavy Industrial District (HI), amending BCC 11.35.060(j) to add 

a single wind turbine exceeding 60’ or a wind turbine farm as uses requiring a 
conditional use permit. 

 
2. Planning Case File Application OA 2021-004 is found to be in conformance with the intent 

of Ordinance 611, 617, 634, and 636 for zoning text amendments.  
 
3. Planning Case File Application OA 2021-004 is found to be in conformance with the intent 

of the Benton County Comprehensive Plan.  
 
4. Planning Case File Application OA 2021-004 is found to be in conformance with the intent 

and goals of the R.C.W. 36.70A, the Growth Management Act. 
 
5. Removal of solar power generator facility, major and wind farms as a conditional use 

option in the RL-20 Zoning District assists with the enhancement and preservation of the 
County’s rural character and open space while further protecting the County’s ridges, 
slopes, bluffs, and wildlife habitat. 

 
6. Removal of solar power generator facility, major and wind farms as a conditional use 

option in the GMA AG Zoning District assists the County with protecting long term 
commercially significant agricultural lands, the conservation of critical areas and habitat, 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 300 of 411



OA 2021-004   
PC Staff Report 
 

 

 

11 

visual resources, and the County rural character while limiting incompatible and non-
agricultural uses in the agricultural zoning district. 

 
7. Adding a single wind turbine less than 60’ and related support structures to the allowable 

use requirements and solar power generator facility, major and wind farms as a 
conditional use option in both the Light and Heavy Industrial Zoning Districts, allows these 
facilities to be located in areas with similar industrial uses, whether it is an electrical 
substation, transportation facility, or processing/manufacturing facility.  

 
8. A Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued for this application (OA 2021-004 

and EA 2021-026) on October 18, 2021, 2021 with a 14 day comment period ending on 
November 2, 2021. 

 
9. Planning Case File Application OA 2021-004 was submitted by email to the State of 

Washington’s Department of Commerce on October 19, 2021 for review in compliance 
with WAC 365-196-630 (6).  

 
10. The legal notification for Planning Casefile Application OA 2021-004 was given on 

November 17, 2021, pursuant to RCW 36.70.590. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION- 
I move that the Chairman, in conjunction with the Secretary of the Planning Commission, prepare 
and adopt written findings and conclusions reflecting the Commission’s recommendation for 
approval of the proposed zoning amendment, amending Ordinance 611, 617, 634, and 636, 
Chapter 11.15.060, 11.17.070, 11.33.030, 11.33.060, 11.35.030, and 11.35.060 as noted in 
Casefile OA 2021-004, that articulate and are consistent with the findings, conclusions and 
recommendations made by the Planning Commission tonight.  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 301 of 411



ORDINANCE NO.______ 

AN ORDINANCE relating to zoning, amending the sections relating to 

uses requiring a conditional use permit; amending the sections 

relating to allowable uses; amending Ordinance 611, Section 53, 

Ordinance 617, Section 5, Ordinance 634, Section 1 and BCC 

11.15.060; amending Ordinance 611, Section 63, Ordinance 617, 

Section 7, Ordinance 634, Section 3, Ordinance 636, Section 2  and 

BCC 11.17.070; amending Ordinance 611, Section 126 and BCC 

11.33.030; amending Ordinance 611, Section 129 and BCC 11.33.060; 

amending Ordinance 611, Section 134 and BCC 11.35.030 and amending 

Ordinance 611, Section 137 and BCC 11.35.060. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

SECTION 1. Ordinance 611, Section 53, Ordinance 617, Section 

5, Ordinance 634, Section 1 and BCC 11.15.060 are hereby amended 

to read as follows: 

USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The following uses 

may be permitted on a single parcel of record within the Rural 

Lands Twenty Acre District (RL-20) if a conditional use permit is 

issued by the Hearings Examiner after notice and public hearing as 

provided by BCC 11.50.040. 

(a) A sand or gravel pit, stone quarry and similar use for the

development of natural resources extracted on-site.

(b) Kennel, commercial.

(c) Child Day Care Facility, Type B, subject to the provisions of

BCC 11.42.060. 

(d) A Park.

(e) Bed and Breakfast Facility, subject to the provisions in BCC

11.42.030.

(f) Agricultural Market.

(g) Business activities, other than those set forth above, that

are compatible with the principal uses and purpose of the

underlying zone and the surrounding land uses may be conducted

from within an approved accessory building detached from all

dwelling units if the following criteria as well as any other

conditions required by the Hearings Examiner are satisfied:

(1) The business activity must take place on a parcel of

land that is 2.0 acres or greater in size.

(2) There must be a residence on site, and at least one (1)

of the proprietors of the business must be the owner or lessee

of the property where the business and the residence are

located and must reside in said residence.

(3) No more than four (4) non-resident persons, whether they

work on site or not, may be employed by or be partners in the

business.

(4) The business activity, including all storage space,

shall not occupy more than two thousand (2,000) square feet

of total floor area within the detached accessory building.

PCM 1.2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 302 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 2 

 
 (5) Only one (1) approved detached accessory building on a 

parcel may be used for business activities.  If more than one 

(1) business will be conducted within an approved detached 

accessory building, then a separate application must be 

submitted for each business activity, provided that the total 

area used by all business activities shall not exceed that 

permitted by BCC 11.15.060(g)(4). 

 

 (6) No more than two (2) non-illuminating signs, with a 

maximum area of four (4) square feet each, shall be permitted 

in connection with the business activity.  The posting of 

such signs is limited to the parcel on which the approved 

detached accessory building is located.  On-street (inside  

the road right-of-way) sign posting and sign posting which 

interferes with the line-of-site for road intersections are 

prohibited. 

 

 (7) Not more than three (3) vehicles marked to identify the 

business may be on the parcel at any one time.  No other on-

site outside storage of vehicles, equipment and/or supplies 

is allowed in connection with the business activity.  This 

prohibition applies to, but is not limited to:  lumber, 

plasterboard, pipe, paint, inoperable vehicles, and heavy 

equipment that are related to the business. 

 

 (8) The property owner and the proprietor(s) of the business 

shall comply with all requirements of the Benton County 

Building Department, the Benton County Fire Marshal, the 

Benton-Franklin Health District, and all other local, state 

and federal regulations pertinent to the business activity 

pursued.  The requirements of or permission granted by the 

Hearings Examiner shall not be construed as an exemption from 

such regulations. 

 

 (9) Adequate off-street parking, as determined by the 

Hearings Examiner, must be provided. 

 

 (10) Any waste created as a result of the business activity 

must be disposed of off-site in compliance with all local, 

state and/or federal regulations. 

 

 (11) The presence of customers/clients and non-resident 

employees at the location of the business activity shall be 

limited to the days and hours of operation as determined by 

the Hearings Examiner. 

 

 (12) The business activity does not require a marijuana 

retail outlet license from the Washington State Liquor and 

Cannabis Board. 

 

(h) Shooting range facility.  

 

(((i) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty 

(60) feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support 

structures and other improvements under the following conditions: 

 

 (1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least 

thirty (30) feet above ground level; 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand 

six hundred and forty (1,640) feet;

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 303 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 3 

 
 (3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for 

development of a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the 

property lines common with such leased properties may be 

eliminated so long as no part of any wind turbine extends 

past any such interior property lines and the above required 

setbacks are maintained from the property lines comprising 

the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

 

 (4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the 

closest edge of a state, county, or city road right of way 

distance equal to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that 

height; 

 

 (5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance 

equal to the wind turbine height from all borders of the GMA 

Agricultural District, except for GMA Agricultural District 

borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation owned by the 

Department of Energy or adjacent to another zoning district 

adopted by another county that contains a general minimum 

parcel size of at least twenty (20) acres per parcel;  

 

  (6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four 

(4) miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the 

nearest airport available for public use, the applicant for 

a building permit must comply with all the requirements 

imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

provide a written statement from the FAA that sets forth the 

FAA's comments and requirements, if any, for the proposal; 

 

 (7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal 

Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable 

Airspace, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended, 

including but not limited to, providing such notices to the  

FAA as required thereunder and compliance with all 

requirements or prohibitions imposed by the FAA on the 

applicant's proposal; 

 

 (8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement 

and operation of wind turbines under this section shall be 

made available for review by the United States Department of 

Defense (USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect 

now or hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind 

turbine permit applications will be in accordance with Benton 

County Code chapter 17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the 

applicant is required to provide sufficient evidence to 

persuade the Hearings Examiner that the proposed wind turbine 

is compatible with other uses in the surrounding area, 

including any military training activities, or is no more 

incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses in 

the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040; 

 

 (9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least 

forty (40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one 

mile, whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least 

five thousand (5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which 

are available solely for private use and identified on the 

most current edition of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts 

produced by the National Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO);  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 304 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 4 

 
 (10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is 

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner 

of such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) 

days of written notification by the Planning Department.  If 

such facility is not removed within said ninety (90) days, 

the County may refer the issue to the code enforcement officer 

for appropriate action pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

 

 (11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may 

not displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that 

parcel(s) on which they are located.)) 

 

(((j))) (i) Agri-tourism accommodations. 

 

(((k) Solar Power Generator Facility, Major.)) 

 

 SECTION 2.   Ordinance 611, Section 63, Ordinance 617, Section 

7, Ordinance 634, Section 3, Ordinance 636, Section 2  and BCC 

11.17.070 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT. The following uses 

may be permitted within the GMA Agricultural District if a 

conditional use permit is issued by the Hearings Examiner after 

notice and public hearing as provided by BCC 11.50.040:  

 

(a) Slaughterhouses, commercial meat-packing plants, animal 

feedlots; provided, that they are not located in the floodway and 

floodplain as shown on the FEMA maps, or within two hundred (200) 

feet of a naturally occurring body of water, or a well-used for 

domestic or municipal purposes and shall be designed to prevent 

infiltration or other movement of livestock wastes into the 

aquifer, or directly into surface waters. 

 

(b) Commercial dairy, hog, poultry, and rabbit operations, 

propagation of fur bearing species for commercial purposes, or 

livestock auction yard; provided, that at least the following 

setbacks are met as well as all other conditions imposed in 

connection with the issuance of the conditional use permit: one 

hundred (100) foot setbacks from any lot line to any animal 

enclosure, except for fenced pasture; and a five hundred (500) 

foot setback from any existing residential structure on adjacent 

property not under applicant's ownership. 

 

(c) Commercial establishments for the transportation of 

agricultural products other than those produced on the premises, 

or agricultural supplies or equipment, together with the 

maintenance, storage, repair and servicing of the necessary trucks 

and equipment. 

 

(d) The following agriculturally based recreational and sales 

facilities:  covered arenas, rodeo events, livestock sales rings, 

and working animal events.  The following accessory uses may be 

permitted during one or more of the above events:  veterinary 

service, food concessions, RV parking area, and event related 

novelty/accessory sales. 

 

(e) Airstrips (commercial crop dusting). 

 

(f) Facilities for treatment of industrial solid wastes with 

associated spray fields related to the on-site processing of 

agricultural products. 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 305 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 5 

 
(g) Solid waste disposal site; except on lands designated as 

having less than 160 acre minimum parcel size. 

 

(h) Off-site hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities may 

be allowed by conditional use permit issued by the Benton County 

Hearings Examiner after notice and public hearing as provided in 

BCC 11.50.040 provided, that such facilities must comply with the 

state siting criteria adopted in accordance with RCW 70.105.210, 

as currently in effect or as hereafter amended. 

 

(i) Asphalt manufacture in conjunction with rock, sand and gravel 

mining. 

 

(((j) Facilities for power generation, other than nuclear 

fueled, wind fueled or solar fueled.)) 

 

(((k))) (j)  Child Day Care Facility, Type B, subject to the 

provisions of BCC 11.42.060. 

  

(((l))) (k)  Off-premise directional signs. 

 

(((m))) (l)  The production of bio-diesel and alcohol fuels from 

agricultural products. 

 

(((n))) (m)  The commercial maintenance, repair, servicing, and 

storage of agricultural machinery, implements, and equipment for 

use off the premises.  

 

(((o))) (n)  Commercial establishments for the storage, sale and 

off-site application of agricultural chemicals, including but not 

limited to herbicides, fertilizers, insecticides, and pesticides. 

 

(((p))) (o)  Underground natural gas storage facilities. 

 

(((q) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty 

(60) feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support 

structures and other improvements under the following conditions: 

 

 (1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least 

thirty (30) feet above ground level; 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand 

six hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

 

 (3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for 

development of a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the 

property lines common with such leased properties may be 

eliminated so long as no part of any wind turbine extends 

past any such interior property lines and the above required 

setbacks are maintained from the property lines comprising 

the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

 

 (4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the 

closest edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way 

distance equal to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that 

height; 

 

 (5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance 

equal to the wind turbine height from all borders of the GMA 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 306 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 6 

 
 Agricultural District, except for GMA Agricultural District 

borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation owned by the 

Department of Energy or adjacent to another zoning district 

adopted by another county that contains a general minimum 

parcel size of at least twenty (20) acres per parcel; 

 

  (6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four 

(4) miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the 

nearest airport available for public use, the applicant for 

a building permit must comply with all the requirements 

imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

provide a written statement from the FAA that sets forth the 

FAA's comments and requirements, if any, for the proposal; 

 

 (7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal 

Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable 

Airspace, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended, 

including but not limited to, providing such notices to the 

FAA as required thereunder and compliance with all 

requirements or prohibitions imposed by the FAA on the 

applicant's proposal; 

  

 (8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement 

and operation of wind turbines under this section shall be 

made available for review by the United States Department of 

Defense (USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect 

now or hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind 

turbine permit applications will be in accordance with Benton 

County Code chapter 17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the 

applicant is required to provide sufficient evidence to 

persuade the Hearings Examiner that the proposed wind turbine 

is compatible with other uses in the surrounding area, 

including any military training activities, or is no more 

incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses in 

the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040;  

 

 (9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least 

forty (40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one 

mile, whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least 

five thousand (5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which 

are available solely for private use and identified on the 

most current edition of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts 

produced by the National Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

 

 (10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is 

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner 

of such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) 

days of written notification by the Planning Department.  If 

such facility is not removed within said ninety (90) days, 

the County may refer the issue to the code enforcement officer 

for appropriate action pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

 

 (11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may 

not displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that 

parcel(s) on which they are located.)) 

 

(((r))) (p) Non-agricultural accessory uses that promote or 

sustain the continuation of the agricultural uses of a parcel if 

the accessory uses meet the following criteria as well as any other 

conditions required by the Hearings Examiner:

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 307 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 7 

 
 (1) The non-agricultural accessory use shall be located, 

designed, and operated so as to not interfere with, and to 

support the continuation of, the overall agricultural use of 

the parcel; 

 

 (2) The non-agricultural accessory use must be consistent 

with the size, scale, and intensity of the existing 

agricultural use of the parcel and the existing buildings 

thereon; 

 

 (3) The parcel on which the non-agricultural accessory use 

is located meets one of the following:  

   

(i) the parcel is no less than twenty (20) acres in size 

with eighty (80) percent of the acreage primarily 

committed to agricultural use and has produced gross 

income equivalent to two hundred (200) dollars or more 

per acre each year for three (3) of the five (5) calendar 

years preceding the date of application; 

 

(ii) the parcel is currently enrolled in the County's 

Agricultural Open Space program pursuant to Chapter 

84.34 RCW, as currently in effect or as hereafter 

amended; 

 

(iii) the parcel is not less than one hundred (100) 

contiguous acres that has been in agricultural use for 

three (3) of the last five (5) years.  

 

 (4) The non-agricultural accessory use, including any new 

buildings, parking or supportive uses associated therewith, 

shall be located within one thousand (1000) feet of the 

nearest existing buildings or residential structures and 

shall not otherwise convert more than one (1) acre of 

agricultural land to non-agricultural uses; 

 

 (5) The non-agricultural accessory uses, including any 

storage space associated therewith, shall not collectively 

occupy more than fifteen thousand (15,000) square feet of 

building space; 

 

 (6) No more than three (3) vehicles marked to identify the 

non-agricultural accessory use(s) may be on the parcel at any 

time.  No other on-site outside storage of vehicles, equipment 

and/or supplies is allowed in connection with the non-

agricultural accessory use; 

 

 (7) No person may possess more than one valid permit at a 

time under this section and all non-agricultural accessory 

use permits issued under this section for any given parcel 

must be authorized in one permit;  

 

 (8) No more than two (2) signs of a size determined by the 

Hearings Examiner shall be permitted in connection with the 

non-agricultural accessory use. Illumination of a sign shall 

be only by hooded directional lighting so that only the sign 

surface is illuminated.  The posting of such sign is limited 

to the parcel on which the non-agricultural accessory use is 

located.  On-street (inside the road right-of-way) sign 

posting is prohibited, and no sign outside of a road right-

of-way may interfere with the line of sight for road 

intersection; 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 308 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 8 

 
 (9) The parcel and non-agricultural accessory use owner 

shall comply with all requirements of the Benton County 

Building Department, the Benton County Fire Marshal, the 

Benton-Franklin Health District, and all other local, state, 

and federal regulations pertinent to the non-agricultural 

accessory use being pursued.  The requirements of or the 

permission granted by the Hearings Examiner shall not be 

construed as an exemption from such regulations; 

 

 (10) Adequate off road parking, as determined by the Hearings 

Examiner, must be provided; 

 

 (11) Any waste created as a result of the non-agricultural 

accessory use must be disposed of off-site in compliance with 

all local, state, and/or federal regulations;  

 

 (12) The days and hours of operation shall be determined by 

the Hearings Examiner with the granting of a Conditional Use 

Permit; and 

 

 (13) The non-agricultural accessory use shall not require a 

marijuana retail outlet license from the Washington State 

Liquor and Cannabis Board. 

 

(((s))) (q)  Overnight lodging within a structure primarily used 

for processing of beer, wine, or spirits that meets the following 

criteria:  

 

 (1) The number of guest rooms may not exceed two (2); and, 

 

 (2) The area used for the guest rooms and associated with 

overnight lodging shall not exceed eight hundred square feet 

(800); and, 

 

 (3) The overnight lodging guest rooms shall meet Benton-

Franklin Health District requirements for septic systems and 

domestic water usage shall be demonstrated; and, 

 

 (4) The overnight lodging guest rooms shall comply with all 

the applicable building code requirements. 

 

(((t))) (r)  Events Facility on the same or adjoining parcel as a 

Winery/Brewery/Distillery, but not related to the operational and 

marketing of the business, such as weddings, receptions, and 

meetings/retreats shall be limited to not more than two hundred 

(200) guest or less, meet the following criteria as well as any 

other conditions required by the Hearings Examiner: 

 

 (1) The events facility shall be located, designed, and 

operated so as to not interfere with, and to support the 

continuation of, the overall agricultural use of the parcel; 

 

 (2) The events facility must be consistent with the size, 

scale, and intensity of the existing agricultural use of the 

parcel and the existing buildings thereon; 

 

(3)  The events facility, including any new buildings, parking 

or supportive uses associated therewith, shall be located 

within one thousand (1000) feet of the existing 

Winery/Brewery/Distillery structures and shall not otherwise 

convert more than one (1) acre of agricultural land to the 

use; 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 309 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 9 

 
4)  The parcel and events facility shall comply with all 

requirements of the Benton County Building Department, the 

Benton County Fire Marshal, the Benton-Franklin Health 

District, and all other local, state, and federal regulations 

pertinent to the events facility being pursued. The 

requirements of or the permission granted by the Hearings 

Examiner shall not be construed as an exemption from such 

regulations; 

 

 (5) Adequate off-road parking, as determined by the Hearings 

Examiner, must be provided; and 

 

 (6) Any waste created as a result of the event facility must 

be disposed of off-site in compliance with all local, state, 

and/or federal regulations. 

 

(((u))) (s)  Bed and Breakfast Facility, subject to the provisions 

in BCC 11.42.030. 

 

(((v))) (t)  Recreation and entertainment activities centered on 

an agricultural theme. This may include activities such as field 

mazes, hayrides, sleigh rides, animal rides, petting zoos and other 

similar uses. 

 

(((w))) (u)  Commercial sand and gravel pits, stone quarries, other 

mineral extraction, asphalt and/or concrete batching plants.  

 

(((x))) (v)  Veterinarian Clinics. 

 

(((y))) (w)  Shooting Range Facility. 

 

(((z) Solar power generator facility, major.)) 

 

(((aa))) (x)  Agri-tourism accommodations. 

 

(((bb))) (y)  Agricultural research facility which conducts basic, 

applied, and/or developmental research of regional, national, or 

international concerns in the field of agriculture. 

  

(((cc))) (z)  Commercial agricultural establishments that 

primarily provide  

storage, repair, or sale of irrigation, mechanical, and excavation  

service activities for use off premise. 

 

(((dd))) (aa) Winery/Brewery/Distillery facility, including 

sampling, tasting, and sales of the product, may occur on an 

adjacent parcel from the site where the fruit or other products 

are processed, if both parcels are under the same ownership. 

 

 SECTION 3. Ordinance 611, Section 126 and BCC 11.33.030 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 ALLOWABLE USES.  The following uses are allowed within the 

Light Industrial District (LI) on a single parcel of record: 

 

(a) Fire department facility, law enforcement facility, and/or 

medical facility. 

 

(b) Research and development facility, computer component 

manufacturing, laboratory, and/or electronic data processing 

facility. 

 

(c) Agricultural uses.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 310 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 10 

 
(d) Lumber yard and/or custom milling of logs into dimensional 

lumber. 

 

(e) Nursery and/or landscaping business. 

 

(f) Warehouse. 

 

(g) Utility substation facility. 

 

(h) Rental storage facility. 

 

(i) Food processing and/or cannery. 

 

(j) Metal fabrication and/or welding. 

 

(k) Sales of on-site manufactured goods. 

 

(l) Sales, service and repair of machinery equipment, 

automobiles, and/or trucks. 

 

(m) Wineries/Breweries/Distilleries. 

 

(n) Hiking and non-motorized biking trails. 

 

(o) Hazardous waste treatment and/or hazardous waste storage 

facilities as an accessory use to an allowed or conditionally 

permitted use; provided, that such facilities must comply with the  

state siting criteria adopted in RCW 70.105.210, as it now exists 

or is hereafter amended, and only treat waste generated on the 

same parcel or a contiguous parcel. 

 

(p) Rapid Charging Station. 

 

(q) No more than one (1) wind turbine and related support 

structures and other improvements per parcel for private use; 

provided, the wind turbine height must be less than sixty (60) 

feet and the wind turbine must be set back from all property lines 

a distance equal to one (1) foot for every foot in height of the 

wind turbine. 

 

 SECTION 4. Ordinance 611, Section 129 and BCC 11.33.060 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The following uses 

may be permitted on a single parcel of record within the Light 

Industrial District (LI) if a conditional use permit is issued by 

the Hearings Examiner after notice and public hearing as provided 

by BCC 11.50.040. 

 

(a) Racetrack facility for automotive, motocross, or horse 

racing. 

 

(b) Agricultural recreational facility.  

 

(c) Sand and/or gravel pit, stone quarry, mining, crushing, 

stockpiling of mineral resources and similar uses for the 

development of natural resources extracted on-site. 

 

(d) Solid waste transfer station. 

 

(e) Airport/Heliport. 

 

(f) Asphalt plant.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 311 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 11 

 
(g) Concrete plant. 

 

(h) Sewage treatment plant for industrial and/or domestic waste. 

 

(i) Wrecking yard. 

 

(j) Indoor shooting range. 

 

(k) Solar Power Generator Facility, Major. 

 

(l) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty (60) 

feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support structures 

and other improvements under the following conditions: 

 

 (1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least 

thirty (30) feet above ground level; 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand 

six hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

 

 (3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 
property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 
height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 
properties are leased for an identical duration for 
development of a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the 
property lines common with such leased properties may be 
eliminated so long as no part of any wind turbine extends 
past any such interior property lines and the above-required 
setbacks are maintained from the property lines comprising 
the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

 (4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the 

closest edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way 

distance equal to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that 

height; 

 

 (5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance 

equal to the wind turbine height from all borders of the Light 

Industrial Zoning District, except for Light Industrial 

Zoning District borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation 

owned by the Department of Energy or adjacent to another 

zoning district adopted by another county that contains a 

general minimum parcel size of at least twenty (20) acres per 

parcel; 

 

  (6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four 

(4) miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the 

nearest airport available for public use, the applicant for 

a building permit must comply with all the requirements 

imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

provide a written statement from the FAA that sets forth the 

FAA's comments and requirements, if any, for the proposal; 

 

 (7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal 

Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable 

Airspace, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended, 

including but not limited to, providing such notices to the 

FAA as required thereunder and compliance with all 

requirements or prohibitions imposed by the FAA on the 

applicant's proposal; 

 

 (8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement 

and operation of wind turbines under this section shall be 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 312 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 12 

 
 made available for review by the United States Department of 

Defense (USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect 

now or hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind 

turbine permit applications will be in accordance with Benton 

County Code chapter 17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the 

applicant is required to provide sufficient evidence to 

persuade the Hearings Examiner that the proposed wind turbine 

is compatible with other uses in the surrounding area, 

including any military training activities, or is no more 

incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses in 

the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040;  

 

 (9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least 

forty (40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one 

mile, whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least 

five thousand (5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which 

are available solely for private use and identified on the 

most current edition of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts 

produced by the National Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

 

 (10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is 

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner 

of such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) 

days of written notification by the Planning Department.  If 

such facility is not removed within said ninety (90) days, 

the County may refer the issue to the code enforcement officer 

for appropriate action pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

 

 (11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may 

not displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that 

parcel(s) on which they are located. 

 

 SECTION 5. Ordinance 611, Section 134 and BCC 11.35.030 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 ALLOWABLE USES.  The following uses are allowed within the 

Heavy Industrial District (HI) on a single parcel of record:  

 

(a) The processing, assembly and/or manufacturing of raw 

materials, semi-finished materials, and/or finished materials, 

except for the manufacturing reprocessing and/or storage of 

radioactive waste. 

 

(b) Ironwork, drop forge industry, and/or metal fabrication. 

 

(c) Repair of machinery equipment, automobiles and/or trucks. 

 

(d) Food processing facility, cannery and/or cold storage 

facility. 

 

(e) Agricultural uses. 

 

(f) Retail sales of goods manufactured on the premises; provided, 

that the floor space devoted to such use does not exceed ten (10) 

percent of the gross floor area of all buildings on the parcel. 

 

(g) Wholesale sales of products. 

 

(h) Transportation facilities for handling cargo and/or 

passengers, including mooring facilities, grain elevator, or barge 

terminal.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 313 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 13 

 
(i) Warehouse. 

 

(j) Utility substation facility. 

 

(k) Production of alcohol fuels, biodiesel, or ethanol. 

 

(l) Hiking and non-motorized biking trails. 

 

(m) Sewage treatment plant for industrial and/or domestic waste. 

 

(n) Solid waste transfer station and/or recycling center. 

 

(o) Wrecking yard. 

 

(p) Hazardous waste treatment and/or hazardous waste storage 

facilities as an accessory use to an allowed or conditionally 

permitted use; provided, that such facilities must comply with the 

state siting criteria adopted in RCW 70.105.210, as currently in 

effect or as hereafter amended, and only treat waste generated on 

the same parcel or a contiguous parcel.  

 

(q) Rapid Charging Station. 

 

(r) No more than one (1) wind turbine and related support 

structures and other improvements per parcel for private use; 

provided, the wind turbine height must be less than sixty (60) 

feet and the wind turbine must be set back from all property lines 

a distance equal to one (1) foot for every foot in height of the 

wind turbine. 

 

 SECTION 6. Ordinance 611, Section 137 and BCC 11.35.060 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

 USES REQUIRING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The following uses 

may be permitted on a single parcel of record within the Heavy 

Industrial District (HI) if a conditional use permit is issued by 

the Hearings Examiner after notice and public hearing as provided 

by BCC 11.50.040. 

 

(a) Facilities for generating power for sale to the public, 

including solar power generators; provided, that such power cannot 

be nuclear fueled. 

 

(b) Hazardous waste treatment and/or hazardous waste storage 

facility treating waste not generated on the same or a contiguous 

parcel; provided, that such facility must comply with Washington 

State siting criteria set forth in RCW 70.105.210, as currently in 

effect or as hereafter amended. 

 

(c) Sand and/or gravel pit, stone quarry, mining, crushing, 

stockpiling of mineral resources and similar uses for the 

development of natural resources extracted on-site. 

 

(d) Asphalt plant. 

 

(e) Concrete plant. 

 

(f) Airport/Heliport. 

 

(g) Railroad switch yards, maintenance and/or repair facilities. 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 314 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 14 

 
(h) State and/or local correctional facility, and/or Secure 

Community Transition Facility as described by RCW 36.70A.200, as 

currently in effect or as hereafter amended. 

 

(i) Solar Power Generator Facility, Major. 

 

(j) One (1) wind turbine with a wind turbine height of sixty (60) 

feet or more or a wind turbine farm and related support structures 

and other improvements under the following conditions: 

 

 (1) The lowest point on all rotor blades must be at least 

thirty (30) feet above ground level; 

 

 (2) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

dwellings not located on the same parcel at least one thousand 

six hundred and forty (1,640) feet; 

 

 (3) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from all 

property lines a distance equal to the associated wind turbine 

height plus 50% of that height, except that, where contiguous 

properties are leased for an identical duration for 

development of a wind farm, the tower bases set back from the 

property lines common with such leased properties may be 

eliminated so long as no part of any wind turbine extends 

past any such interior property lines and the above-required 

setbacks are maintained from the property lines comprising 

the exterior boundaries of the wind farm; 

 

 (4) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back from the 

closest edge of a state, county, or city road right-of-way 

distance equal to the wind turbine height plus 50% of that 

height; 

 

 (5) All wind turbine tower bases must be set back a distance 

equal to the wind turbine height from all borders of the Heavy 

Industrial Zoning District, except for Heavy Industrial 

Zoning District borders adjacent to the Hanford Reservation 

owned by the Department of Energy or adjacent to another 

zoning district adopted by another county that contains a 

general minimum parcel size of at least twenty (20) acres per 

parcel; 

 

  (6) For wind turbine(s) proposed to be located within four 

(4) miles of the nearest point of the nearest runway of the 

nearest airport available for public use, the applicant for 

a building permit must comply with all the requirements 

imposed by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and 

provide a written statement from the FAA that sets forth the 

FAA's comments and requirements, if any, for the proposal; 

 

 (7) All wind turbine(s) must comply with the Federal 

Aviation Regulations Part 77, Objects Affecting Navigable 

Airspace, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended, 

including but not limited to, providing such notices to the 

FAA as required thereunder and compliance with all 

requirements or prohibitions imposed by the FAA on the 

applicant's proposal; 

 

 (8) Conditional use permit applications for the placement 

and operation of wind turbines under this section shall be 

made available for review by the United States Department of 

Defense (USDOD) in accordance with RCW 36.01.320, as in effect 

now or hereafter amended. The notice and processing of wind 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 315 of 411



Ordinance No.______ 

Continued 

Page 15 

 
 turbine permit applications will be in accordance with Benton 

County Code chapter 17.10. Pursuant to BCC 11.50.040 (d), the 

applicant is required to provide sufficient evidence to 

persuade the Hearings Examiner that the proposed wind turbine 

is compatible with other uses in the surrounding area, 

including any military training activities, or is no more 

incompatible than are any other outright permitted uses in 

the applicable zoning district, as well as provide all other 

evidence required by BCC 11.50.040;  

 

 (9) All wind turbine tower bases shall be located at least 

forty (40) feet for every one (1) foot of tower height or one 

mile, whichever is greater, from the ends of and at least 

five thousand (5,000) feet from the sides of all runways which 

are available solely for private use and identified on the 

most current edition of the Sectional Aeronautical Charts 

produced by the National Aeronautical Charting Office (NACO); 

 

 (10) If the use of any wind turbine or wind turbine farm is 

discontinued for a period of one (1) year or more, the owner 

of such facility shall remove the facility within ninety (90) 

days of written notification by the Planning Department.  If 

such facility is not removed within said ninety (90) days, 

the County may refer the issue to the code enforcement officer 

for appropriate action pursuant to Chapter 11.43 BCC; and 

 

 (11) The wind turbine(s) and all associated service roads may 

not displace more than five (5) percent of the area of that 

parcel(s) on which they are located. 

 

SECTION 7.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance 

is declared unconstitutional, or the applicability thereof to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, the constitutionality of 

the remainder of the Ordinance and the applicability thereof to 

other persons and circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

SECTION 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect 

and be in full force upon its passage and adoption. 

 

ADOPTED AND PASSED this _____ day of _____________________.  

 

 

 

  

Chairman of the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 Chairman Pro-Tem. 

 

 

 

 

Member. 

 

Approved as to Form: Constituting the Board of 

County Commissioners of 

Benton County, Washington 

 

   Attest: 

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney                Clerk of the Board 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 316 of 411



ZONING FOR WIND 
AND SOLAR IN 
BENTON COUNTY
DEFINITIONS-ALLOWED USES-ACCESSORY USES-& 
CONDITIONAL USES

PCM 1.4

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 317 of 411



DEFINITIONS

• "Wind Turbine" means a machine with turbine apparatus (rotor blades, nacelle and tower) capable of
producing electricity by converting the kinetic energy of wind into rotational, mechanical and electrical energy;
provided, the term does not include electrical distribution or transmission lines, or electrical substations.

• "Wind Turbine Farms" means two or more wind turbines on one parcel.

• "Solar Power Generator Facility, Minor" means the use of solar panels to convert sunlight directly or
indirectly into electricity. Solar power generators consist of solar panels, charge controllers, inverters, working
fluid system, and storage batteries. Minor facilities are sited on the power beneficiary premises, are intended
primarily to offset part or all of the beneficiary’s requirements for electricity/gas, and are secondary or
accessory to the beneficiary’s use of the premises.

• "Solar Power Generator Facility, Major" means the use of solar panels to convert sunlight directly or
indirectly into electricity. Solar power generators consist of solar panels, charge controllers, inverters, working
fluid system, and storage batteries. Major facilities are developed as the primary land use for a parcel on which
it is located and does not meet the siting criteria for a minor facility in BCC 11.03.010(168).

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 318 of 411



ALLOWED USES

Wind Turbine:

No more than one (1) wind turbine and related
support structures and other improvements per
parcel for private use; provided, the wind turbine
height must be less than sixty (60) feet and the wind
turbine must be set back from all property lines a
distance equal to one (1) foot for every foot in height
of the wind turbine.

Zoning District:

Currently allowed in the RL-5, RL-20, GMA AG, Red 
Mountain AG Zones.

Proposal is to add Wind Turbine to the Light 
Industrial and Heavy Industrial Zoning Districts.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 319 of 411



ACCESSORY USES

Solar Power Generator Facility, Minor

Solar Power Generator Facility, Minor" means the use
of solar panels to convert sunlight directly or
indirectly into electricity. Solar power generators
consist of solar panels, charge controllers, inverters,
working fluid system, and storage batteries. Minor
facilities are sited on the power beneficiary premises,
are intended primarily to offset part or all of the
beneficiary’s requirements for electricity/gas, and are
secondary or accessory to the beneficiary’s use of the
premises.

Zoning District:

Currently allowed in all zoning districts that
allow a dwelling unit and the commercial and
industrial districts. No changes proposed.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 320 of 411



CONDITIONAL USES

Solar Power Generator Facility, Major

Solar Power Generator Facility, Major" means the
use of solar panels to convert sunlight directly or
indirectly into electricity. Solar power generators
consist of solar panels, charge controllers,
inverters, working fluid system, and storage
batteries. Major facilities are developed as the
primary land use for a parcel on which it is located
and does not meet the siting criteria for a minor
facility in BCC 11.03.010(168).

Zoning District: 

Currently allowed in the GMA AG, RL-20, Light 
Industrial and Heavy Industrial Districts.

Proposal is to remove Solar Power Generator Facility, 
Major from the GMA AG and RL 20 Zoning Districts.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 321 of 411



CONDITIONAL USES

Wind Turbine Farms

Wind Turbine Farms" means two or more wind 
turbines on one parcel.

Zoning District: 

Allowed in the GMA AG, and RL-20 Zoning 
Districts.

Proposal is to remove Wind Turbine Farms from 
the GMA AG and RL-20 Zoning Districts.

&

Add Wind Turbine Farms to the Light Industrial and 
Heavy Industrial Zoning Districts.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 322 of 411





PCM 1.6

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 324 of 411







Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 327 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 328 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 329 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 330 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 331 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 332 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 333 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 334 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 335 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 336 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 337 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 338 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 339 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 340 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 341 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 342 of 411



THANK YOU
We have received your amendment submission. Please allow 1-3 business days for review. Please keep the Submittal ID as your receipt and for any future 
questions.  We will also send an email receipt to all contacts listed in the submittal. 

Submittal ID: 2021-S-3296
Submittal Date Time: 10/19/2021

Submittal Information

Jurisdiction Benton County
Submittal Type Request for Expedited Review / Notice of Intent to Adopt 

Amendment
Amendment Type Development Regulation Amendment

Amendment Information

Brief Description
Proposed Ordinance amendment relating to zoning, amending the sections relating to uses requiring a conditional use permit; amending the sections relating 
to allowable uses for wind turbines, solar power generator facility; major, and facilities for power generation, other than nuclear fueled, wind or solar fueled.

o Yes, this is a part of the 8-year periodic update schedule, required under RCW 36.70A.130.

Anticipated/Proposed Date of Adoption 12/29/2021

Attachments

Attachment Type File Name Upload Date
Development Regulation Amendment - Draft Solar-Wind ORD BCC 11.15 BCC 11.17 BCC 11.33 BCC 11.35 10

-8-2021.pdf
10/19/2021 09:57 AM

Development Regulation Amendment - Draft EA 2021-026 Signed Checklist.pdf 10/19/2021 09:57 AM
Development Regulation Amendment - Draft EA 2021-026 Signed DNS.pdf 10/19/2021 09:57 AM

Contact Information

Prefix Mr.
First Name Greg
Last Name Wendt
Title Director

PCM 1.7

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 343 of 411



Work (509) 786-5612
Cell
Email greg.wendt@co.benton.wa.us

o Yes, I would like to be contacted for Technical Assistance.

Certification

n I certify that I am authorized to submit this Amendment for the Jurisdiction identified in this Submittal and all information provided is true and 
accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Full Name Donna Hutchinson
Email donna.hutchinson@co.benton.wa.us

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 344 of 411



11/16/2021

Mail To: greg.wendt@co.benton.wa.us
Subject: Benton County - Expedited Review Request Granted for Submittal ID: 2021-S-3296

Dear Mr. Wendt,

Your request for an Expedited Review has been granted for: Proposed Ordinance amendment 
relating to zoning, amending the sections relating to uses requiring a conditional use permit; 
amending the sections relating to allowable uses for wind turbines, solar power generator 
facility; major, and facilities for power generation, other than nuclear fueled, wind or solar 
fueled.

As of receipt of this email, you have met the Growth Management notice to state agency 
requirements in RCW36.70A.106 for this submittal. Please keep this email as confirmation.

If you have any questions, please contact William Simpson at (509) 280-3602 or by email at 
william.simpson@commerce.wa.gov.

Sincerely,

Review Team
Growth Management Services

~~~     ONLINE TRACKING SYSTEM AVAILABLE   ~~~~

Log into our new PlanView system at https://secureaccess.wa.gov/com/planview where you can 
keep up with this submittal status, reprint communications and update your contact information.

Don't have a user account? Reply to this email to request one and attach a completed PlanView 
User Request Form.

Have questions about using PlanView? Use the PlanView User Manual for assistance at 
https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/washington-
department-of-commerce-growth-management-submitting-materials/.

PCM 1.8

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 345 of 411





2

Natural Resources <dnrmisepacenter@dnr.wa.gov>; Dept. of Natural Resources‐Shafer (ana.shafer@dnr.wa.gov) 
<ana.shafer@dnr.wa.gov>; Dept. of Transportation (scplanning@wsdot.wa.gov) <scplanning@wsdot.wa.gov>; Dept. of 
Transportation‐ Aviation Division (plattst@wsdot.wa.gov) <plattst@wsdot.wa.gov>; Dept. of Transportation‐ Paul G 
<Gonsetp@wsdot.wa.gov>; Dept. of Transportation‐Jacob Prilucik <PrilucJ@wsdot.wa.gov>; FAA ‐ Joseph Jackson 
<joseph.a.jackson@faa.gov>; Fire District #1‐Billie <billie@bentonone.org>; Fire District #1‐Staff 
<staff@bentonone.org>; Fire District #2 Ron Ducan <rduncan@bcfpd2.org>; Fire District #3 
(sjohnson@westbentonfirerescue.org) <sjohnson@westbentonfirerescue.org>; wwhealan@bcfd4.org; Fire District #4‐ 
Paul Carlyle <PCarlyle@bcfd4.org>; Fire District #5 <brian@newhouseassociates.com>; chiefwatt@bcfd6.com; 
Alison@futurewise.org; Futurewise <tim@futurewise.org>; Kennewick Irrig. Dist.‐Seth Defoe <sdefoe@kid.org>; 
Kennewick Irrigation District ‐ Ben Woodard <bwoodard@kid.org>; Kennewick Irrigation District‐Development 
(development@kid.org) <development@kid.org>; Kimberly Peacher‐US NAVY (kimberly.peacher@navy.mil) 
<kimberly.peacher@navy.mil>; Kiona Irrigation District <kiid@owt.com>; Patricia Iolavera‐US Navy 
<patricia.iolavera@navy.mil>; Port of Benton <budzeck@portofbenton.com>; Port of Kennewick 
<lpeterson@portofkennewick.org>; Cristina Woods <Cristina.Woods@co.benton.wa.us>; Roza Irrigation District 
(Shayman@roza.org) <Shayman@roza.org>; Tom Price‐Environmental Review Inc. (envreview@gmail.com) 
<envreview@gmail.com>; US Corps of Engineers <cenww‐re@usace.army.mil>; US Corps of Engineers‐David Moore 
<david.j.moore@usace.army.mil>; rodney.c.huffman@usace.army.mil; US Corps of Engineers‐Tim Erkel 
<tim.r.erkel@usace.army.mil>; WA Dept of Health ‐ Kelly Cooper ‐ WA Dept of Health ‐ Kelly Cooper 
(SEPA.reviewteam@doh.wa.gov) <SEPA.reviewteam@doh.wa.gov>; Yakama Indian Nation SEPA Review 
<enviroreview@yakama.com>; Jessica_Lally@Yakama.com; Yakima Indian Nation‐John Marvin 
<john_marvin@yakama.com>; Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation ‐ Ashley M. Morton 
<AshleyMorton@ctuir.org>; BPA <almarshall@bpa.gov>; Chad Brooks <brooksc@bentonpud.org>; Mike Irving 
<irvingm@bentonpud.org>; Shanna Everson <eversons@bentonpud.org>; Tina Glines <glinest@bentonpud.org>; Brad 
O'Brien <Brad.Obrien@co.benton.wa.us>; Clark Posey <Clark.Posey@co.benton.wa.us>; Jenelle Schadler 
<Jenelle.Schadler@co.benton.wa.us>; Michelle Johnson <Michelle.Johnson@co.benton.wa.us>; Rod Worthington 
<Rod.Worthington@co.benton.wa.us>; Troy Taylor <Troy.Taylor@co.benton.wa.us>; Bureau of Reclamation ‐ C. Garner 
(cgarner@usbr.gov) <cgarner@usbr.gov>; Bureau of Reclamation ‐ L Hendrix ‐ Bureau of Reclamation 
(lhendrix@usbr.gov) <lhendrix@usbr.gov>; Bureau of Reclamation ‐McKinley (cmckinley@usbr.gov) 
<cmckinley@usbr.gov>; Rigo Diosdado (diosdador@svid.org) <diosdador@svid.org>; Sunnyside Valley Irrigation Dist. ‐ 
Diane Weber <weberd@svid.org>; Sunnyside Valley Irrigation Dist. ‐ Ron Cowin <cowinr@svid.org> 
Subject: [E] EA 2021‐026 ‐ Ordinance Amendment 
 

The Benton County Planning Department has prepared the attached DNS for EA 2021-026 in 
accordance with the State Environmental Policy Act regulation. This DNS is being circulated for review
by all agencies with jurisdiction. We are circulating it for comments on the environmental impacts
of this action.  Additional background information may be found on the County’s Web
Site: https://tinyurl.com/SEPADET.  The Department of Ecology has created a public-facing SEPA 
Register, we will be linking our SEPA documents to that page. You can reach the register (filtered for
Benton County projects) here: Benton County SEPA Register.  
 
We appreciate your review of the proposal and return of comments no later than November 2, 2021. 
This proposal will not be acted upon before that time. 
 
 

Donna Hutchinson 
Office Assistant IV 
Community Development Dept. 
Planning Division 
PO Box 910 Prosser WA 99350 
(509) 786-5612 
 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 347 of 411





DEPARTMENT OF  
NATURAL RESOURCES 

PRODUCT SALES & LEASING DIVISION 
1111 WASHINGTON ST. SE 
OLYMPIA, WA 98504-7014 

360-902-1059
KARI.FAGERNESS@DNR.WA.GOV
WWW.DNR.WA.GOV

October 29, 2021 

Greg Wendt 
Community Development Department 
Benton County Planning Division 
P.O. Box 910 
Prosser, Washington 99301 

Sent Via e-mail to greg.wendt@co.benton.wa.us 
Sent Via e-mail to planning.department@co.benton.wa.us 

RE: SEPA Environmental Checklist and DNS File No. 2021-026 

Dear Mr. Wendt, 

The Department of Natural Resources (DNR) appreciates the opportunity to submit 
comments to Benton County on this proposed ordinance amendment modifying 
development regulations pertaining to wind turbines and solar power generation facilities in 
the RL-20 and GMA Agricultural District. DNR owns approximately 30,000 acres of 
agriculturally zoned lands within Benton County. This proposed ordinance amendment 
would prohibit DNR from seeking County approval on a specific subset of DNR’s 
agriculturally zoned land for clean energy projects. This proposal would limit DNR’s ability 
to generate significant revenue for its Common School Trust beneficiaries. In addition to 
the overarching prohibition of wind and solar projects, the modifications would eliminate 
the possibility of comingled use, such as agrovoltiacs or wind and cattle which can benefit 
agricultural users as well as clean energy proponents. Based on these concerns, DNR 
requests that the ordinance amendment not be approved allowing us to continue to 
prudently manage DNR land for the benefit of our trust beneficiaries as explained in further 
detail below. 

DNR manages approximately 3 million acres of uplands across the state that are held in 
trust for named beneficiaries. As such, DNR’s fiduciary responsibility is to               manage these 
lands similar to the way a private fiduciary would manage a trust portfolio. In DNR’s case, 
based on RCW 43.30.215 we are directed to “achieve the maximum effective development 
and use of such lands and resources consistent with laws applicable hereto…”. As part of 
DNR’s compliance with RCW 43.30.215, we seek to reposition certain assets to achieve the 

PCM 1.10

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 349 of 411



highest market return on behalf of the underlying trust beneficiary. Today, these trust lands 
are an ongoing source of land-based financial support to the various beneficiaries, including 
public kindergarten through Grade 12 (K-12) schools, state universities, buildings on the 
capitol campus, and correctional facilities. Revenue generated on these lands helps fund K-
12 school construction projects across the state, including public school districts within 
Benton County.  

DNR’s ability to comply with local land use regulations is crucial in our efforts to lease for 
clean energy development as well as continue to lease and manage our valuable agricultural 
lands. We want to ensure that we have every opportunity to provide value and revenue for 
our trust beneficiaries, comply with our fiduciary responsibilities, and maintain our local 
community partnerships as these properties evolve.  

DNR understands the concerns and frustration tied to the proposed ordinance amendment, 
but the County’s role in land use planning remains important in order to continue to move 
the region forward in its management of agricultural lands as well as statewide clean energy 
goals and initiatives. This change in allowable uses is not in the best interest of our trust 
beneficiaries and we cannot support the proposed changes as currently written and 
documented in the Ordinance Amendment. 

We look forward to working with the county to resolve these concerns and find a solution 
that works for us as well as Benton County. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

Kari Fagerness  
Planning Manager 

 
Cc:  Department of Commerce (GMA) – Will Simpson 
 Department of Commerce – Michael Furze 
 Benton County – Jerrod MacPherson 
  
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 350 of 411



 

  
     

     
    

                    
         

     

                 
 

                  
                

    

                    
           

                   

                   

  
  

PCH 1.1

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 351 of 411



 

  
      

    
   

    
      

    
   

                   
         

   
    

     
  

    
  

             

  

                                
                              

                                 
          

                                 
             

                         
                          
                        

    

  
   

PCH 1.2

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 352 of 411



 

 
     

   
         

       

   
      

   
       

        

                    
         

             

 

PCH 1.3

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 353 of 411



  

    
 

   

   

   

             
            

              
       

              
               

               
       

   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 354 of 411





  

   
    

     
  

    
  

             

  

                

                   
                

                 
                   

                     
             

                 
                  

                 
        

                
                 
            

               
                

             
                

              
               

                
         

                  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 356 of 411



               
                 

     

              
             

             
               
             
            

             
                
              
               

          

             
              

                
                 

   

            
   

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 357 of 411



 

 
     

   
     

                

   
      

   
     

                   
         

 

 

 

   
 

   
 

                    
                 

         

            

                   
           
                 
               
                     

                
                  

  
                  

           

PCH 1.5

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 358 of 411



                   
 

                
      

                     
                 

              

                    
                   

   
    
    

   

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

   

   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 359 of 411



Greg Wendt

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Planning Department 

Monday, November 29, 2021 8:29 AM 

Greg Wendt; Michelle Cooke 

FW: [EXTERNAL] Opposition to Solar amendment 

Marilyn Opposition to Zoning Amendment Related to Deletion of Wind and Solar 

Facilities.docx 

From: Marilyn Ford <mrfdurango52@gmail.com> 

Sent: Saturday, November 27, 2021 3:37 PM 

To: Planning Department <Planning.Department@co.benton.wa.us> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Opposition to Solar amendment 

EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING!!!: This email originated from outside of Benton County. DO NOT click links or open attachments unless 

you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Please see attached 

Thanks 

Marilyn 

1 

PCH 1.6

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 360 of 411



  

   
    

     
  

    
  

             

  

                

                   
                

                 
                   

                     
             

                 
                  

                 
        

                
                 
            

               
                

             
                

              
               

                
         

                  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 361 of 411



               
                 

     

              
             

             
               
             
            

             
                
              
               

          

             
              

                
                 

   

            
   

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 362 of 411



 

 
     
   

   
   

      

  
      

    
   

                   
         

                   
                     

  
 

PCH 1.7

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 363 of 411



  

  
   

       

    
  

             

  

                 
                 

      
               

               
           

            

     

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 364 of 411



 

 
     

   
     

  

    
      

    
     

                   
         

  

  
   

PCH 1.8

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 365 of 411



  

  
   

       

    
  

             

  

              

                      
                   

                      
                         
                

                     
                     

                  

                   
                

                
                   

                
                 

                
                   

               

                    
                        

  

                    
                 

                 
              

                   
               

               

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 366 of 411



                
                  

                   
               

                
                 

                   
           

               

  
   

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 367 of 411





November 29, 2021 
 
Martin Sheeran, Chairman  
Benton County Planning Commission 
620 Market St. 1st Floor Prosser, WA 99350 
 
102206 East Wiser Parkway 
Kennewick, WA 99338 
 
RE: Opposition to Zoning Amendment Related to Deletion of Wind and Solar Facilities  
 
Dear Mr. Sheeran, 
 

WE STRONGLY OPPOSE THE FOLLOWING  CHANGE TO THE COUNTY ZONING REGULATIONS. 

 

First: Planning staff provides not one scintilla of evidence to support this change. There is not 
one support letter to this change. DNR one of the largest landowners in the Benton County and 
the State of Washington opposes the change. 

Second: The public process and amendment of the County Zoning Regulations that added the 
conditional use (s) of solar power generator facility and wind farms is not being respected.  

During the previous amendment process consideration was given to the enhancement and 
preservation of the County’s rural character and open space while further protecting the 
County’s ridges, slopes, bluffs, and wildlife habitat, protecting long term commercially significant 
agricultural lands, the conservation of critical areas and habitat and visual resources. 

This record provides not one instance of any concerns with facilities for power generation, other 
than nuclear fueled, wind or solar fueled.  This broad brush change unsupported by any 
evidence could be used to remove ANY conditional use in the County Zoning Regulations.  
Conditional uses such as sand or gravel pit, Kennel, Child Day Care Facility, Park, Bed and 
Breakfast Facility, Agricultural Market and   Business activities could be removed from the 
County Zoning Regulations with no supporting evidence.  

The record put forth by staff to the Commission is so thin that no evidence is included to support 
this amendment of the County Zoning Regulations. 

Third: The proposal effectively zones out solar power generation of any significance. 

Sincerely, 

Jean Robert  Robert Ranch 5+1 LLC 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 369 of 411







2

If you have any questions about this form, sending  in written comments or participating  in or testifying during our hearings,
please do not hesitate to contact our office by phone at (509) 786‐5612 or by email to the Planning Department. 
 
 Hearings Examiner Agenda Page 
 Planning Commission Agenda Page 
 Planning Department's Public Notices Page 
 
 Planning Department's home page 
  
  
 
  

User Submitted Content: 

  
Your Full Name 
Robert and Angela Andrews 
  
Your Address 
1245 Alderdale Rd Prosser, WA 99350 
  
Phone Number 
509‐830‐5607 
  
Email Address 
rob@mckinleysprings.com 
  
File Number (or name) 
OA2021‐004 
  
Comments/Questions 
We will not be able to attend, but want our voice heard. We own farm land on Horse Heaven Hills and on the 
Rattlesnake. We can only grow a few crops on our dryland ground and with input cost sky rocketing this is starting to be 
unsustainable. With the government going with green power this also raises all our costs. If you restrict us to be able to 
use OUR LAND for wind or SOLAR this is not right. This could be the only way to be sustainable if everything else is taken 
from us. So please take out the GMA AG land out of your restrictions. I don't know if any of our land will ever be used for 
these projects but why restrict the land that is out of most peoples sight. In town you build a tall building and we are all 
happy, but on our land we try to make a living and everyone wants to tell us what we can do and how we can do it. I 
read that we need green energy to supply us with power to live, to farm, to survive. But where do we build these 
projects if you restrict us on Land that is not used for much of anything. You can try to stop these projects, but if this is 
the future they are going to be build somewhere next to us. Thanks Rob and Angela Andrews 
  
 
 
 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 372 of 411





1

Donna Hutchinson

From: Michelle Cooke
Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2021 2:20 PM
To: Greg Wendt; Donna Hutchinson
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Nov 30 Planning Commission Special Meeting

FYI 

Michelle Cooke ● Assistant Planning Manager 
Benton County Community Development Department - Planning Division 
Benton County Courthouse, 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 
Benton County Public Services Office, 102206 E Wiser Parkway, Kennewick, WA 99338 
Michelle.Cooke@co.benton.wa.us 
(509) 786-5612

NOTICE OF PUBLIC DISCLOSURE: This e-mail account is public domain.  Any correspondence from or to this email account may be a
public record.  Accordingly, this email, in whole or in part, may be subject to disclosure pursuant to RCW 42.56, regardless of any claim 
of confidentiality or privilege asserted by an external party. 

From: Jill Hedgpeth <jill.hedgpeth@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2021 2:11 PM 
To: Michelle Cooke <Michelle.Cooke@co.benton.wa.us> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Nov 30 Planning Commission Special Meeting 

Michelle, 

Thank you for taking the time to explain OA 2021‐004. I did not understand the amendment and would like to change 
my stance to being in favor of OA 2021‐004. Thanks again for taking the time to talk to me. Jill Hedgpeth 

On Tue, Nov 30, 2021 at 1:47 PM Michelle Cooke <Michelle.Cooke@co.benton.wa.us> wrote: 

Dear Ms. Hedgpeth, 

Thank you for your comment letter, the Planning Division is in receipt of your comment and will include into 
the record at this evening’s hearing. 

Based on your comments, I think there may be some confusion regarding the intent of the text amendment 
which I would be happy to discuss with you. You can reach me directly at: 509-783-1310, extension 5689. I 
will be in the office until 3:30 this afternoon after which time I will be unavailable in preparation for tonight’s 
meeting.  

I would also be happy to speak later in the week if that would work best for you. 

PCH 1.13

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 374 of 411



2

  

Regards, 

  

 

                                  

Michelle Cooke ● Assistant Planning Manager 

Benton County Community Development Department - Planning Division 

Benton County Courthouse, 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 

Benton County Public Services Office, 102206 E Wiser Parkway, Kennewick, WA 99338 

Michelle.Cooke@co.benton.wa.us 

(509) 786-5612 

  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC DISCLOSURE: This e-mail account is public domain.  Any correspondence from or to this email account may be
a public record.  Accordingly, this email, in whole or in part, may be subject to disclosure pursuant to RCW 42.56, regardless of any
claim of confidentiality or privilege asserted by an external party. 

  

  

From: Jill Hedgpeth <jill.hedgpeth@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2021 12:24 PM 
To: COMMISSIONERS <Commissioners@co.benton.wa.us> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Nov 30 Planning Commission Special Meeting 

  

EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING!!!: This email originated from outside of Benton County. DO NOT click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

  

County Commissioners,  

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 375 of 411



3

  

I am unable to attend tonight's meeting, but would like to voice that I am opposed to changing the  current Benton 
County Code in regards to OA 2021‐004. If I read this correctly, it removes the CUP that is currently required for wind 
turbines and wind turbine farms.  By removing the CUP it takes away the public's ability to comment on proposed 
projects that directly affect them. I would like to see that code stay as‐is and allow projects to go through the current 
process allowing public comment. Thank you for your service to Benton County. Sincerely, Jill 

  

Jill Hedgpeth, 28609 S. Clodfelter, Kennewick, WA 99338 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 376 of 411





1

Donna Hutchinson

From: Cassandra Macy <cmacy@innergex.com>
Sent: Tuesday, November 30, 2021 1:08 PM
To: Planning Department
Subject: [EXTERNAL]   Innergex Letter for Benton COunty Planning Commission 
Attachments: Innergex Letter for Benton County Planning Commission (CM-JG)_cgs.docx

EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING!!!: This email originated from outside of Benton County. DO NOT click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

Hello,  

Please see attached letter on behalf of Innergex Renewable Development. If there are any questions or concerns, please 
do not hesitate to email me. Thank you.  

Best, 

Cassandra J. Macy 

Legislative Aide 

We have moved! Please note our new address : 

3636 Nobel Drive, Suite 260, San Diego, CA 92122 
Tel. 858 346-4004 x4126 | Cell. 619 509-6576 | www.innergex.com 
Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn  

PCH 1.14

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 378 of 411



 
 

November 30, 2021 

 

Honorable Chairman Delvin 
Benton County Planning Commission 
 
P.O. Box 910 
Prosser, WA 99350 
 
RE: Opposition to Amendments to Sections Related to Allowable Uses Specific to 

Renewable Energy 

 

 
Dear Chairman Delvin,  
 
Innergex Renewable Energy USA is in the early stages of developing a solar panel energy 
facility in the Wautoma Valley, in the northwestern portion of Benton County, Washington. The 
project will be located south of Highway 24 and east of State Highway 241/Hanford Road.. We 
are currently exploring a project that will generate approximately 400 megawatts (MWac) of 
electricity, with a four-hour battery energy storage system as an option. The project is in the 
early stages of development and changes to the project size and configuration are anticipated in 
consideration of environmental, technical, and community engagement input. Today, we ask 

you to protect our project and future business opportunities by maintaining status quo in 

reviewing proposed projects versus precluding all renewable development.  
 
Amendments in the ordinance (OA 2021-004) calls for the, “removal of solar power generator 
facility, major and wind farms as a conditional use option in the GMA AG Zoning District 
assists the County with protecting long term commercially significant agricultural lands, the 
conservation of critical areas and habitat, visual resources, and the County rural character while 
limiting incompatible and nonagricultural uses in the agricultural zoning district.” This 
amendment could adversely affect the booming industry of renewable energy in the state of 
Washington. More than 20 solar projects covering more than 22,000 acres have been proposed in 
Washington state as of May 2021, bringing economic profit in state and local property tax 
revenues, creating thousands of new jobs, and indicating that Washington is open for business 
for renewable energy development. 
 

Washington has first-hand experience with the devastating effects caused by climate change. 
These extreme weather patterns will continue to worsen if we continue to ignore the tools we 
have to mitigate them in favor of our own interests. Renewable energy is a necessary tool to 
prevent climate catastrophe. Not only will Wautoma and other projects improve our climate, but 
it will also generate meaningful revenue to Benton County. Renewable energy is a growing 
industry and projects will continue to provide environmental and economic benefits to the areas 
in which they are developed. This amendment will set a precedent about how a county dictates 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 379 of 411



 
what a landowner chooses to do with their land and signal that Benton County is closed for 
business and cause future projects to take their business elsewhere. 

 

Innergex prides itself in being a good, long-term partner and neighbor in the communities in 
which we operate and strive to share the long-term value of our operating facilities with all 
project stakeholders. We encourage you to maintain status quo in reviewing proposed projects 
versus precluding all renewable development, especially when there is the support of local 
landowners who are supportive and interested in using their land to transition to renewable 
energy. 

 

Our project and other renewable energy projects throughout the state will create a bright spot in 
Washington’s economy and community. We ask for your leadership to provide a certain future 
for Wautoma and projects that will benefit Benton County and the state. I am happy to answer 
any questions you may have. Please do not hesitate to call me at (619) 509-6576 or email me at 
cmacy@innergex.com to discuss further.  

 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Cassandra Macy 
Government Relations  
 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 380 of 411





2

If you have any questions about this form, sending  in written comments or participating  in or testifying during our hearings,
please do not hesitate to contact our office by phone at (509) 786‐5612 or by email to the Planning Department. 
 
 Hearings Examiner Agenda Page 
 Planning Commission Agenda Page 
 Planning Department's Public Notices Page 
 
 Planning Department's home page 
  
  
 
  

User Submitted Content: 

  
Your Full Name 
Rich Nall 
  
Your Address 
1221 Plateau Dr Richland, WA 99352  
  
Phone Number 
509‐438‐0000 
  
Email Address 
rich.nall@gmail.com 
  
File Number (or name) 
OA 2021‐004/EA 2021‐026 Planning Commission Memo Exhibit List ‐ November 30, 2021 ORDINANCE AMENDMET TO 
BCC 11.15, 11.17, 11.33 AND 11.35 
  
Comments/Questions 
November 30, 2021 Martin Sheeran, Chairman Benton County Planning Commission 620 Market St. 1st Floor Prosser, 
WA 99350 102206 East Wiser Parkway Kennewick, WA 99338 RE: Opposition to Zoning Amendment Related to Deletion 
of Wind and Solar Facilities Dear Mr. Sheeran, My name is Rich Nall, and I am a landowner in Benton County. It has come 
to my attention that there is a proposed amendment which aims to remove solar power generating facilities as a 
conditional use option in Benton County’s GMA AG Zoning District. Should this amendment come into effect, it means 
that myself, and my neighbors are left unable to determine what we, as landowners, are able to do with our property. 
We are not aware of any other county that does this. If applied broadly, this could fundamentally change zoning laws in 
Washington and devalue the value of our ground and not allow us to utilize it for future opportunities. As a longtime 
member of the community, I want all the things the amendment claims to protect. I want to see our land and our 
community thrive. I want our County to conserve critical areas and be diverse in both habitat and resources. The only 
way these things will be achieved is by diversifying how we use the land. If this amendment comes into effect, it means 
Others, not landowners, will have the final say in what we do with our property, and directly impacts our future which is 
clearly an infringement on our property rights. We strongly ask that you reconsider the amendment. We as landowners 
have the right to determine how our property will be used. This project provides reliable energy for Washington 
businesses that have sustainability goals. The energy stays right here and helps attract high‐tech jobs to the region. We 
hope that you continue to support property rights and thoughtful economic development in our community. Sincerely, 
Rich Nall, Owner High Valley LLC  
  
 
 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 382 of 411



3

 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 383 of 411





2

If you have any questions about this form, sending  in written comments or participating  in or testifying during our hearings,
please do not hesitate to contact our office by phone at (509) 786‐5612 or by email to the Planning Department. 
 
 Hearings Examiner Agenda Page 
 Planning Commission Agenda Page 
 Planning Department's Public Notices Page 
 
 Planning Department's home page 
  
  
 
  

User Submitted Content: 

  
Your Full Name 
Chris Wissel‐Tyson 
  
Your Address 
Seattle, WA  
  
Phone Number 
(425) 298‐7810 
  
Email Address 
chris@brightnightenergy.com 
  
File Number (or name) 
OA 2021‐004 
  
Comments/Questions 
Benton Planning and Community, I am representing BrightNight Power who is a developer, operator, and owner of 
hybrid renewable generation and storage projects. We have a project in Benton County and strive to work closely with 
our local stakeholders and communities to develop projects that create jobs, skills training, opportunities, and a 
significant tax base while minimizing the social, cultural, and environment impacts to the surrounding community. We 
appreciate and understand the potential impact some generation technologies can have on the viewshed and character 
of a community, but we believe Ordinance OA 2021‐004 is not the right solution for the Benton County community for 
five main reasons: 1) Technology Non‐Specific: This ordinance effectively bans a range of generation technologies that 
all have vastly different impacts. A wind turbine is a rotating piece of machinery that can stretch 500+ feet tall, a nuclear 
plant is surrounded by 10‐ and 50‐mile radius emergency planning zones, and a solar facility is on average 5‐9 feet tall. In 
other words, some technologies are completely compatible with existing GMA AG zoning and thus should be treated 
differently under this ordinance. 2) Lack of Full Stakeholder Engagement: BrightNight would like to be party to this 
proceeding and understand the process. This notice of public hearing was published on November 17th giving little time 
for stakeholders like BrightNight who have already made significant investments in the community to work 
collaboratively with the county to find the best solution for all affected parties. 3) Lack of Evidence: BrightNight has read 
the ordinance commission packet and finds little evidence for the proposed change. BrightNight would like to work with 
Benton County to understand the reasons for the proposed change and work together on a new ordinance that benefits 
all stakeholders. 4) Impact on Economic Development: Well developed renewable generation projects will bring jobs, 
skills training, tax revenue, and affiliate businesses to Benton County. BrightNight’s project alone will create 200+ 
construction jobs, 5‐10 full time jobs, and $80 Million in local property tax revenue in the first 34 years of operations. 
This type of local economic impact should be considered in the drafting of this ordinance. 5) Landowner Autonomy: 
BrightNight believes this ordinance removes a landowner’s ability to decide how they are going to use their land. We 
believe a landowner should be able to decide if they are going to use the suns energy to make apples, wheat, wine 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 385 of 411



3

grapes, hops, or solar energy. Thank you for your time and we look forward to working further with county and the 
community to find a solution that strikes a compromise which will benefit all stakeholders in this ordinance. Best, Chris 
BrightNight Power  
  
 
 
 

 

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 386 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 387 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 388 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 389 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 390 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 391 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 392 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 393 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 394 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 395 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 396 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 397 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 398 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 399 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 400 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 401 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 402 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 403 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 404 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 405 of 411



Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 406 of 411





Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: L Wingfield

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
HUMAN SERVICES FUND NUMBER 0108101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 560

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 408 of 411



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

566.220 4155 Contract Services $141,526 565.110 1267 Temp Housing Program Navigator $47,950

565.110 1270 Temp Housing Program Navigator $47,950

565.110 1260 Temp Housing Program Navigator $23,975

565.110 2102 Social Security $9,170

565.110 2104 Retirement $12,288

565.110 2119 Paid Family Leave $193

TOTAL $141,526 TOTAL $141,526
Explanation:

Prepared by: Tammy McKeirnan Date:  06-Dec-2021

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Position numbers 1267 and 1270 are currently approved through the end of the Emergency Rental Assistance Grant or Dec 31, 2021, whichever comes first.  Position 
1260 is currently approved through the end of the Emergency Rental Assistance Grant or Dec 31, 2022, whichever comes first. All three positions are grant funded.  The 
duration of the grant has been extended through June 30, 2025.  We are requesting approval to extend the duration of positions 1267, 1270, and 1260 through June 30, 
2025 or until the grant ends, whichever comes first.

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Contract Management

Human Services

560

0108101

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 409 of 411



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: Linda Ivey

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 116

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto; and

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 410 of 411



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

558.600 1128 Assistant Planning Manager $137,774 558.600 1128 Planning Manager $137,774

        

TOTAL $137,774 TOTAL $137,774
Explanation:

Prepared by: Linda Ivey Date:  23-Nov-2021

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Effective January 1, 2022:  Position 1128 is changing from Assistant Planning Manager to Planning Manager.  Position 1128 has a  job classifcation 
and grade established. Position is a Grade 8, Managers Salary scale

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Planning

Current Expense

116

0000101

Innergex Exhibit 10 - Page 411 of 411




